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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors present their annual repont and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2012

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The company 15 a holding company and through 1ts subsidiary undertakings 15 a leading provider of professional
information solutions, principally in North America and Europe

The company 1s jointly owned and controlled by Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
Financial Review: Results and dividends

Revenue was £6,061m (2011 £5,934m) up 2% At constant exchange rates, revenue was up 3% Underlying revenue
growth was 4%, or 3% excluding the net cycling in of bienmial exhibitions

Reported operating profit, after amortisation of acquired intangibles and acquisition related costs, was £1,313m
(2011 £1,159m), reflecting the improved trading performance described 1n the Business Review

The amortisation charge in respect of acquired intangible assets, 1ncluding the share of amortisation in joint
ventures, amounted t0 £317m (2011 £347m) Acquisition related costs were £21m (2011 £52m), reflecting the
completion of the ChoicePoint integration programme 1n 2011 Disposals and other non operating gamns were
£45m (2011 £21m losses) principally arsing from business divestments, 1n particular Totaljobs, offset by
property charges relating to disposed businesses

Net finance costs were lower at £477m (2011 £534m), including the benefit of term debt refinancing and
currency translation effects

The reported profit before tax was £881m (2011 £603m) The reported tax charge was £100m (2011 £16%m)
This includes an exceptional tax credit of £96m resulting from the resolution of a number of significant prior year
tax matters The reported net profit attnbutable to equity sharcholders was £776m (2011 £427m)

Adjusted operating profit was £1,656m (2011 £1,568m), up 6% At constant currencies, adjusted operating profits
were up 6% Underlying growth was 6%

The overall adjusted operating margin at 27 3% was 0 9 percentage points higher than in the prior year This
included a 0 5 percentage point benefit to margin from portfolio change and a 0 1 percentage point benefit from
the multi-year journal subscription currency hedging programme net of other currency translation effects

The net pension expense, before the net pension financing credit, was £89m (2011 £36m), including settlement
and curtailment credits of £20m (2011 £9m) The net pension financing credit was £25m (2011 £34m) reftecting
the increase in scheme habilities at the beginning of the year compared with a year before and lower expecied
asset returns

The effective tax rate on adjusted profit before tax was 28 9% (2011 30 3%), reflecting the geographic mix of the
net increase in pre-tax profits

During the year the company pard dividends of £300m (2011 £600m) on the “R™ ordinary shares and ml on the
“E™ ordinary shares (2011 mil), and preference dividends of £7,500 (2011 £7,500) No dividends were paid by
subsidiary undertakings to Reed Elsevier NV (2011 nil)

Cash flows

Cash generated from operations was £1,806m (2011 £1,674m), up 8% compared with the prior year, principally
reflecuing good cash conversion and improved operating profit After net interest payments of £484m

(2011 £532m) and net tax paid of £200m (2011 £191m), net cash from operating activities was £1,122m

(2011 £951m)

Capntal expenditure was £333m (2011 £350m), including £263m (2011 £265m) in respect of capitahised
development costs included within internally generated intangible assets This reflects the sustained investment 1n
new products and related infrastructure, particularly in the Legal business Spend on acquisitions and investments
was £553m (2011 £550m) including deferred consideration of £30m on past acquisitions Gross cash proceeds
from disposals amounted to £242m including £7m from the sale of non-controlling nterests Net proceeds, before
tax, amounted to £160m (2011 £80m) after related separation and transaction costs, additional pension scheme
contnbutions, and working capital and other adjustments in respect of prior year transactions
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Ordinary dividends of £300m (2011 £600m) were paid 1n the year by the company to shareholders and no
dividends were paid by subsidiary undertakings to Reed Elsevier NV (2011 ml)

Debt

Net borrowings at 31 December 2012 were £9,496m (2011 £9,959m), a decrease of £463m since 3| December
2011 The decrease principally reflects the benefit of free cash flow and disposal proceeds less acquisition spend

and dividends paid, and currency translation effects Excluding currency translation effects net debt decreased by
£108m

Net borrowings from shareholders and affiliated undertakings at 31 December 2012 amounted to £7,928m
(2011 £7,870m) Other borrowings amounted to £2,186m (2011 £2,679m) and the fair value of related
denvative assets was £36m (2011 £30m) Cash balances totalled £582m (2011 £560m)

Net pension obligations, 1 ¢ pension obhigations less pension assets, at 31 December 2012 were £466m

(31 December 2011 £242m), including a net deficit of £306m (31 December 2011 £87m) n respect of funded
schemes which were on average 93% funded at the end of the year on an [FRS basis The increase in the overall
net deficit reflects a reduction m average discount rates at the end of the year compared with the end of the prior
year

Liqmdity

At 31 December 2012, the Reed Elsevier Group plec group had access, along with other affiliated companies, to a
$2,000m commutted bank facihity maturing in June 2015, which was undrawn This backup facihty provides
secunity of funding for short term debt

In October and November 2012, $561m of fixed rate term debt with a matunity of ten years was 1ssued at a coupon
of 3 125% Related to this transaction, $299m of fixed rate term debt maturing in January 2014 and January 2019,
with a weighted average coupon of § 4% was exchanged for $31 1m of newly 1ssued term debt and cash payments
of $75m The remaining cash proceeds were used to reduce short term commercial paper borrowings ahead of the
January 2014 bend matunty

After taking account of committed bank facilities and available cash resources, ne third party borrowings mature
within two years (2011 ml), no third party borrowings mature 1n the third year (2011 18%), 29% in the fourth
and fifth years (2011 19%), 49% n the sixth to tenth years (2011 44%), and 22% beyond the tenth year

(2011 19%)

The Reed Elsevier Group ple group also has borrowings from its affiliate Elsevier Finance SA totalling £5,889m
(2011 £6,340m) of which 27% mature in the next year (2011 23%), 12% i the second year (2011 21%), 17% 1n
the third year (2011 11%), 34% 1n the fourth and fifth years (2011 30%), and 10% (n the sixth to tenth years
(2011 15%) Reed Elsevier Group plc has net borrowings due within one year of £2,039m (2011 £1,530m) from
the parent companies, Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV, and other affiliated undertakings
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

The Annual Report and Financial Statements 2012 contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of
Section 27A of the US Secunities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the US Secunities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended These statements are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties that could cause actual
results or outcomes to differ matenally from those currently being anticipated The terms cstimate ™ project”,

plan”, “intend " expect , should be , *wull be™, beheve and sumular expressions identity torward-looking
statements Factors which may cause future outcomes to differ from those foreseen in forward-looking statements
include, but are not limited to compeutive factors in the mdustries in which we operate, demand for our products
and services, exchange rate fluctuations, general economic and business conditions, legislative, fiscal, tax and
regulatory developments and political nsks, the avatlability of third party content and data, breaches of our data
security systems and interruptions in our information technology systems, changes in law and legal interpretations
affecting Reed Elsevier Group plc's intellectual property nghts

BUSINESS REVIEW

Reed Elsevier Group plc 1s a world leading provider of professional information solutions A company that
delivers improved outcomes to professional customers across industres, helping them make better decisions, get
better results and be more productive

We achieve this by leveraging deep customer understanding to combine high quality content & data with analytics
& technology n global platforms Qur solutions often account for about 1 percent of our customess’ total cost
base but can have a significant, positive, impact on the remaining 99 percent We seek to build leading positions
in long-term global growth markets by leveraging our insttutional skills, assets and resources across Reed
Elsevier Group pic, both to build solutions for our customers and to pursue cost efficiencies

Across Reed Elsevier Group ple, we are systematically migrating towards this type of business, primanly through
orgamc development, by investing in the transformation of our current assets and bwilding out new products and
solutions 1n adjacent markets and geographies We are supplementing organtc growth with selective acquisitions
where we are the natural owner and can accelerate our strategy with good retums We will continue to divest
assets that we are not able to migrate in this direction, or where we do not see sigmficant future value creation for
Reed Elsevier Group plc

Reed Elsevier Group ple ts a world leading provider of professional information soluttons orgarused as five
business segments Scientific, technical & medical, providing information and tools to help its customers improve
sctentific and healthcare cutcomes, Risk Solutions, providing tools that combine propnetary, public and
third-party information with advanced technology and analytics, Business Information, providing data services,
information and marketing solutions to business professionals, Legal, providing legal, tax, regulatory news &
business information to legal, corporate, government, accounting and acadermic markets, and Exhibitrons,
organising exhibitions and conferences

Adjusted operating profit 1s the key segmental profit measure used by Reed Eisevier Group plc in assessing
performance Itis stated before amortisation of acquired intangible assets, the share of profit on disposals 1n joint
ventures, acquisition related costs, and 1s grossed up to exclude the equity share of taxes in joint ventures
Underlying growth rates are the year on year change at constant currencies, excluding the results of all
acquisitions and disposals made both mn the year and prior year and assets held for sale Comparison at constant
exchange rates uses 2011 full year and hedge exchange rates

Sciennfic, Technical & Medical

Elsevier is the world s leading provider of scientific, technical and medical information and serves scientists,
health professionals, and students worldwide Its objective 1s to help 11s customers advance science and 1mprove
healthcare by providing world class information and innovative information solutions that enable them to make
critical decisions, enhance productivity, and improve outcomes

Revenues for the year ended 31 December 2012 were £2,008m Elsevier 1s a global business with principal
operations 1n Amsterdam, Beijing, Boston, Chennai, Dellhi, London, Madrid, Munich, New York, Oxford, Paris,
Philadelphia, Rio de Janeiro, St Lows, San Diego, Singapore and Tokyo [t has 7,000 employees

Elsevier serves the needs of the science, technology and health markets by publishing primary research, reference,
and education content, as well as by providing a range of database and workflow solutions Elsevier s cusiomers
are scientists, academc institutions, research leaders and adrministrators, medical researchers, doctors, nurses,
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allied health professionals and students, as well as hospitals, research institutions, health insurers, managed
healthcare orgamsations, research-intensive corporations, and governments  All of these customers rely on
Elsevier to provide hugh quality content and critical information for making scientific and medical decisions, to
review, publish, disseminate and preserve research findings, to create innovative tools to help focus research
strategies, increase research effectiveness, improve medical outcomes, and enhance the efficiency of healthcare
and healthcare education

In the primary research market during 2012, over 1m research papers were submitted to Elsevier, a double digit
increase on the prior year Over 10,000 editors managed the peer review and selection of these papers, resulting in
the publication of more than 330,000 articles 1n almost 2,000 journals, many of which are the foremost
pubhications n their field and a primary point of reference for new research This content was accessed by around
11m people, with nearly 700m full text article downloads last year Content 1s provided free or at very low cost in
most of the world s poorest countries Elsevier’s journals are primarily published and delivered through the
ScienceDirect platform, the world’s largest database of scientific and med:cal research, hosting over 11m articles,
and over 11,000 full text e-bocks Flagship journals include Cell and The Lancet famhes of titles Elsevier
continuously tnnovates to improve the utihity and effectiveness of 1ts journals For example, its  Article of the
Future’ enhances the traditional scientific paper with new and broader types of content, such as links to
expenmental data, related content, and enhanced media to supplement the article s text

Elsevier 1s also a global leader in the scientific, technical and medical reference market, providing authoritative
and current professional reference content While reference has traditionally been a print industry, Elsevier has
been a leader in driving the shift from print to electromic Elsevier publishes over 20,000 reference utles, with
1,400 new titles published annually along with supporting bibliographic data, indices and abstracts
Approximately 85% of these titles are available electronically Flagship utles include works such as Gray's
Anatomy, Nelson's Pedratrics and Netter s Atlas of Human Anatomy

Elsevier launched ChmcalKey 1n 2012, a product that allows physicians to access the leading reference and
evidence-based medicine content 1n a single, fully-integrated site ClinrcalKey includes a full taxonomy and
improved smart content search to help clinicians look up detailed information on highly specific topics as they
seek to answer clinical questions The platform covers Flsevier s as well as relevant third-party health content
CinucalKey has already been deployed at leading teaching hospitals, such as Oxford University s John Radchiffe
the Cleveland Clinic, and the US Department of Veterans Affairs

In medical education, Elsevier serves students of medicine, nursing and alhied health professions through print and
electronic books, as well as electronic solutions For example, its Evelve portal provides a nch resource to support
faculty and students and now has over 3 5m registered users, Evelve Reach provides online review and testing
tools for nursing and the aliied health professions, Evoive Teach provides online resources and solutions to
support faculty

Elsevier s database and workflow products provide a range of tools and solutions for professionals 1n the science,
technical, and medical fields Customers include academic and corporate researchers, research adminsstrators and
healthcare professionals

For academic and corporate researchers, significant products include Scopus, Geofacets, and Reaxys Scopus s the
largest abstract and citation database of research literature in the world, with abstracts and bibliographic
information on almost 50m scientific research articles from 19,500 peer reviewed joumnals and 5,000 international
publishers Geofacets 1s an o1l and gas exploration tool which packages research-relevant Elsevier and third-party
geological content and tags that content to enable nch search functionahity Reaxys 1s a leading solution for
synthetic cherusts, integrating chemical reaction and compound data searching with synthesis planning

In December 2012, Elsevier acquired Knovel, a web-based provider of productivity tools for the engineering
community, integrating techmcal information with analytics and search to deliver trusted answers and dnive
innovaton

Elsevier serves academic and government research administrators through its Sci¥af suite of products that help
them evaluate their institutions  research performance, determine research strategies and increase institutional
efficiencies Leveraging bibliometric data, such as citations from Scopus, SctVal Spotlight helps institutions and
governments to identify their distinctive research strengths, evaluate performance and increase the focus of their
research and development investments SciVal Funding assists researchers and insttutions in identifying grants
that are most relevant in their research areas

In August 2012, Elsevier bolstered its research management portfolio by acquiring Anira, a provider of software
and tools that complement the Sci¥a/ platform and help academic institutions and researchers improve their
research outcomes
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For healthcare professionals, Elsevier develops products to deliver patient-specific solutions at the point of care to
improve patient outcomes ks chnreal solutions include Gold Standard, which provides entical information on
drug interactions to assist effective treatment, and CPM Resource Center, which provides a data-driven
framework to support nurses in undertaking procedures

Elsevier further bolstered its chinical solutions portfolto with the acquisiton in September 2012 of ExitCare, a
provider of patient education and discharge instructions ExirCare 's products, incorporated into Elsevier’s chinical
decision support content and tools, will help healthcare providers improve the delivery of healthcare information
and services across all care envircnments

Market opportunities

Scientific, Technical and Medical information markets have good long-term growth characteristics The
importance of research and development to economic performance and competitive positioning 1s well understood
by governments, academic institutions and corporations This 1s reflected in the long-term growth n research and
development spend and in the number of researchers worldwide Growth 1n health markets 1s driven by ageing
populations in developed markets, nising prosperity in developing markets and the increasing focus on improving
medical outcomes and efficiency Given that a significant proportion of scientific research and healthcare 1s
funded directly or indirectly by governments, spending 15 influenced by governmental budgetary considerations
The commitment to research and health provision does, however, rernain high, even in more difficult budgetary
environments

Strategic priorities

Elsevier s strategic goal is to lead the way in providing information solutions that advance science and improve
health To achieve this, Elsevier creates solutions that reflect deep 1nsight into the way its users work and the
outcomes they are seeking to achieve, drives for excellence 1n content, service and technology, constantly adapts
and revitalises s products, solutions and business models, and leverages 1ts shared resources and knowledge to
promote innovation, efficiency and excellence in execution

For academic and corporate researchers, prionities are to continue to strengthen journal brands and the quahty of
published articles, and to further improve scientific communication and user experience with our journal content
Elsevier 1s focused on dehivering journal content quickly, making 1t available through different access channels,

and explonng a range of innovative new business models Elsevier will also build new services, and add greater
functionality and utility to existing solutrons to improve researcher productivity

For science and health professionals, prionties are to continue enhancing the quality and relevance of our content
and our workflow tools, while actively managing the ongoing format shift from print to electronic information

For students, prionties are to continue to provide the highest quality educational content and tools and to develop
an even better customer expertence In addition, Elsevier will develop tools to track student performance, train
new faculty members, and improve the effectiveness of existing faculty staff

Business model, distribution channels and competition

Science and medical research 1s principally disseminated on a paid subscription basis to the research facilities of
academic institutions, government and corporations, and, 1n the case of medical and healthcare journals, also to
mdividual practitioners and medical society members For a number of journals, advertising and promottonal
income represents a small proportion of revenues predominantly from pharmaceutical companies in healthcare
titles

Over the past 15 years alternative payment models for the disserination of research such as so-called

author-pays open access or author s-funder-pays * have emerged While 1t 1s expected that paid subscription
will remain the primary distribution model, Elsevier has long invested in alternate business models to address the
needs of customers and researchers Over 1,500 of Elsevier’s journals now offer the option of funding research
publishing and distnibution via a sponsored article fee In addition, Elsevier now publishes around 30 author-
pays ’ journals

Electronic products, such as ScienceDirect, Scopus and ClimcalKey, are generally sold direct to customers
through a dedicated sales force that has offices around the world Subscriptton agents facilitate the sales and
administrative process for print journals Books are sold through traditonal and online book stores, wholesalers
and, particularly in medical and healthcare markets, directly to end users

Competition within science and medical publishing s generally on a title-by-title and product-by-product basis
Competing Journals, books and databases are typically published by learned societies and other professional
publishers Workflow tools face similar competition as well as from software compamies and nternal solutions
developed by customers
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2012 financial performance

Elsevier achieved good revenue growth in primary research and databases & tools across scientific & medical
segments, with particular strength 1n emerging markets Research article submissions and usage grew double
digits Electromic revenues, which now account for approximately 70% of total revenues, grew strongly across all
segments Print book and pharma promotion revenues continued to dechne

Underlying revenues grew +2% and underlying adjusted operating profits grew +4%

Good underlying revenue growth in primary research solutions across the scientific and medical segments was
dnven by double digit growth in both subrmissions and article downloads, with particularly strong growth in faster
growing economies outside Europe and the US The number of article submtssions to our journals exceeded Im
for the first tme n 2012, with over 11 m users downloading nearly 700m articles during the year Elsevier s
overall relative unpact factor and citation share continued to grow in the year as we focused on providing our
customers with high quahty content embedded in sophisticated online tools

In addition to good growth in traditional  subscriber-pays * article volumes, auther-pavs’, or  author’s-funder-
pays” article volumes increased during the year, albeit from a small base A sponsored article option 1s currently
available in 1,500 of our journals and 30 stand-alone journals operate under this payment model

Good growth n databases & tools revenue was driven by strong new sales and usage growth

Sales of print books to individuals continued to decline in 2012 reflecting format migration and subdued reference
and education markets Print pharma promotion revenues also continued to dechine reflecting industry trends

In August 2012 the management structure of Elsevier was reorganised, combining science & technology and
health sciences Had these revenue streams still been managed separately, their pro forma underlying revenue
growth would have been +5% and flat respectively

currency hedging benefits

2013 Outlook

The customer environment 15 broadly unchanged on last year, with vanations by geography and customer

segment We expect volume growth in research and strong demand for electronic products and solutions to

continue across scientific and medical markets, with continued declines in print book and pharma promotion \

revenues Overall we expect another year of modest underlying revenue growth in 2013 ;
\
I

In 2012 adjusted operating profit margin continued to improve, driven by continued process effictencies and |

Risk Solutions & Bustness Infermation

Risk Solutions

LexisNexis Risk Solutions 1s a leading provider of solutions that combine proprietary, pubhic and third-party
information, with advanced technology and analytics These solutions assist customers 1n evaluating, predicting
and managing nsk and improving operational effectiveness, predominantly 1n the US

Revenues for the year ended 31 December 2012 were £926m LexisNexis Risk Solutions 15 headgquartered in
Alpharetta, Georgia, has principal operations i Georgia, Flornda, and Ohio, and has 4,100 employees

LexisNexis Risk Solutions 1s orgamsed around market facing industry/sector groups 1nsurance, business services
(including the financial services, recervables management and corporate groups), and government The most
significant of these 15 insurance These groups are supported by a shared infrastructure for technology operations,
data management, and other support functions including comphiance and marketing A number of transactional
support activities, including some financial processes, are provided from a shared services orgamisation managed
by the LexisNexis Legal & Professional business The Legal & Professional business also distributes Risk
Solutions preducts into legal markets in the US and mnternationally

Insurance Solutions provides a comprehensive combination of data and analytics to property and casualty (P&C)
personal and commerctal insurance and life insurance carriers 1n the US to improve critical aspects of their
business, from customer acquisiion and underwnting to claims handling Information sclutions, including the
1JS’s most comprehensive personal loss history database, C L U E | help insurers assess risks and provide
tmportant inputs to pricing and underwnting insurance polictes Additional key products include Data Prefill,
which provides critical information on customers, potential customers and their auto ownership directly into the
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insurance workflow, and Current Carrier, which 1dentifies current or previous mnsurance as well as any lapses in
coverage

Business Services provides financial institutions with risk management, identity management, fraud detection,
credit nsk management, and compliance solutions These include know your customer and anti-money
laundering products The business also provides nsk and identity management solutions for corporate customers
in retail, telecommunications and utilities sectors Receivables management soluttons help debt recovery
professionals in the segmentation, management and collection of consurner and business debt

Government Solutions provides data and analytics to US federal, state and local law enforcement and
government agenctes to help solve criminal and inteiligence cases and to 1dentfy fraud, waste and abuse 1n
govemnment programmes

The Risk Solutions business also provides risk-related information to the legal indusiry through LexisNexis Legal
& Professional Risk Solutions continues to focus on developing a pipeline of new solutions to drive growth in
selected adjacent markets and geographies For example, 1n the UK, Risk Solutions has launched a new product
that uses public information to help nsurers assess and segment risk more effectively among motor insurance
customers and 1s planning to launch additional innovative products to facilitate sharing of data across motor
msurers, improving snsurers abihty to understand underwrniting risks In the government segment, customers are
adopting fraud detection, waste, and abuse solutions, which enable government agencies to wdentfy incidences of
tax and benefits fraud, and boost revenue collections Risk Solutions has also continued to broaden tts portfolio of
identity management solutions, including one-time-password and biometric solutions, and has made existing
identity products more configurable to address the specific needs of customers across our market segments

The 1dentity venification and nisk evaluation solutions provided by Risk Solutions utilise a comprehensive
database of public records and propnetary mmformation with more than 2,000 terabytes of unique data, which
makes 1t the largest database of its kind 1n the US market today LexisNexis Accurine 1s a flagship product,
powered by the High Performance Computing Cluster (HPCC) technology This market-leading technology
enables Risk Solutions to provide 1ts customers with highly relevant search results swiftly and to create new,
low-cost solutions quickly and efficiently It ts also increasingly used across other Reed Elsevier Group ple
markets such as Legal and Scienuific, Technical & Medical

In January 2013, Risk Solutions announced the sale of 1ts Screening business This will allow 1t to increase 1ts
focus on higher-growth segments leveraging its core data, technology and analytical capabilittes The Screening
business presented limrted opportunities to apply these capabilities to generate unique customer value, sustaied
growth, and superior margins

Market opportunities

Risk Soluticns operates in markets with strong long-term underlying growth dnvers including msurance
underwrniting transactions, msurance, healthcare, tax and entitlement fraud, credit defaults and financial fraud,
regulatory comphiance and due diligence requirements surrounding customer enrolment, and security
considerations

In the insurance segment, growth 1s supported by increasing transactional activity in the auto, property and ltfe
nsurance markets and the increasing adoption by msurance carmers of more sophisticated data and analytics in the
prospecting, underwriting and claims evaluation processes, to assess underwnting risk, increase competitiveness
and improve operating cost efficiency Transactional activity 1s driven by product extensions across insurance
carriers workflow and growth in :nsurance quoting, as consumers seek better policy terms This activity 1s
stimulated by increasing competition between insurance companes, high levels of carner advertising, and nising
levels of internet quoting and policy binding

A number of factors support growth for risk solutions in the financial services market, mcluding new credut
onginations, continued high fraud losses, stringent regulatory compliance requirements, and increasing anti-
money laundering fines [n receivables management, demand 1s dnven mainly by levels of consumer debt and the
prospect of recovering that debt, which 15 impacted by employment conditions in the US In corporate markets,
demand 1s supported by growth in onhne retal sales and continued high levels of credit card fraud Growth in
government markets 1s dniven by the increasing use of data and analytics to combat criminal activity, fraud and tax
evasion, and to address secunty 1ssues The level and iming of demand in this market 1s mfluenced by
government funding and revenue considerations

Strategsc priorities

Risk Solutions strategic goal 1s to make businesses and government more effective, through a better
undersianding of the risks associated with individuals, other businesses and transactions and by providing the
highest quality tools to help manage those risks efficiently and cost effectively To achieve this, Risk Solutions s
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focused on delivering innovative new products across customer workflows, expanding the range of nisk
management solutions across adjacent markets, addressing international opportunities in selected markets to meet
local nsk management needs, and continuing to strengthen its content, technology, and analytical capabiiities

Business model, distribution channels and competition
Risk Solutions products are predominantly soid directly, with pricing mostly on a transactional basis for
msurance carriers and corporations, and primarily on a subscription basis for govemment entities

Risk Solutions and Verisk, a competitor, each sell data and analytics solutions to insurance carmers but largely
address different activities Risk Solutions principal competitors in commercial and government segments nclude
Thomson Reuters and major credit bureaus, in many cases addressing different activities in these segments as

well

2012 financial performance

Underlying revenue growth accelerated shghtly in 2012 as we extended our data & analytics solutions across risk
markets, driving strong growth in both Insurance and business Services, and a return to growth n the government
segment The improvement in adjusted operating profit margin largely reflects the impact of disposals, with
underlying cost growth broadly matching revenue growth, reflecting ongoing spend on new product development

Underlying revenues and adjusted operating profits both grew +6%

The Insurance business grew underlying revenues by +7%, with solid growth reflecting the extension of products
and services across the insurance carmier workflow, and expansion in new market segments The international
launches progressed well in 2012, albeit on a scale that was not matenal to Risk Soluttons overall

Business Services revenue growth accelerated to +7% In financial services, the anti-money laundering, fraud
detection and credit decisioning solutions all performed well, and revenues were positively impacted by some
temporary effects of increased mortgage refinancing activies Qur receivables management business remained

soft

The Government business returned to growth in 2012 reflecting good demand for new fraud detection products 1n
the state & local segment, with continuing moderate declines 1n the federal segment

All Risk Solutions market segments now leverage HPCC, our proprietary “big data’ technology. to combine
proprietary, public, and third party information with advanced analytics to belp customers in evaluating,
predicting, and managing risk and improving efficiency The business 1s already virtually 100% electronic

[n January 2013 we announced the disposal of the Screening business, which has been excluded from underlying
revenue growth figures 1f Screening had been included in the underlying results, the underlying revenue growth
rate for Risk Solutions as a whote would sull have been 6%

Underlying cost growth was broadly in line with revenue growth in 2012, reflecting spend on new products and
content sets The adjusted operating profit margin increased by 2 4 percentage points, largely reflecting the impact
of portfolio changes in 2011

2013 outlook

Risk Solutions operates in markets with strong long-term underlying growth drivers, and we will continue to
invest in new products that leverage our leading content and expertise in brg data’ analytics and extend our
services across customer workflows We expect continued good growth in the Insurance and Business Services
market segments, and mixed Government markets

Business Information

Reed Business Information (RBI) provides data services, information and marketing solutions to business
professionals across industries globally [t produces industry crnitical data services and lead generation tools, online
community sites as well as business magazines with market leading positions 1n many sectors

Revenues for the year ended 31 December 2012 were £663m RBI 1s a global business headquartered in Sutton 1n
the UK and in addition has principal eperations in London, Amsterdam, Skokie ([llinois), Norcross (Georgia) and
Boston (Massachusetts) in the US, as well as Panis, Milan and Shangha1 RBI has 4,800 employees worldwide

RBI[ s customers use 1ts data services to help make key strategic decisions and reduce nsk, to tmprove
productivity and performance and identify new business opportunittes RB1 s magazines and websites deliver igh
value news, information and opinion to business professionals across many industry sectors while also providing
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an effective marketing channel for custormers RBI s online marketing solutions bring buvers and sellers together
through a range of innovative digital channels

RBI s market leading data services include /CIS, an information and pricing service in chemicals, fertilisers and
energy, BankersAccuity, a provider of payment routing data, anti-money laundenng (AML) services and
compliance information to the banking and corporate sectors, XpertFR, an online service providing regulatory
gwidance, best practices and tools for HR professionals, and Reed Construction Data, a provider of online
construction data and information to the construction industry

RBI s leading brands include New Scientist, Farmers Weekly, Estates Gazette, Elsevier magazine and Boerdery
Online marketing solutions include emedia, an email bulleun based lead generation service and BuyerZone, a
web-based request for quotation (RFQ) service

In 2012, RBI conuinued to reshape us portfolio significantly, addressing continued growth opportunities in data
services while exiting areas not core to 11s paid content strategy In addition, the business continued to focus on
cost efficiency across the traditional publishing businesses

As part of this strategy RBI sold Totaljobs Group, comprising seven recruntment job boards, created orgamcally
by RBI RBI continued to create value from its existing magazine brands, while exiing a number of titles
including Farety, the entertainment market title in the US, and those in the electronics ard catering markets in the
UK InJanuary 2013, RBI announced that it had completed the sale of RBI Australia RBl s 1n a process to exit
its operations in Spain

Market opportunities

The growing need for high quahity industry data and informatien 1s dniving demand for onhne subscription data
services and providing new opportunities Business-to-business marketing spend has histonically been driven by
levels of corporate profitability, which itself has followed GDP growth, and business investment

Strategic pniorities

RBI's strategic goal is to help bustness protessionals achieve better outcomes with information and decision
support n 1ts individual markets Its areas of strategic focus are further growing the data services businesses,
restructuring the business magazines and advertising-dniven portfolio, developing paid content services 1n key
markets and supporting print franchises through brand extensions and redesign, and driving further organisational
effectiveness

Business model, distribution channels and competition

Across the RBI portfolio, user and subscription revenues now account for 69% of the total business with the
remaming 31% derived from print and online advertising and lead generation RBI electronic revenue streams
now account for 54% of total revenue

Data services are typically sold directly on a subscription or transactional basis Business magazines are mainly
distributed on a paid basis Advertising and lead generation revenues are sold directly or through agents

RB!'s data services and utles compete with a number ot publishers on a service and title-by-title basis including
UBM, McGraw Hill and Wolters Kluwer as well as many mche and privately-owned competitors RB1 competes
for onhine advertising with other business-to-business websites as well as Google and other search engines

2012 financial performance

Improved underlying revenue growth 1n 2012 reflects strong growth from most of our major data Services
businesses, modest growth 1n marketing Solutions and leading brands, and a moderation in the rate of decline 1n
other business magazines & Services In 2012 we continued the transformation of the business, exiting businesses
that no longer fit our strategy We have remained focused on process efficiencies which, 1ogether with portfolio
development benefits, drove a 2 2 percentage pownt margin improvernent

Underlying revenues grew +2%, and underlying adjusted operating profits grew +10%

Double digit growth at BankersAccuty and ICIS helped to dnive growth in Major Data Services, only held back by
continued weakness in US construction data Major Data Services now accounts for approximately 45% of
continuing portfolio pro forma revenues and the majority of Reed Business [nformiation operating profit

Marketing Soluuons delivered modest growth in 2012 and, following the disposal of Tetaljobs and Hotfrog,
accounts for only a small proportion of continuing portfolio revenues

Leading Brands also delivered modest underlying revenue growth as sohid performances in the UK agnculture and
property sectors were offset by advertising declines elsewhere
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Other Business Magazines & Services saw moderaung underlying revenue declines and continued portfolio
reshaping

We have continued to exit businesses that no longer fit our strategy, including Fotaliobs, Marketcast, Varrety, RBI
Australia, RBI] Spain, and a number of small businesses in other markets

[n 2012 we continued to focus on process innovation which, together with the benefits of portfolio development,
helped to increase the adjusted operating profit margin by 2 2 percentage points to an historic high of 18%

These actions have contnibuted to the transformation of Reed Business [nformation’s profile with user and
subscription services now accounting for nearly 70% of revenues, and electronic revente streams now accounting
for over half of the total

In December 2012 we reorganised our management structure to bring LexisNexis Risk Solutions and Reed
Business Information together more closely in order to continue to build out Risk Selutions rapidly growing
business globally We plan to leverage Risk Solutions strength (n data. analytics and technology 1n combination
with Reed Business Information s broader geographic footprint and industry specific databases

2013 outlook

Demand for data & analytics in our market segments continues to grow, although print and advertising revenues
rematn weak In 2013 we expect continued good growth in Major Data Services, stable Leading Brands, and
further benefits from portfolio reshaping

Legal

Serving customers 1 more than 175 countnes, LexisNexts Legal & Professional provides resources and services
that inform decisions, increase productivity and drive new business

Revenues for the year ended 31 December 2012 were £1,610m LexisNexis Legal & Professional 1s headquartered
in New York and has principal operations i the New York area, Chio and North Carolina in the United States,
Toronto mn Canada, London and Paris in Europe, and cities 1n several other countries in Afiica and Asia Pacific It
has 10,400 employees worldwide

LexisNexis Legal & Professional 1s organised 1n market facing groups The most sigruficant are Research &
Litigation Solutions and Business of Law Software Solutions in the LS and LexisNexis International and
LextsNex1s Asia outside the US These are supported by global shared services organisations providing platform
and product development, operational and distribution services, and other support functions

In Research & Litigation Soluttons, electronic information solutions and innovative workflow tools, developed
through close collaboration with customers, help legal and business professionals make better informed decisions
in the practice of law and tn managing their businesses Flagship products for legal research are Lexis com and
Lexis Advance, which provide federal and state statutes and case law, together with analysis and expert
commentanes from sources such as Matthew Bender and Michie and the leading citation service Shepard's, which
advises on the continuing relevance of case law precedents Research solutions also include news and business
information, ranging from daily news to company filings, as well as public records informatien and analytics
Through 1ts litigation selutions, LexisNexis provides lawyers with a suite of tools covering case preparation to
processing and review to trial preparatton LexisNexis partners with law schools to provide services to students as
part of their training

[n 2012, LexisNexis introduced in the US two new releases of Lexts Advance, an mnovative web application
designed to transform how legal professionals conduct research Built on an advanced technology platform, Lexis
Advance allows pnimary researchers within legal and professional organisations to find highly relevant
information more easily and efficiently, helping them to drive better outcomes Future releases will continue to
expand content and add new innovatve tools LexisNexis employs lawyers and trained editers with professional
legal backgrounds who review, annotate and update the legal content to help ensure each document in the
collection 1s current and comprehensive This domain expertise combined with the application of Reed Elsevier
Group plc’s big data’ HPCC technology means LexisNexis is able to update uts entire legal collectton faster and
more efficiently, while also 1dentifying and hnking content, enabling customers to uncover previously
undiscovered relationships between documents

LexisNexis launched Lexis Pracrice Advisor in the US in 2012, a web-based practical gwidance product tatlored
for attorneys who handle transactional matters Additionally, LexisNexis introduced a legal news solution through
the acquisition of Law360 — providing attorneys with breaking news and analysis by practice area to supplement
the legal research process
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In htigation solutions, LexisNexis released Hosted Concordance Evolution which 1s a fully hosted service that
delivers electronic discovery review capabilities on an  on-demand’ basis Sanrcron Solutions was also acquired,
adding trial presentation software to the LexisNexis suite of liigauon offernings

The web-based marketing services group assists law firms in their client development through Lawyers cam and
providing them with website development, search engine optimisation and other web marketing services

LexisNexis Business of Law Software Solutions provides law firms with practice management solutions,
including time and billing systems, case management, cost recovery and document management services

In [nternational markets outside the United States, LexisNexis serves legal, corporate, government, accounting
and academic markets in Europe, Canada, Africa and Asia Pacific with local and international legal, regulatory
and business information The most significant businesses are in the UK, France, Austraha, Canada and South

Afnca

LexisNexis focuses on previding customers with leading collections of content and innovative online solutions to
help legal and business professionals make better decisions more efficiently Penetration of onhne information
services has grown strongly and electronic solutions now account for 58% of revenue outside the US

In the UK, LexisNexis 15 a leading legal information provider offering an unrivalled collection of prnimary and
secondary legislation, case law, expert commentary, and forms and precedents lts extensive portfolio includes a
number of heritage brands Halshury's, Tolleys, Butterworths The content 13 delivered through multiple
formats — from pnint to online, to mobile apps and embedded in customers workflow

In 2012, LexisNexis launched additional modules of the Lexis PSL product suite which provides lawyers a single
destination for thewr practical legal information needs with direct links to the relevant cases, legisiation,
precedents, forms, practical guidance and expert commentary The abihity to dnve measurable customer value was
recognised by the Bntish Legal Awards which has named LexisNexis UK 2012 Supphier of the Year for s
mnovation, authernty and understanding of law firms needs A similar service 1s being launched across other
markets — Australia already has 13 practice area modules and by the end of next year 1t will have more

In France, LexisNexis 1s a leading online provider of information to lawyers, notanes and courts A heritage brand
JurisClasseur and leading authoritaive content 1s provided through multiple formats — lexisnexis fr, mobite and in
print These content sources are, as in the UK, being combined with new content and innovative workflow tools to
develop practical guidance and practice management solutions [n 2012, LexisNexis France launched Lexis 360,
the first semantic search onhine tool combining legal information, practical content and results from the web

Following the success of Lexis for Microsofi Office (LMO) in US markets, a Canadian version was launched in
2012 LMO enables customers to access LexisNexis content and services via add-ins/ toolbars within Microsoft
Word and Outlook

In 2012, LexisNexis Legal & Professional strengthened its positions m Asia through enhanced products created
specifically for legal professionals and practitioners, corporate counsels, legal researchers and government
mstituttons 10 markets including India, China and Japan In Japan, LexisNexis launched Lexis AS ONE, a product
created specifically for corporate compliance and legal professionals to help navigate the complex regulatory
environment

Market opportunities

Longer term growth 1n legal and regulatory markets worldwide 1s dniven by increasing levels of legislation,
regulation, regulatory complexity and litigation, and an increasing number of lawyers Additional market
opportunities are presented by the increasing demand for online information solutions and practice management
tools that improve the quality and productivity of research, deliver better legal outcomes, and improve business
performance Notwithstanding this, legal activity and legal information markets are also influenced by economic
conditions and corporate activity, as has been seen with the dampening impact on demand of the recent global
recession and the somewhat subdued environment that followed tn North Amenca and 1n Europe

Strategic priorities

LexisNexis Legal & Professional s sirategic goal 15 to enable better legal outcomes and be the leading provider of
productivity-enhancing information and information-based workflow solutions in its markets To achieve this
LexisNexis 15 focused on itroducing next generation products and solutions on the global New Lexis platform
and infrastructure, leveraging New Lexis globally to continue to drive print to electronic migration and long-term
tinternational growth, and upgrading operational infrastructure, improving process efficiency and gradually
LMproving margins
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In the US LexisNexis’ focus 15 on the conunuing development of next generation legal research and practice
solutions It 1s also conducting a major upgrade in operations infrastructure and customer service and support
platforms This will provide customers with an integrated and supenor expenence across US legal research,
itigation services, practice management and client development Over the next few years progressive product
introductions, often based on the New Lexis platform, leveraging big data HPCC technology, will combine
advanced technology with enniched content, sephisticated analytics and applications to enable LexisNexis®
customers to make better legal decisions and drive better outcomes for their organisanons and clients

QOutside the US, LexisNexis 1s focused on growing online services and developing further high quality actionable
content and workflow tools, including the development of practical guidance and practice management
applications In 2013, LexisNexis will begin to introduce New Lexis globally Additionally, LexisNexis 1s
focusing on the expansion of its activities in emerging markets

Business model, distmbution channels and competition

LexisNexis Legal & Professional products and services are generally sold directly to law firms and to corporate,
government, accounting and academic customers on a paid subscription basis, with subscnpuions with law firms
often under mulu-year contracts

Principal competitors for LexisNexis in US legal markets are West (Thomson Reuters), CCH (Wolters Kluwer),
and Bloomberg and Factiva (News Corporation) in news and business information Competitors in higation
solutions also include software companies Significant international competitors include Thomson Reuters,
Wolters Kluwer and Factiva

2012 financial performance

Underlying revenue growth was positive despite subdued legal markets in the US and Europe Growth was driven
by electronic revenues, which account for over 75% of total revenues In 2012 we conuinued to release new
products and platforms which have been well received The adjusted operating profit margin improved 1n 2012
reflecting process efficiency

Underlying revenues grew +1%, and underlying adjusted operating profits grew +4%

In the US, usage and sales of online research and litigation solutions to law firms grew despite challenging market
conditions Underlying revenues from government and corporate customers also grew modestly Print revenues
continued to decline, and News & Business revenue declines moderated

LexisNexis introduced new releases of Lexts Advance dunng 2012, combining our deep domain expertise and
content with Reed Elsevier Group ple’s big data HPCC technology to aliow researchers within legal and
professional orgamsations to find highly relevant information more easily and efficiently The new applications
have been well received, with US customer penetration of 45% by 2012 year end

In Europe market condittons remain subdued, with robust growth in online revenue largely offset by declimng
print revenues

The 2012 adjusted operating profit margin improved shightly, with process efficiencies more than offsetting
continued spend on new product development

2013 outlook
We will continue to roll out new products and platforms 1n 2013 and w:ll maintain our focus on process
efficiencies Our customer markets remain subdued, however, hrmting the scope for revenue and profit growth

Exhibitions

Reed Exhibitions” portiolio of exhibiions and conferences serves 44 industry sectors across the Americas,
Europe, the Middle East, Africa and Asia Pacific In 2012, Reed Exhibitions brought together over 6m event
participants from around the world, generating billions of dollars in business for its customers, and boosting the
local economies where the events are hosted

Revenues for the year ended 31 December 2012 were £854m Reed Exhibitions 1s a global business headquartered
in London and has principal offices in Pans, Vienna, Norwalk (Connecticut), $Sdo Paulo, Abu Dhabi, Beijing,
Tokyo, and Sydney Reed Exhibitions has 3,200 employees worldwide

Reed Exhibitions organises market-leading events which are relevant to industry needs, where participants from
around the world meet face to face to do business, to network and to leamn lts exhibitions and conferences
encompass a wide range of sectors They include construction, electronics, energy and alternative energy,
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engineenng, entertainment, gifis and jewellery, healthcare, hospitality, intenor design, logistics, manufacturing,
pharmaceuticals, real estate, recreation, secunity and safety, transport and travel

Market opportunities

Growth n the exhibitions market 1s influenced by both business-to-business marketing spend and business
investment Histoncally, these have been driven by levels of corporate profitability, which in its turn has followed
overall growth in GDP Emerging markets and growth industrnies provide additienal opportunities As some events
are held other than annually, growth in any one year 1s affected by the cycle of non-annual exhibiticns

Strategic priorities

Reed Exhibitions strategic goal 1s to provide market-leading events in growth sectors, especially in higher growth
geographies, enabling exhibitors to target and reach new customers quickly and cost-effectively and providing a
platform for industry participants to do business, to network and to learn To achieve this, Reed Exhibitions 1s
focused on dnving organic growth by leveraging its global sector expertise, by developing new events and by
building out its technology platforms [t s also shapimg the portfolio through a combination of strategic
partnerships and selective acquisitions in high growth sectors and geographies as well as withdrawal from markets
and industries with lower growth prospects

Reed Exhibitions 1s commtted to continually improving customer solutions and experience by implementing best
practice initiatives across geographies and sectors [ts integrated web event platform 1s used by more than 70 per
cent of events and 15 driving both customer satisfaction and msight Using customer insights, Reed Exhibitions has
developed an mnovative product offering which enhances the value proposition for exhibitors by broadening their
options in terms of the type and location of stand they take and the timing of their commitment to the event

In 2012 Reed Exhibitions launched 30 new events These included events which extended the geographical
footprint of the luxury travel brand, ILTM, to Mexico and the high end Prive jewellery brand to Panama Reed
Exhibitions Japan responded to customer demand by introducing several new events, some of which were 1n the
fast moving sectors of cosmetics and high-technology plastics In China, the Nepcon brand was used to launch an
electronics manufacturing event n the western city of Chengdu A key element of building business in China and
Brazil 15 a regional strategy, taking more events to China s second tier cities and cloning events from Sdo Paulo to
Recile in Brazil's tast developing north east Reed Exhibitions now organises over 150 events in emerging
markets

A number of targeted acquisitions were completed during 2012 [n Brazil, Reed Exhibitions took full ownership
ofits joint venture, Reed Exhibitions Alcantara Machado, and expanded into hospitahty (Equipotel) and logistics
(Movimat), cementing Reed Extubitions’ position as the leading exhibition orgamizer 1n Brazil Elsewhere,
acquisitions were made to extend Reed Exhibitions reach in China and 1ts global position in the alternative
energy sector During the year, Reed Exhibitions also established positions in new markets with attractive growth
prospects, including Indonesia, Saudi Arabta and Turkey, where a joint venture has been created with Tuyap, the
country’s leading event organiser

Business model, distraibution channels and competition

The substantial majonity of Reed Exhibitions revenues are from sales of exhibition space The balance includes
conference fees, online and offiine advertising, sponsorship fees and, for some shows, admission charges
Exhibition space 1s sold directly or through local agents where apphcable Reed Exhibitions often works in
collaboration with trade associations, which use the events to promote access for members to domestic and export
markets, and with governments, for whom events can provide important support to stimulate foreign tnvestment
and promote regional and nattonal enterprise

Reed Exhibitions 1s the global market leader inn 2 fragmented industry, holding less than a 10 percent global
market share Other international exhibition organisers include UBM, [nforma 1[R and some of the larger German
Messe, including Messe Frank furt, Messe Dusseldorf and Messe Munich Competition also comes from industry
trade associations and convention centre and exhibition hall owners

2012 financial performance

Exhibitions performed strongly in 2012, driven by strong growth in the US and Japan, moderate growth in

Europe, and double digit growth in most emerging markets We continued to invest throughout the year, launching
30 new shows in total, and we strengthened our position 1n high growth markets through partnerships and targeted
acquisitions

Underlying revenues grew +15% (+7% excluding biennial event cycling), and underlying adjusted operating
profits grew +20%
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In the US and Japan underlying revenues grew strongly, and growth in emerging markets was well mto double
digits [n Europe good growth from a number of core events helped to offset some softness in southern European
markets, resulting 1n moderate underlying revenue growth overall in the region

During 2012 we launched 30 new events, primanly in high growth sectors and geographies, and completed a
number of targeted acquisitions In Brazil we took full ownership of our joint venture, Alcantara Machado, and
expanded nto hospitality and logistics, and in Turkey we created a new joint venture with Tuyap, the country s
leading event organiser

The 2012 adjusted operating profit margins improved by 1 0 percentage ponts, reflecting both process
efficiencies and the positive impact of biennial event cycling

During the year we continued to roll out global platforms and processes across geographies and sectors Qur
mtegrated web event platform 1s now used by more than 70% of events, driving customer satisfaction and
providing customer msight Innovative products and services are enhancing the value proposition for exhibitors by
broadening their range of options

2013 outlook

In 2013 we expect good growth in the US and Japan, limited growth in Europe, and strong growth in other
markets However 2013 will be a biennial cycling out year, reducing underlying revenue growth by 5-6
percentage points

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consohdated financiai statements are prepared i accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the European Umon and as 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board following the
accounting policies shown on pages 56 to 64 The most sigmficant accounting pohicies in determunmg the
financial condition and results of the consolidated businesses, and those requining the most subjective or complex
Judgement, relate to the valuation of goodwill and intangible assets, share based remuneration, pensions, htigation,
taxation and property provisionung Further detail 1s provided 1n the accounting policies on pages 61 to 64

TREASURY POLICIES

Financial instruments are used to finance the Reed Elsevier Group pld’s businesses and to hedge transactions
Reed Elsevier Group ple s businesses do not enter into speculative transactions The main treasury risks faced by
Reed Elsevier Group plc are hquidity nisk, interest rate nsk, foreign currency nisk and credit risk The Board of
Reed Elsevier Group plc agrees polictes (1n line with parent company guidelines) for its business and treasury
centres A summary of these policies 1s given below

Capital and liquidity management

The caputal structure 1s managed to support the objective of Reed Elsevier Group plc's parent companies, Reed
Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV, to maximise long-term sharcholder value through appropriate security of
funding, ready access to debt and capital markets, cost effective borrowing and flexibility to fund business and
acquisition opportunities whilst maintaining appropniate leverage to optimise the cost of capital

Reed Elsevier Group plc uses 1ts cash to fund selective acquisitions and to pay dividends to Reed Elsevier PLC
and Reed Elsevier NV whilst retaining the balance sheet strength to maintain access to the most cost effective
sources of borrowing and to support Reed Elsevier Group plc’s strategic ambition in evolving publishing and
mnformation markets

The balance of long term debt, short term debt and committed bank facilities 15 managed to provide security of
funding, taking into account the cash generation of the business and the uncertain s1ze and timing of acquisition
spend Reed Elsevier Group plc maintains a range of borrowing facilities and debt programmes from a variety of
sources to fund 1ts requirements at short notice and at competitive rates The significance of Reed Elsevier Group
plc’s US operations means that the majonty of debt 1s denominated in US dollars From time to time, Reed
Elsevier Group plc may redeem term debt early or repurchase outstanding debt in the open market depending on
market conditions

There were no changes to Reed Elsevier Group plc’s long term approach to capital and liquidity management
duning the year

Interest rate exposure management
Reed Elsevier Group ple s interest rate exposure management policy 1s aimed at reducing the exposure of the
consolidated businesses to changes in interest rates The proportion of interest expense that is fixed on net debt 15
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determined by reference to the level of net interest cover Reed Elsevier Group ple uses fixed rate term debt,
interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and interest rate options to manage the exposure Interest rate
denivatives are used only to hedge an underlying rnisk and no net market positions are held

At 31 December 2012, 78% of gross borrowings were enther fixed rate or had been fixed through the use of
interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and options

Foreign currency exposure management

Translahion exposures arise on the earnings and net assets of business operations in countnes other than those of
Reed Elsevier Group ple These exposures are hedged, to a significant extent, by a policy of denominating
borrowings 1n currencies where significant translation exposures exist, mast notably US dollars Currency
exposures on transactions denorminated 1n a foreign currency are required to be hedged using forward contracts In
addition, recurring transactions and future investment exposures may be hedged, in advance of becoming
contractual The precise policy differs according to the specific circumstances of the individual businesses Highly
predictable future cash flows may be covered for transactions expected to occur dunng the next 24 months

{50 months for the Scientific, Techntcal & Medical subscription businesses) within limits defined according to the
period before the transaction 1s expected to become contractual Cover takes the form of foreign exchange forward
contracts

As at 31 December 2012, the amount of outstanding foreign exchange cover against future transactions was
£1 2bn (2011 £1 3bn)

Credit nsk

Reed Elsevier Group plc has a credit exposure for the full principal amount of cash and cash equivalents held with
individual counterparties In addition, it has a credit nsk from the potential non performance by counterparties to
financial instruments, this credit nsk normally being restricted to the amounts of any hedge gain and not the full
principal amount being hedged Credit nsks are controlled by momtonng the credit quality of counterparties,
principally licensed commercial banks and investment banks with strong long term credit ratings, and the amounts
outstanding with each of them

Reed Elsevier Group plc has treasury pelicies in place which do not allow concentrations of nsk with individual
counterparties and do not allow sigmficant treasury exposures with counterparties which are rated lower than
A-/A3 by Standard & Poor’s, Moody's and Fitch At 31 December 2012, cash and cash equivalents totaled
£582m, of which 98% was held with banks rated A/A2 or better
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PRINCIPAL RISKS

Reed Elsevier Group plc has established nsk management practices that are embedded into the operations of the
businesses, based on the framework 1n internal control 1ssued by the Commuttee of Sponsoning Organisations of
the Treadway Commussion (COSO) The pnincipal nisks facing Reed Elsevier Group ple, which have been
considered by the Audit Commuttees and Boards, are deseribed below [t 15 not possible toidentify every nsk that
could affect our businesses, and the actions taken to mitigate the nisks descnbed below cannot provide absolute
assurance that a nisk will not matenalise and/or adversely affect our business or financial performance Our nisk
management and 1ntemnal control processes are described in the Structure and Corporate Governance section A
description of the business and a discussion of factors affecting performance 15 set out in the Chief Executive
Otficer s report and Business Review Financial risks are discussed in the Chiet Financial Officer’s report and in
note 18 to the consohdated financial statements Qur approach to managing environmental and other nen financial
nisks s set out in the Business Review and Corporate Responsibility section ot the Directors’ Report Important
specific nisks identified include

EXTERNAL RISKS

Rusk Description and impact Mitigation

Economy and Demand for our products and services may  Our businesses are focused on professional

market conditions be impacted by factors such as the markets which have generally been more
economic environment in the US, Europe resitient in periods of economic downturn
and other major economies, and We deliver information soluttons, many on
government funding a subscription basis, which are important to

our customers ettectiveness and etficiency
We have extended our position in high
growth markets through orgamic new
launches supported by selective small
acquisttions We are disposing of
businesses that no longer fit our strategy at
an accelerated pace

Intellectual Our products and services are largely We actively engage in developing and
property rights comprised of intellectual property content  promoting the legal protection of
delivered through a variety of media We intellectual property nghts In our
rely on trademark, copynright, patent and businesses, subscription contracts with

other intellectual property laws to establish  customers contain provisions as to the use
and protect our proprietary rights in these of proprictary content

products and services We are also vigilant as to the use of our
There 15 a nsk that our propnetary nghts content and, as appropnate, take legal
could be challenged, hmited, invahdated action to challenge itlegal distnbution
or circumvented which may impact sources

demand for and pricing of our products

and services

Data resources A number of our businesses rely We seek as far as possible to have
extensively upon content and data from proprietary content Where content 1s
external sources Data s obtained from supplied to us by third parties, we seek to
public records, governmental authorities, have contracts which provide mutual
customers and other information commercial benefit We also maintain an
compames, including competitors The active dialogue with regulatory authonties
disruption or loss of data sources, because  on privacy and other data related 1ssues, and
of changes 1n the law or because data promote, with others, the responsible use of

suppliers decide not to supply them, could  data
adversely affect our products and services
1f we were unable to arrange for substitute
sources 1n a timely manner or at all _
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Our scientific, technical and medical
(STM) pnmary publications, like those of
most of our competitors, are pubhished on
a paid subscripuon basis There 15
continuous debate in the government,
academic and hibrary communities, which
are the principal customers for our STM
pubhcations, regarding whether such
pubhications should be funded mstead
through fees charged to authors and from
governmental and other subsidies or made
freely available after a period following
publicanon [fthese methods of STM
publishing are widely adopted or
mandated, 1t could adversely affect our
revenue from paid subscription
publicauions

We engage extensively with stakeholders in
the STM community to better understand
their needs and dehver value to them We
are open to serving the STM community
under any payment model that can
sustainably provide researchers with the
cntical information tools that they need
We focus on the mntegrity and quality of
research through the editonal and peer
review process, we Imvest in efficient
eduonal and distnbution platforms and i1n
mnovation 1n platforms and tools to make
content and data more accessible and
actionable, and we ensure vigtlance on
plagiarism and the long term preservation
of research findings

STRATEGIC RISKS
Rusk

Descnption and impact

Mitigation

Customer
acceptance of
products

Competition

Acquisitions

Reed Elsevier Group plc s businesses are
dependent on the continued acceptance by
our customers of our products and services
and the value placed on them Failure to
meet evolving customer needs couid
impact demand for our products and
consequently adversely affect our revenue
Our businesses operate in lughly
competitive markets These markets
continue to change 1n response to
technological innovations, changing
legislation, regulatory changes, the
entrance of new competitors and other
factors Farlure to anticipate market trends
could impact the competitiveness of our
products and services and consequently
adversely affect our revenue

We are focused on the needs and economics
of our customers and seek to provide
content and inngvative solutions that help
them achieve better outcomes and enhance
productivity

To remain competitive we continuously
invest significant resources 1n our products
and services, and the infrastructure to
support them We gain insights into our
markets, evolving customers’ needs and
opportunities, the potentral application of
new technologies and business models, and
the actions of competitors, and these
insights inform our market strategies and

___operational priorities

From time to time we acquire businesses
to strengthen our portfolio If we are
unable to generate the anticipated benefits
such as revenue growth, synergies and/or
cost savings associated with these
acquisiions this could adversely affect
return on invested capital and financial
condition

Our acquisitions are made within the
framework of our overall strategy, which
emphasizes organic development We have
a well formulated process for reviewing and
executing acquisitions and for managing the
post acqusition mntegration This process s
underpinned with clear strategic, financial
and ethical acquisihon cnteria We closely
monttor the performance of acquisitions

OPERATIONAL RISKS
Rusk

Description and impact

Mitigation

Technology faiture

Our businesses are dependent on electronic

platforms and networks, pnimanly the
internet, for delivery of products and
services They could be adversely affected
if our electromic delivery platforms and
networks expenence a significant failure,
mnterruption, or secunty breach
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We have established procedures for the
protection of our technology assets These
include the development of business
continuity plans, mcluding IT disaster
recovery plans and back-up delivery

systems, to reduce business disruption 1n

the event of a major technology failure
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Our businesses maintain databases and
information online, including personal
mformation Breaches of our data security
or failure to comply with apphicable
legislation or regulatory or contractual
requirernents could damage our reputation
and expose us to nisk of loss or iigation
and increased regulation

We have estabhished data privacy and
security programmes We test and re-
evaluate our procedures and controls with
the aim of ensuring that personal data s
protected and that we comply with relevant
legislation, regulatory and contractual
requirements

Our organisational and operational
structures have increased dependency on
outsourced and offshored funcuions Poor
performance or failure of third parties to
whom we have outsourced activities could
adversely affect our business performance,
reputation and financial condition

We select our vendors with care and
establish contractual service levels that we
closely momtor, including through key
performance indicators and targeted
supplier audits We have also developed
business continwity plans to reduce
disruption n the event of a major failure by
a vendor

The implementation and execution of our
strategies and business plans depend on
our ability to recruit, motivate and retain
high quality people We compelte globally
and across bustness sectors for talented
management and skilled individuals,
particularly those with technology and data
analytics capabiliies Inability to recruit,
motivate or retain such people could
adversely affect our business performance

We have well established management
development and talent review

programmes We monitor capability needs
and remuneration schemes are tailored to
attract and motivate the best talent available
at an appropriate level of cost We actively
seek feedback from employees, which feeds
into plans to enhance employee engagement
and motivation

FINANCIAL RISKS
Risk

Description and impact

Mitigation

Pensions

Tax

We operate a number of pension schemes
around the world Historically, the largest
schemes being of the defined benefit type
in the UK, the US and the Netherlands
The assets and obligations associated with
defined benefit pension schemes are
particularly sensitive to changes mn the
market values of assets and the market
related assumptions used to value scheme
Labihittes Adverse changes to inter alia
asset values, discount rates or inflation
could increase future pension costs and
funding requirements o o
Our businesses operate worldwide and our
earmings are subject to taxation in many
differing jurisdictions and at diffening
rates We seek to orgamise our affairrs m a
tax efficient manner, taking account of the
junsdictions 1in which we aperate
However, tax laws that apply to Reed
Elsevier Group plc businesses may be
amended by the relevant authorities or
interpreted differently which could
adversely affect our reported resuits

We have professional management of our
pension schemes and we focus on
maintaming appropnate asset allocation and
plan designs We review our funding
requirements on a regular basis with the
assistance of independent actuanes and
ensure that the funding plans are sufficient
to meet future habilities

We have clear and consistent tax policies
and tax matters are dealt with by a
professional tax function, supported by
external tax advisors We maintain an open
dialogue with the relevant tax authonittes
and are vigilant in ensuring that we comply
with tax legislation
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The Reed Elsevier Group plc conschdated
financial statements are expressed 1n
pounds sterling and are subject to
movements 1n exchange rates on the
translation of the financial information of
businesses whose operational currencies
are other than sterling The US 1s our most
important market and, accordingly,
significant fluctuations n the US doliar
exchange rate could significantly affect
our reported results

Treasury

Macro economic, political and market
conditions may also adversely affect the
availability of short and long term funding,
volatility of interest rates, currency
exchange rates and inflation

Reed Elsevier Group plc s approach to
funding and management of mterest rate
and foreign currency exposures 1s described
on pages 15 and 16 The approach to the
management of financial nsks ts descnbed
n note 18 to the consohidated financial
statements

REPUTATIONAL RISKS

Rusk Description and impact Mitigation

Ethics As a world leading provider of The Reed Elsevier Group plc Code of
professional information solutions to the Ethics and Business Conduct 1s provided to
scientific, technical & medical, nisk every employee and 1s supported by
solutions and business information, legal tramming It encompasses such topics as fair
and exhibitions markets we are expected to  competition, ant:-bribery and human rights
adhere to high standards of independence and 1t encourages open and principled
and ethical conduct A breach of generally  behaviour We also have well established
accepted ethical business standards could processes for reporting and investigating
adversely affect our business performance,  unethical conduct Our major suppliers are
reputation and financial condition required to adopt our Supplier Code of
e Conduct

Environmental Reed Elsevier Group plc and its businesses  We are commiited to reducing these

have an impact on the environment,
principally through the use of energy and
water, waste generation and, in our supply
chain, through our paper use and print and
production technologies Failure to
manage our environmental impact could
adversely affect our reputation

impacts by [imiting resource use and by
efficiently employing sustainable materials
and technologies We require our major
suppliers and contractors to meet the same
objectives We seek to ensure that Reed
Elsevier Group ple s businesses are
compliant with all relevant environmental
regulation

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

Corporate responsibility ensures good management of nsks and opportunities, helps us attract and retain the best
people, and strengthens our corporate reputation [t means performing to the highest commercial and ethical
standards and channeling our knowledge and strengths, as global leaders in our industnies, to make a difference to

soclety

Constant engagement with stakeholders, including shareholders, employees, communities in which we operate
and governments, helps us determine matenal corporate responsibility 1ssues The Reed Elsevier Group ple Board,
semor management and the Corporate Responsibility Forum oversee corresponding objectives and momitor

performance against them

We concentrate on the contributions we make as a business and on good management of the matenial areas that

affect all companies, encompassing

Our unique contributions

We focus on areas where we can make a positive impact on society through our knowledge, resources and skills
This includes umiversal sustainable access to information, advance of science and health, protection of society, and

promotion of the rule of law and justice
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Elsevier the world s leading provider ot scienufic, technical and medical information, plays an umportant role 1n
advancing human welfare and economic progress through 1ts science and health information, which spurs the
diffusion of innovation and enables cntical decision making To ensure access to this information, Elsevier
supports key programmes in places where resources are often scarce Among them 15 Research4Life, a partnership
with United Nations agencies and other publishers This partnership provides core and cutting-edge scientific
information to researchers in more than 100 developing countries As a founding partner, we contribute 50% of
the content available in Research4Life, encompassing all Science Direct content, including approximately 2,000
Elsevier journals and 7,000 books In the year, there were more than 6m Research4Life articie downloads from
ScrenceDirect, including from the Access to Research for Development and Innovauon {ARDI) programme,
which we joined 1n 2012 In addstion to support for ongoing projects, the Elsevier Foundation committed
$650,000 to support libraries, new scholars, and nursing, including a grant to the Medical Libranes
Association/Librartans Without Borders’ e-library training mmitiative 1n Lattn America and Asia, and the
Appalachian Women Scientists programme at Appalachian State Umiversity in the US

LexisNexis Risk Solutions tools and resources help protect soctety LexisNexis Risk Solutions Bridger Insight
XG watch hst screening solution 1s used by over 3,000 financial institutions globally to help ensure comphance
with sanctions regulations The combination of the Bridger Insight XG solution with Reed Business Information s
BankersAccuity Global Watch List, a global data set of sanctioned or high nsk entities, helps customers ensure
proactive comphance LexisNexis Risk Solutions employees created the Automated Delivery of Alerts on Missing
Children (ADAM) programme which assists in the safe recovery of muissing children ADAM alerts circulate
mussing child posters — more than 2 1m 1n 2012 - o police, news media, schools, businesses, medical centres and
other recipients within a specific geographic search area Since launching in 2000, 135 children have been located,
including nine in 2012

Reed Business Information (RBI) uses the power of its brands to aid communities [CIS, providing news and
market mtelligence for the chemucals, energy and fertiliser sectors, held its ninth Innovation Awards 1n 2012 to
reward innovation 1n the chemmicals industry France s Rhodia won Best Innovation for Sustamability for creating
an urban mine” — a process to recover scarce metallic elements from consumer waste Over the past two years,
Hawdressers Journal has parinered with John Frieda to build awareness of HAIRraising, a chanty which has raised
more than £1m 0 support of London’s Great Ormond Street Children s Hospital, through its publications, sites
and shows

LexisNexis Legal & Professional promotes justice through its products and services [ts Rule of Law Resource
Center 15 a free online community covenng topics like human nghts, protecting minonty commumities and anti-
human trafficking In the year, staff in the UK developed the free Human Trafficking Awareness Index, which
uses the Nexis news service to highlight emerging trends within and across national borders to help campaigners
in their efforts to combat trafficking Among the ways LexisNexis expanded pro bono partnerships in 2012, was
through a new collaboration with the Lex Mundi Pro Bono Foundation to promote law firm engagement with
social entrepreneurs working around the world to improve the lives of the poor and disenfranchised

Reed Exhibitions’ trade shows provide plattorms for suppotting our corporate responsibility focus areas At the
2012 World Travel Market, 1ts global event for the travel industry, Reed Exhibitions hosted World Responsible
Tounsm Day with events available to the show’s more than 40,000 attendees on topics ranging {rom poverty
reduction to wildlife protection and reducing greenhouse gas emissions Over the last mine years, Reed Exhibitions
has given free space at the London Book Fair to Book Aid Interational, which annually provides more than
500,000 books — including those donated from across Reed Elsevier Group plc — to readers in the developing
world, enabling the charity to engage with a wide range of potential book and financial donors In 2012, the
[nternational Vision Expo & Conference expanded offerings for optometry students through a new mentor
programme, in addition to prowviding free entry, 2 job fair, and travel grants 1o students from the 22 schools of the
Amernican Optometnic Student Association

Drawing on expertise across Reed Elsevier Group plc, in 2012 we awarded prizes in the second Reed Elsevier
Group ple Environmental Challenge to projects that improve sustainable access to water and sanitation where 1t 1s
presently at risk We offered access to relevant products from our busiesses to nearly 600 registrants from more
than 50 countrnes and saw a 40% ncrease in proposals over 2011 The winner of the $50,000 first pnize was the
Centre for Affordable Water and Sanitation Technology for a project that modifies biosand filters with iron
particles in order 1o remove water contaminants, including viruses, to bring safe dnnking water to rural villages in
Nepal Over a penod of two years, 150 filters will be instalted Second prize of $25,000 went to Sanergy to extend
a pilot project in Kenya that ensures accessible and affordable hygienic sanitation through a network of small-
scale, high quality sanitauon centres Sanergy toilets are franchised to local entrepreneurs and stimulate the
economy by turning waste nto products, such as orgamic fertiliser sold to farms In 2012, we expanded our
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alternative energy portfolio to tnclude new producis such as Elsevier s Comprehensive Renewable Energy and
Reed Exhibitions  Asia Future Energy Forum and Exhibition

Governance

The Reed Elsevier Group plc Code of Ethics and Business Conduct (Code) 1s disseminated to every employee,
setting the standard for our corporate and individual conduct Encompassing topics such as fair competition, anti-
bribery, and human nights, 1t encourages open and pnncipled behaviour In 2012, we ensured that 100% of
employees completed traning on the Code within 90 days of starting their employment We provided refresher
courses on competition laws and data privacy and secunity to staff that had completed courses previously, with
100% completion by year end All US managers have completed a course on preventing workplace harassment

We continued to enhance bnbery law comphance efforts, including compliance with the UK Brnibery Act and US
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, by ensuring 100% of employees had completed online anti-bribery tramng at least
once by the close of 2012, and relling it out to new employees on an ongoing basts We supplement online
tramning wrth in-person sesstons on topics as required, including training on competition law and preventing
bribery for employees in ligher risk positions and locations Each of our businesses have designated Preventing
Bribery Working Groups, which are engaged in implementing and overseeing comphiance activities Our policies,
traiming and other matenals are developed to help ensure compliance with laws globally We also undertake
intermediary due diligence and monitoring as part of routine process

We maintain a Record Management Policy, Record Retention Schedule and related resources to help employees
properly manage company records, setting out what, why, how, and for how long, different types of records must
be retained and disposed of In the year, we 15sued the policy to all employees in English-speaking countries

Reed Elsevier Group plc 15 a signatory of the United Nations Global Compact (UNGC) - businesses must align
their governance and operations with ten principles related to human nghts, labour, environment and anti-
corruption We demonstrated leadershup 1n 2012 by serving on the UNGC Adwvisory Group for the UK and the
UNGC Supply Chain Advisory Group We were also part of the CEO Water Mandate Steenng Group and
represented the mitiative on the board of the Alliance for Water Stewardship We participated in the UNGC’s
Corporate Sustamnabihty Forum m Rio de Janeiro, where a new Water Action Hub was launched, for which we are
providing a free news feed with water basin information The UNGC judged our 2012 Communication on
Progress, required of signatories each year, to have attained Advanced level In the year, we provided video
content on the UNGC for lawyers and held webinars on the UNGC for our suppliers

People

Our 30,200 pecple are our strength Our workforce 15 53% female and 47% male, with an average length of
service of 9 years

The Reed Elsevier Group plc Nominations Committee considers the knowledge, experience and background of
individual Board directors By year end 2012, women made up 20% of the members of the Reed Elsevier Group
plc Board Following the Annual General Meetings to be held 11 2013 we expect 1s percentage to have tncreased
to 22%, reaching the goals we announced 1n 2011

The Reed Elsevier Group plc Diversity and Inclusion (D&I) Statement articulates our commitment to a diverse
workforce and environment that respects individuals and their contributions, regardless of their gender, race or
other characteristics Our D&I Strategy 1s focused on translating the Statement into practical action Among 1ts
commitments 1 maintaining a D&I Advisory Group comprised of a senior business and HR leader from each
business unit, supported by a broader D&I Working Group Together with D&I specialists, Plunibus, we carried
out a D&I training pilot in 2012 involving 78 staff from all business units Course content included making the
business case for D& on ethical, econormc, regulatory, and reputational grounds We encourage affinity groups,
like women s forums, which provide support and mentoring and encourage community involvement

In 2012, we held a stakeholder session with our CR Forum (chaired by a member of senior management and
mvolving individuals representing all key business functions and businesses) on diversity and incluston for media
companies and Reed Elsevier Group plc Participants included the head of diversity and corporate social
responsibility for one of our customers, the CEQO of the Association of Women 1n Science, the head of talent for
one of our business units, a diversity expert, and the convener of the Media CSR Forum As a member of ID
(Inclusion and Diversity) 100, a netwerk for sharing D&I knowledge among FTSE100 peers, we hosted a panel on
boardroom diversity with executive search firm leaders Egen Zehnder, JCA Group and the Zygos Partnership [n
2012, we conducted a global Employee Opinion Survey (EOS) to understand how our people feel about Reed
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Elsevter Group plc We donated $1 for every completed survey to our global fundraising effort for Plan UK
focused on education for girls, and had a 77% participation rate Overall, employees rate Reed Elsevier Group plc
as a company that employs strong, etiucal principles 1n 1ts business practices with improved scores since the last
survey in 2009 1n overall satisfaction, innovation and customer focus We are priontising areas 1dentified in the
EOS that remained flat with local action plans led by managers

Our employees have the nght to a healthy and safe workplace as outlined in the Reed Elsevier Group plc Health
and Safety Policy We concentrate on areas of greatest risk, for example, warehouses, events and exhibitions
However, as a primanly office-based company, our key 1mpact areas are posture-related muscular strains,
ships/trips and falls To reduce our seventy rate {lost days per 200,000 hours worked}, we conduct risk
assessments, and work with a third party in the US to assign a nurse case manager to each complex or severe
claim We have achieved a 70% reduction in the seventy rate since 2008

In the US, where we have our largest concentration of employees, we expanded the REACH programme, which
promotes workplace wellbeing through health screemings, online assessments, stress awareness training, and
weight loss and smoking cessation programmes, with financial incentives for participation We captured wellbeing
metrics including the number of people who attended a personal wellness screening which increased to 34% of US
employees. There was a 40% quut rate among employees who undertook a stop smoking course The resulting data
15 helping us understand the health status of our people to better target wellness programmes

Our annual re fit2win global wellbeing competition, which encourages employees to establish fitness teams to
compete for cash pnzes for the charities of their choice, continued to grow in 2012 116 teams (84 1in 201 1) took
part across Reed Elsevier Group plc and ran, walked, cycled and swam a total of 106,271 muiles/171,027
kilometres, a 77% ncrease over 2011

Customers

In 2012, we surveyed more than 300,000 customers through Net Promoter Score (measuring customer loyalty)
and business dashboard programmes Ths allows us to deepen understanding of their needs and further drives
forward a customer-centne culture across Reed Elsevier Group plc Results, reviewed by the CEQ and senior
managers and communicated to staff, illununate where we are doing well and where we must do better To aid
colleagues who work with customers, m 2012 we began a CR Sales Academy to help them aruculate our
commitment to corporate responsibtlity and the benefits 1t provides to our business such as reducing nsk and
strengthentng our corporate reputation Sessions included our approach to corporate responsibiiuty, the
environment, accessibility, and governance Content 1s made available to all staff through the Corporate
Responsibility section of the corporate intranet

In the year, we consulted more widely on the Reed Elsevier Group ple Editonial Policy, including with our
European Works Council, further strengthening provisions such as editonial independence as a result The
Editorial Policy stipulates our responsibility to make clear distinctions between fact and opinion and user-
generated or other content and encourages dialogue on our content, including through social media We made 1t
available to all staff through the corporate intranet and pubhcly available through the Reed Elsevier website

We are commutted 1o improving access to our products and services for all users, regardless of physical ability In
2012, we drafted a Reed Elsevier Group ple Accessibility Policy that expresses our desire to lead the industry in
providing accessibility solutions to customers and contribute to international standards with products that are
perceivable, operable, understandable, and robust 1n the year, members of the Accessibility Working Group
logged 76 projecis 1n accessibility undertaken during the course of the year Elsevier s Global Books Digutal
Archive fulfilled 4,000 disability requests, 50% of them through AccessText org, a service it helped establish

Community

RE Cares, our global commumity programme, promotes education for disadvantaged young people aligned with
our unique contributions as a business, and allows staff up to two days off per year for their own communuty
work We donated £2 5m in cash (including through matching gifis) and the equivalent of£2 8m in products,
services and staff tme 1 2012 30% of emplayees were engaged 1n volunteenng through RE Cares and we
reached 20,200 disadvantaged young people through volunteering, in-kind, and cash donations

An mternational network of more than 180 RE Cares Champions engage colleagues throughout the year in
activities such as the RE Cares Challenge, which rewards business-sponsored community engagement

Each September, we hold RE Cares Month to celebrate our community activities, with volunteering spotlighted on
Global RE Cares Day duning the month In 2012, activities mvolved more than 3,300 staff in local community
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projects Among them, LexisNexs Rigsk Solutions held the Windward Challenge, a Skm race in support of
KaBoom' which provides recreational spaces for children, involving more than 500 staff and members of the
communtty

During the month we held our annual global book drive yielding more than 12,000 books for local and developing
world readers, and announced the winners of the second Recognising Those Who Care Awards to highlight the
contnibutions to RE Cares of eight individuals and four RE Cares teams Individual winners from across the
business took part in visits to projects we are supporting through Plan International 1n Peru and Indta led by
Youngsuk YS Cht, Reed Elsevier Group ple s Director of Corporate Aftairs, and Hugo Zhang, Reed Elsevier
Group plc China’s Director of Government Affairs The winning teams were from Elsevier Amsterdam,
LexisNexis Dayton, LexisNexis New York, and Reed Exhibitions Norwalk who won cash prnizes for their chosen
charities

Supply management

We require our supphers to meet the high standards we set for ourselves Qur Suppher Code of Conduct stipulates

adherence to all laws and best practice in areas such as human nights, labour and the environment Through our

Socially Responsible Supplier (SRS) database, in 2012 we tracked 477 critical, preferred and strategic suppliers,

and those we deem high risk according to criteria from the Corporate Executive Board’s Global Country Analysis

Support Tool, human trafficking data from the US State Department and rankings in the Environmental \
Performance Index produced by Yale University and Columbia University The tracking list changes year on year

based on the number of suppliers we do business with who meet the required criterta We started 2012 with 47%

of suppliers on the SRS tracking list as signatonies to the Supplier Code and reached 75% by year end We have

embedded signing the Supplier Code into our e-sourcing tool as one of the critena for doing business with us and

have an additional 1,925 signed codes

Specialist supply chain auditors, Intertek, undertook 52 external audits for 2012 of high nsk supphers Any
incidence of Supphier Code non-comphance 1dentified 1n the audit process triggers a corrective action plan with
supplier remediation required on all 1ssues

To engage suppliers on key 1ssues, we broadened our Socially Responsible Supplier Academy covering the audit
process, environmental management, diversity and inclusion, community engagement, preventing bribery, and the
UN Global Compact, among other topics

Environment

In 2012, we launched our updated environmental targets following extensive consultation with stakeholders Our
targets reflect our performance and key 1ssues and can be found along with full environmental performance details
in the 2012 Corporate Responsibility Report at reporting reedelsevier com/cri2

We attained 33% of our electricity from renewable sources in the year and were ranked as the 2012 sector leader
in the Carbon Disclosure Project, representing 655 investors with $78,000bn under management

Our Environmental Champions network, employee-led Green Teams, and engagement through networks such as
Publishers Database for Responsible Ethical Paper Sourcing, inform management plans to address our
environmental impact Among them 1s the Reed Elsevier Group ple Environmental Standards programme, which
sets benchmark performance levels and inspires green competition among offices In 2012, 69 sites (58% of key
locations) achieved five or more standards attaining green status Reed Elsevier Group plc s CFO wrote o all staff
recognising their achievement on World Environment Day and also identified Green Heroes across the company,
nominated by their peers for their environmental efforts

We have a positive environmental impact through our environmental publications and services which spread good
practice, encourage debate, and aid researchers and decision makers The most recent results from independent
Market Analysis System show our share of citations in environmental science represented 33% of the total market,
and 71% in energy and fuels In 2012, CEO Enk Engstrom signed a CEQ Water Mandate Commumnique calling on
government leaders attending the Rio + 20 Earth Summut to priontise sustainable water

24




DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS

During the year the Reed Elsevier Group plc Board consisted of two executive directors Erik Engstrom — Chief
Executive Officer and Mark Armour — Chief Financial officer Mark Armour stepped dewn as Chief Financial
Officer in November 2012 and retired from the Reed Elsevier Group ple Board in December 2012

Board changes
Changes during the year in the composiuon of the Board of Reed Elsevier Group plc are set out in the table below

Foliowing a recommendation from the Nominations Commuttee, Duncan Palmer joined Reed Elsevier Group plc
in August 2012 and was appointed Chief Financial Officer in November 2012 During the year, the Reed Elsevier
Group plc Board consisted of eight independent non-executive directors Anthony Habgood {Chairman), Mark
Elliott, Robert Polet, Sir David Reid, Adnan Hennah, Lisa Hook and Ben van der Veer Following a
recommendation from the Nominations Commuttee, Linda Sanford was appointed as a2 Non-Executive director in
December 2012 Mark Elliott and Sir David Reid will retire as Non-Executive directors following the conclusion
of the Annual General Meetings in April 2013, afier ten vears service and will not seek re-election Taking into
account the assessment by the Corporate Governance Commuttee of the qualifications, performance and
effectiveness of each individual director seeking re-election, the Board have accepted a recommendation from the
Nominations Commuttee that each director be proposed for re-election at the Annual General Meeting

BOARD ATTENDANCE Date of Number of

appomtment (cessatien) meetings held Number of
Members during the year whilst a director ~ meetings atiended
Duncan Palmer 3 3
Mark Armour (December 2012) 7 6
Mark Elhott 7 6
Enk Engstrom 7 7
Anthony Habgood 7 7
Adnan Hennah 7 6
Ltsa Hook 7 7
Robert Polet 7 7
Sir David Reid 7 4
Linda Sanford December 2012 1 1
Ben van der Veer 7 7
" Duncan Palmer was appointed to the Board of Reed Elsevier Group plc on 25 September 2012 as Chief Financial Officer Designate  He was

appointed Chief Financial Officer on 15 November 2012

Board induction and information

Following appointment and as required, Directors receive traiming appropniate o their level of expenience and
knowledge This includes the provision of a tailored induction programme so as to provide newly appointed
Directors with information about the Reed Elsevier Group ple businesses and other relevant information to assist
them 1 performing their dunes Non-Executive Directors are encouraged to visnt the Reed Elsevier Group ple
businesses to meet management and senior staff

All Directors have full and nmely access to the information required to discharge their responsibilities fully and
efficiently They have access to the services of the respective Company Secretaries, other members of Reed
Elsevier Group plc s management and staff, and external advisors Directors may take independent professional
advice in the furtherance of their duties, at the relevant company's expense

In addition to scheduled board and board committee meeungs held during the year, the Directors attend other
meetings and site visits Where a Director 15 unable to attend a board or board commuttee meeting he or she 1s
provided with all relevant papers and information relating to that meeting and 1s able to discuss 1ssues ansing with
the respective chairman and other board and commuttee members
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Board commuttees

[n accordance with the principles of good corporate governance, the following commuttees have been established
by the Board All of the commuttees have written terms of reference, which are published on the Reed Elsevier
website, www reedelsevier com Membership of each commuttee and attendance duning the year are set out below

Audit Commitiee

Reed Elsevier Group plc have established an Audit Commuttee The Comrmittee comprises only independent Non-
Executive Directors The Commuttee 1s chaired by Ben van der Veer The other members of the Commuttee are
Adnan Hennah, Linda Sanford (since December 2012) and Sir David Reid Lisa Hook was a member until May
2012

AUDII COMMITTELR Date of Number of

appointment (cessation) meetings held Number of
Members during the year whilst a director  meetings attended
Ben van der Veer (Committee Chairman) 5 s
Adrnan Hennah 5 4
Lisa Hook (May 2012) 2 2
Sir David Reid 3 3
Linda Sanford" December 2012 - -

* 1inda Sanford was appointed to the Committee after the meetings held m December 2012

The main activities of the Commuttee during the year are set out in written terms of reference and include

(1) to monitor the integnity of the financial statements of the Company, and any formal announcements relating to
the Company s financial performance, reviewing significant financial reporting judgements contained theren,

(t1) to review the Company s internal financial controls and the Company’s internal control and risk management
Systems,

{11) to momitor and review the effectiveness of the Company”s mtemnal audit function,

{1v) to make recommendations in relation to the appointment of the external auditor and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor,

(v} to review and moniter the external auditor s independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process, taking into consideration relevant professional and regulatory requirements, and

(v1) to develop and recommend policy on the engagement of the external auditor to supply non audit services,
taking into account relevant ethical guidance regarding the provision of non audit services by the extemal audit
firm, and to momtor compliance

The Commuttee reports to the Board on 1ts activities identifying any matters in respect of which 1t considers that
action or improvement 15 needed and making recommendations as to the steps to be taken

The Commuttee has explicit authority to investigate any matters within its terms of reference and has access to all
resources and information that 1t may require for this purpose The Committee 1s entitled to obtain legal and other
independent professional advice and has the authority to approve all fees payable to such advisers

The Chief Financial Officer, Group Financial Controller, Chief Risk Officer and Director of Internal Audit, and
senior representatives of the external auditors attend meetings of the Audit Commuttee

The Commutiee met five times during the year Ben van der Veer and Sir David Reed attended ali five meetings
Adnan Hennah attended four meetings and Lisa Hook attended two meetings
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Remuneration Committee

The Board of Reed Elsevier Group pic has established a Remuneration Commuttee, which 1s responsible for
considermg the remuneration of the Executive Directors of the company The Commuttee comprises only
Non- Executive Directors and 1s chaired by Mark Elliott The other members of the Committee are Anthony
Habgood, Lisa Hook (since May 2012}, Robert Polet and Sir David Rexd

REMUNERATION COMMITTEL Date of Number of

appomtment (cessation) meetings held Number of
Members during the year whilst a director  meetings attended
Mark Elhott (Committee Chairman) 5 5
Anthony Habgood 5 5
Lisa Hook May 2012 3 3
Robert Polet 5 5
Sir David Reid 5 5

The Commuttee met five imes during the year Mark Elhott, Anthony Habgood, Robert Polet and Sir David Reid
attended all five meetings and Lisa Hook (since May 2012) attended three meetings

A Directors’ Remuneration Report, which has been approved by the Board of Reed Elsevier Group plc, appears
on page 30 to 49 This report also serves as disclosure of the Directors’ remuneration policy, and the remuneration
of the Directors and their interests in the shares of the two parent companies, Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed
Elsevier NV

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Internal Control

Reed Elsevier Group plc has an established framework of procedures and internal controls, with which the
management of each business 1s required to comply Group businesses are required to maintain systems of internal
control which are appropriate to the nature and scale of their activities and address all significant operational and
financial nsks that they face

The Board of Reed Elsevier Group plc has adopted a schedule of matters that are required to be brought to 1t for
decision Reed Elsevier Group plc has a Code of Ethics and Business Conduct that provides a guide for achieving
1ts business goals and requires officers and employees to behave 1n an open, honest, ethical and principled
manner The Code also outhnes conftdential procedures enabling employees to report any concerns about
compliance, or about Reed Elsevier Group plc s financial reporting practice The Code 1s pubhshed on the Reed
Elsevier website, www reedelsevier com

Each division has identified and evaluated its major risks, the controls in place to manage those risks and the
levels of residual risk accepted Risk management and control procedures are embedded into the operations of the
business and include the monitoring of progress n areas for improvement that come to management and board
attention The principal nsks facing Reed Elsevier Group plc are set out on pages 17 to 20

The major nsks facing the Reed Elsevier Group plc businesses are considered by the Board Reed Elsevier Group
ple s Chief Risk Officer 1s responsible for providing regular reports to the Board and Audit Commttee Working
closely with business management and with the central functions, the role of the Chief Risk Officer 1s to ensure
that Reed Elsevier Group plc 1s managing its business risks effectively and 1n a coordinated manner across the
business with clarity on the respective responsibilities and interdependencies Litigation and other legal regulatory
matters are managed by legal directors 1n Europe and the United States

The Reed Elsevier Group plc Audit Commuttee receives regular reports on the identification and management of
material risks and reviews these reports The Audin Commuttee also receives regular reports from both internal and
external auditors on internal control and risk management matters in addition, each division :s required, at the end
of the financial year, to review the effectiveness of internal controls and nsk management and report its findings
on a detailed basis to the management of Reed Elsevier Group ple These reports are summansed and, as part of
the annual review of effectiveness, submitted to the Audit Commuttee of Reed Elsevier Group ple The Chairman
of the Audit Commuttee reports to the Board on any sigmficant internal control matters anstng
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Annual review

As part of the year-end procedures, the Audit Committee and Board review the effectiveness of the systems of
internal control and risk management during the last financial year The objective of these systems 1s to manage,
rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives Accordingly, they can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against matenal misstatement or loss The Board has confirmed, subject to
the above, that as regards financial reporting risks, the respective nsk management and control systems provide
reasonable assurance against material inaccuracies or loss and have functioned properly during the year

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of Reed Elsevier Group plc are required to prepare financial statements as at the end of each
financial period, 1n accordance with applicable law and regulations, which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs, and of the profit or loss, of the respective compamies and their subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
They are responsible for maintaining proper accounting records, for safeguarding assets, and for taking reasonable
steps to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities The Directors are also responsible for selecting suttable
accounting policies and applying them on a consistent basis, making judgements and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable

Applicable accounting standards have been followed and the Reed Elsevier Group plc consolidated financial
statements, which are the responsibihty of the Directors, are prepared using accounting policies which comply
with International Financial Reporting Standards

GOING CONCERN

The Directors of Reed Elsevier Group ple, having made appropnate enquines, consider that adequate resources
exist for the group to continue 1n operational existence for the foreseeable future and that, therefore, 1t 1s
appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the 2012 financial statements [nreaching this
conclusion, the Directors have had due regard to the financial position as at 31 December 2012, the strong free
cash flow of the group, the ability to access capital markets and the principal risks facing the group

A commentary on the group’s cash flow, financial position and liquidity for the year ended 31 December 2012 1s
set out it the Director’s Report Reed Elsevier Group plc s policies on ligmdity capital management and
management of risks relating to interest rate, foreign exchange and credit exposures are set out in the Director’s
Report Further information on hiquidity can be found in note 18 of the consolidated financial statements The
principal risks facing the group are set out wn the Director s Report

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

As part of the process of approving the company s 2012 financial statements, the Directors have taken steps
pursuant to section 418(2) of the Compamies Act 2006 to ensure that they are aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the company s auditor 1s aware of that information In that context, so far as the
Directors are aware, there 15 no relevant audit information of which the company s auditor 15 unaware

POLITICAL DONATIONS

Reed Elsevier Group pic does not make donations to EU political orgamisations or incur EU pelitical expenditure
In the United States, Reed Elsevier Group plc companies donated £57,2¢1 (2011 £53,550) to political
orgamisations In line with federal regulations, these donations were not made at federal level, but only to
candidates and political parties at the state and local levels

CREDITOR PAYMENT POLICY

Reed Elsevier Group plc companies agree terms and conditions for business transactions with suppliers including
the terms of payment Reed Elsevier Group plc does not operate a standard code 1n respect of payments to
supplters The average ume taken to pay suppliers duning the year was between 30 and 45 days (2011 between
30 and 45 days)
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AUDITOR

Resoluttons for the re-appointment of Deloitte LLP as auditor of the Company and authonsing the Directors to fix
their remuneration will be submitted to the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

By Order of the Board

Henm Registered office

Secretary 1-3 Strand
27 February 2013 London, WC2N SJR
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Ths report describes how Reed Elsevier Group plc applies the principles of good governance relating to directors
remuneratton  This report has been prepared by the Remuneration Commuttee of Reed Elsevier Group plc (the
Commuttee) 1n accordance with regulations made under the Companies Act 2006 This report has been approved
by the board of Reed Elsevier Group plc

The audited parts of the report

In comphance with the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups {Accounts and Reports) Regulations
2008, the following elements of this report have been audited the table entitled “Transfer values of accrued
penston benefits on page 42, the tables showing  Aggregate emoluments” and Individual fees of non-executive
directors on page 43, the tables on Individual emoluments of executive directors and Directors” shareholdings
i1 Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV on pages 45 to 46, and the section Share-based awards in Reed
Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV’ on pages 46 to 48

Constitution

Throughout 2012, the Commuttee consisted of independent non-executive directors, as set out i the structure and
corporate governance report, and the chairman of Reed Elsevier Group ple Details of Commttee members and
meeting attendance are contained in the Director’s Report The Chief Legal Officer & Company Secretary also
attends the meetings in hus capacity as secretary to the Commuttee At the invitation of the Committee Chairman,
the CEO of Reed Elsevier Group plc attends appropriate parts of the meetings The CEQ of Reed Elsevier Group
plc 15 not 1n attendance during discussions pertaining to his remuneration

The Global Human Resources Director provided material advice to the commuttee during the year

Advisers

Towers Watson acted as external advisers to the commuttee throughout 2012 and also provided market data and
data analysis Towers Watson also provided actuanal and other human resources consultancy services directly to
some Reed Elsevier Group plc companies

The imdividual consultants involved 1n advising the commttee do not provide advice to the executive directors or
act on their behalf

Terms of reference
The commuittee’s responsibilities are as follows

Executive directors
*  to establish the remuneration policy for the executive directors and determine the remuneration in all its
forms (including pensions and share plan participation), the terms of the service contracts and all other
terms and condittons of employment of the executive directors of Reed Elsevier Group plc and on the
advice of the Chatrman, the remuneration terms of the CEQ, and

* to approve any compensation or termination payments made to executive directors of Reed Elsevier
Group plc

Sernior management
* on the advice of the CEO, to approve the remuneration policy of other semor leaders and of the Chref
Legal Officer and Company Secretary, and

* to monitor the level and structure of remuneration for this group of executives
Reed Elsevier Group plc Chairman

+ on the advice of the Semor [ndependent Director, to determine the remuneration of the Reed Elsevier
Group plc Chairman
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General
* toreview the ongoing appropnateness and relevance of the remuneration policy, in particular the
performance-related elements and their compatibility with risk polictes and systems,

* toreview and recommend amendments to the rules of all share-based incentive plans including the
formulation of suitable performance conditions for share-based awards and options, and where necessary,
to submut them for approval by shareholders,

* 1o maintain an open and ongoing dialogue with institutional investors on major remuneration policy
1ssues, and

¢ to discharge its duties with due regard to any published corporate governance guidelines, codes or
recommendations regarding the remuneration of directors of hsted companies and formation and
operation of share schemes which the commuttee considers relevant or appropnate including, but not
lirmited to, the UK and Dutch Corporate Governance codes

A copy of the terms of reference of the commuttee can be found on the Reed Elsevier website,
www reedelsevier com

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Remuneration philosephy and policy

The context for Reed Elsevier Group ple’s remuneration policy and practices 1s set by the needs of a global
business with business areas that operate internationally by line of business Furthermore, the market listings of
Reed Elsevier Group plc’s parent companies in London and Amsterdam, combined with the majonty of its
employees being based in the US, provides a particular set of challenges in the design and operation of
remuneration policy

Qur remuneration philosophy

Reed Elsevier Group ple’s guiding remuneration philosophy tor senior executives 1s based on the following
precepts

e  Performance-related compensation with demanding performance standards

o  Creation of shareholder value

¢ Competitive remuneration opportunity to attract and retain the best executive talent from anywhere in the
world

¢ A balanced mix of remuneration between fixed and vaniable elements, and annual and longer-term
performance

*  Aligning the interests of executive directors with shareholders and other stakeholders

¢ Operating the company conststent with long-term sustamability

Our remuneration policy
[n line with this guiding philosophy, our remuneration policy 1s descnbed below

¢ Reed Elsevier Group plc aims to provide a total remuneration package that 1s able to attract and retain the
best executive taient from anywhere 1n the world, at an appropriate level of cost

* Inreaching decisions on executive remuneration, the Commuttee takes into account the remuneration
arrangements and levels of increase applicable to senior management and Reed Elsevier Group plc
employees generally The Commuttee takes into account the salary increases for the employee population
worldwide as one of the inputs when determuning salary increases for directors

¢  The Commuttee considers the social, governance, and environmental implications of 1ts decisions,
particularly when setting and assessing performance objectives and targets, and seeks to ensure that
Incentives are consistent with the appropriate management of risk and corporate sustainability

*  Total targeted remuneration of senior executives will be competitive with that of executives in simlar
positions in comparable companies, which includes globai sector peers and companies of simular scale
and international complexity

* Competitiveness 1s assessed 1n terms of total remuneration (1 e salary, annual and multi-year incentives
and benefits)
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¢ The intention 15 to provide total remuneration that reflects sustained individual and business
performance, i ¢ median performance will be rewarded by total remuneration that 1s posttioned around
the median of relevant market data and upper quartile performance by upper quartile total remuneration

¢ The Commuttee will consider all available discretion to claw back any payouts made, or to reduce
unvested awards, on the basis of materially misstated data The rules of all incentive plans provide for
specific provisions in this regard

¢  The Commuttee considers 1t important to encourage personal mnvestment and ongoing holding of Reed
Elsevier PLC and/or Reed Elsevier NV secunties among the sentor executive population Executive
directors and other semor executives are subject to mintmum shareholding requirements

How the performance measures in the incentives link to our business strategy

Reed Elsevier Group plc s strategic focus 1s on transformung its core business through organic investment and the
organtc build out of new products 1nto adjacent markets and geographies, supplemented by selective portfolhio
acquisitions and divestments

The performance related components of the executive directors’ multi-year incentives support this strategy by
focusing on return on capital, returns to shareholders and sustained earnings growth

Furthermore, our annual incentive plan ts focused on operational excellence as measured by the financial
measures of revenue, profit and cash generation In addition, a significant portion of the annual benus s
dependent upon the achievement of annual key performance objectives (KPOs) that create a platform for
sustainable future performance These KPOs align with Reed Elsevier Group ple s strategie plans and range from
the delivery of specific projects and the achievement of customer metrics or efficiency targets to corporate and
social responsibility objectives Each executive director has at least one sustammability or corporate responstbility
objective

The Commuttee believes that one of the main drnivers of long-term shareholder value 15 sustamed growth in
profitability, underpinned by appropriate capital discipline Therefore, growth in earnings per share and targeted
return on invested capital are utihised 1n our multui-year incentives

We aim to set challenging performance targets as demonstrated by the fact that there has been no vesting for
directors under any of our multi-year incentives since the awards granted 1n 2006 vested m 2009, and no directors’
bonuses paid out above target since 2009

The balance between fixed and performance-related pay

We aim to provide each executive director with an annual total remuneration package comprising fixed and
variable pay with the majority of an executive director’s total remuneration package linked to performance At
target performance, incentive pay makes up approximately 70% of the total remuneration package This 1s shown
for the CEO in the pre chart below The core components of the current total remuneration package are described
n detail 1n the remainder of this report

20% Fixed pay elements 30%
W Salary

H Peaziens and
other benefits

50% 10% Variable pay elaments 70%
[0 Anaualinc=ntre

Mult-year incentves.
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The chart below illustrates how our levels of compensation are driven by business performance (scale in percent
of base salary) This shows the way in which annual remuneration payable to the CEQ would vary under different
performance scenarios For the purposes of this illustration, assumptions have been made n relation to
vesting/payout levels at the different levels of performance

700%
800%
500%
400%
300%

200%

100% - | li ! !‘
0%
Minlmum Threshold Target Maximum
W Salary ZJ Annualincentve Muldyear incentives

Our approach to market positioning and benchmarking

When reviewing executive director and senior executive remuneration, one factor which the commuttee takes into
account 1s market competitiveness This 15 done by assessing total remuneration (1 e salary, annual and multi-year
incentives and benefits) against a range of relevant comparator groups as follows

*  Global peers operating 1n businesses similar to those of Reed Elsevier Group plec {including Thomson
Reuters, WPP, Pearson, John Wiley, Wolters Kluwer, Expenian, McGraw-Hll and Equifax)

¢ Companies hsted on the London Stock Exchange (cross-industry but excluding those in the financial
services sector) of a sinilar size (measured by aggregate market capitahisation) and international scope

¢  Companies hsted on the New York Stock Exchange (cross-industry but excluding those in the financial
services sector) of a simular size (measured by aggregate market capitalisation) and international scope

+  Companies hsted on the NYSE Euronext Amsterdam Stock Exchange, cross-industry and of a sumilar
size (measured by aggregate market capitahisation) and international scope

Referring to companies listed n these three different locations 1s relevant and necessary as demonstrated by the
fact that several recent semor executive hires have been recruited from the US, including our CFQ

The composition of the respective comparator groups 15 subject to minor changes vear on year reflecting changes
1 the size, international scope and hsting status of specific companies during the year

The competitiveness of our remuneration packages 1s assessed by the commuttee as part of the annual review cycle
for pay and performance, in line with the process set out below

¢ First, the overall competitiveness of the total remuneration packages s assessed both against the market
and taking account of remuneration levels within Reed Elsevier Group plc more widely The appropriate
posittoning of an individual’s total remuneration against the market 1s determined based on the
committee s judgement of individual performance and potential

*  The Commuttee then considers market data and benchmarks for the different elements of the package
including salary, total annual cash and total remuneration While relevant benchmark information 1s a
meamngful input to the process, it informs rather than drives the outcome of the review and 1s just one
factor that the commuttee considers

s Benefits, including medical and retirement benefits, are positioned to reflect local country practice

The total remuneration package

Each element of the remuneration package for executive directors 1s designed to achieve specific objectives, as
described 1n this section In aggregate, they create a unified and balanced reward muix and competitive
employment proposition The value of the reward package ts only maximmsed through the integrated delivery of
annual and longer-term performance Reward for the delivery of business results 1s connected with reward for
value flowing to shareholders Through the use of a range of performance metrics such as earmings per share,
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return on invested capital, profit after tax, revenue, cash flow conversion rate, personal objectives and total
shareholder return and the assessment of performance over multiple time-honizons, the incentive arrangements are
structured in such a way that reward cannot be maximised through nappropriate short-term risk-taking

The table below summarises the component parts of the remuneration package provided i 2012 to executive

directors who served in 2012

Component

Erik Engstrom

Mark Armour”

Puncan Patmer™™"

Annual base salary {page 34)

£1,050,625

£644,495

£600,000

Retirement benefits (page 41)

UK defined benefit plan

UK defined benefit plan

UK defined contnbution
plan and cash supplement

Other benefits

Includes car allowance
and private medical

[ncludes company car or
car allowance and private

Includes car allowance
and pnvate medical

benefit medical benefit benefit
Annual Incennive (pages 35 to 36) £1,149,909 £693,799 £230,205
(eamed for 2012 and payable
in March 2013)
Multi-year incentives” granted  £SOS  Market value options over  n/a Market value options over

(page 36)

198,836 PLC and 139,742

67,311 PLC and 48,018

NV ordinary shares NV ordinary shares
BIP 68,475 NV ADRs 90,987 PLC and 21,028 nfa
NV ordinary shares
PSP na n/a 179,551 PLC shares
Shareholding requirement (page 40) 300% of salary 200% of salary 200% of salary

No multi-year incentives vested 1n 2082 Mulu-year incennves from previous years lapsed 1n early 2012 as already described 1n last year's

report

.

Mark Armmour served as a director until 31 Decernber 2012

" Addinonal awards were made to Duncan Palmer 1n conjunciton with his recruitment Further detatls are comtaned on page 41

Base salary

Salary reflects the role and the sustained value of the executive in terms of skills, expenence and contribution in

the context of the relevant market

Salaries for executive directors are reviewed annually 1n the context of the competitiveness of total remuneration
and Reed Elsevier Group plc’s gurdelines for wages and salaries agreed for the whole of Reed Elsevier Group plc
for the forthcoming financial year Any increases typically take effect on | January

The Commuttee decided to award a salary increase of 2 5% to Enk Engstrom, which increased his base salary with
effect from 1 January 2013 to £1,076,891 Duncan Palmer s service agreement provides that lis first salary review
following commencement of employment would be on or around 1 January 2014, so hus base salary remains
unchanged for 2013 In determuining the salary recommendation for the CEQ, the commuttee considered, among
other inputs, 2013 salary guidance for Reed Elsevier Group plc s most signmificant employee locations globally
The increase awarded to the CEO 1s within the guidelines agreed for those employees in respect of 2013 increases

In respect of salaries for the broader employee population, Reed Elsevier Group plc uses the same factors to
determine the levels of increase across all employee populattons globally 1e relevant pay market, skills,
experience and contribution Reed Elsevier Group plc operates across many diverse countnes in terms of their
remuneration structures and practices Any increases awarded to different employee groups in different
geographies reflect this diversity and range of practices An average increase of approximately 2 5% will be
awarded across the semor management population globally for 2013 This level of increase 1s 1n line with
increases provided to the wider employee population
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Annual incentive

The annual incentive plan {AIP) provides focus on the delivery of stretchung annual financial targets and the
achievement of annual objectives and milestones that create a platform for sustainable future performance

Far 2013, executive directors have a target bonus opportunity of 100% of salary that 1s weighted as follows across
four elements (unchanged from 2012)

M e ) Weighting
Revenue 30%
Adjusted Profit After Tax 30%
Cash Flow Converston Rate 10%
Key Performance Objectives (KPOs) 30%

The target bonus opportunity for the financial measures 1s payable for the achievement of highly stretching
financial targets The four elements are measured separately, such that there could be a payout on one element and
not on others

For 2013, the minimum threshold on the financial elements of the AIP at which a bonus starts to accrue ts 94% of
target and the maximum bonus 1s 150% of target (unchanged from 2012)

The KPOs are ndividual to each executive director Each executive director 1s set up to six KPOs 1o reflect
cntical business priorities for which he 15 accountable The KPO component for the executive directors and other
senior executives will contain at least one KPO relating to the achievement of specific sustainability objectives
and targets contained within Reed Elsevier Group ple’s corporate responsibility agenda

Against each objective, measurable milestone targets are set for the year All financial targets and KPOs are
approved by the Commuttee and are subject to formal assessment at the end of each year The Chairman of Reed
Elsevier Group plc presents his assessment of performance agatnst KPOs for the CEO of Reed Elsevier Group plc
to the Committee while the CEQ of Reed Elsevier Group plc presents his assessment of KPO performance for the
CFO of Reed Elsevier Group ple The Commuttee then discusses and agrees the final KPO score for each
executive director

AIP payments for 2012

In assessing the level of bonus payments for 2012, the Committee noted the following performances for the Reed
Elsevier combined businesses

% change over 2011 at constant exchange rates

Underlying lotal adjusted
revenue growth PAT
Reed Elsevier +4% +8%

The Reed Elsevier combined businesses executed well on its strategic and financial prrorities 1n 2012 Positive
revenue momentum and focus on operating efficiency combined to hift underlying operating profit growth and
earnings Underlying revenues, which exclude the effects of currency translation and acqusitions and disposals,
were up 4%, or 3% excluding the cyeling effect of biennial exhibitions, and all five business areas contributed to
the underlying growth Underlying adjusted operating profits were up 6%, with the improvement in profitability
driven by a combination of process innovation and portfolio development across all business areas Underlying
costs were up 4%, reflecting volume growth as well as organic investment 1 new product development and sales
and marketing, partly offset by continued improvements n process efficiency Adjusted operating cash flow was
£1,603mm (2011 £1,515m), up 6% compared with the prior year and up 7% at constant currencies The rate of
conversion of adjusted operating profits into cash flow was 94% (2011 93%) Returns on invested capital
mncreased to 11 9%, 0 7 percentage points higher than 1n 2011, reflecting the improved trading performance and
capital efficiency

Set out below 15 a summary of the outcome of performance against each financial measure

Revenue Just above target
Adjusted Profit After Tax Just above target
Cash Flow Conversion Rate Just above target
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The progress on personal objectives for each director was then added n the form of the KPO score and, overall,
the sum of the scores achieved aganst the four AIP components for the executive directors, resulted mn the
following bonuses for 2012

2012 annual bonus %4 of 2012 base

{to be pavd in March 2013) salary earmings

Ertk Engstrom £1,149,909 109 5%
Mark Armour £693,799 107 7%
Duncan Palmer’ £230,205 107 7%

*Duncan Palmer’s bonus reflects senvice dunng the vear of reporung  His service commenced on 24 August 2012
Multi-year incentives

[t 15 intended to continue to provide executive directors with multi-year incentives compnsing a combination of a
long-term incentive plan (LTIP), a personal investment bonus deferral plan (BIP) and market value options
(ESOS) Tothis end, a new LTIP and ESOS are proposed and will be presented for sharcholder approval at the
2013 Annual General meeting (AGM)

The purpose of the multi-year incentives 1s to provide focus on the dehvery of the medium to longer-term strategy
and holding executives accountable for the executton of that strategy while driving value creation through
sustained financial performance, capital discipline and the delivery of returns for shareholders

In addition, the multi-year incentives are structured so as to encourage personal investment and reguire a
minimum level of ongoing personal shareholding tn Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV securities among
the senior executive population, in order to promote alignment with shareholders and to provide focus on the share
price

Awards under the current and proposed multi-year incentives vest over a period of three years, except for the
one-off REGP under which awards vest over three and five years The vesting of all awards made to executive
directors under these plans 15 subject to meeting a number of stretching performance targets based on internal
financial metrics and total shareholder return

Reed Elsevier Growth Plan (REGP)
I'he details of the REGP have been disclosed (n the previous years Report
Mechanics

The chart below illustrates how the REGP operates

JYEARS: 201012 H1 2013 TYBARS: 201314 H1 201§
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performanca shares performance shares
;:::fm:gkh ® Reloasa of rmmanng 50 of the 10 CED
Armour], 100% of parformancs sharus s deferrad untl
Pem;m chares H1 of 2015 cubjoct 2 coniued amploymont
arerslaazad and he 8 Subyect 1o performuncs sganst threa metncs,
€£I505 10 partc pata up toa 1 for 1 match cznbe carnod orery aars
nihe plan 4 and 5 on tha datarred perfarmance thares
v [ -0

T T T T T i Performance
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36




DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

Performance measures and targets

Total Shareholder return (TSR)
The vesting of one third of the REGP award is subject to Reed Elsevier s TSR performance compared against
three comparator groups (the TSR tranche)

As Reed Elsevier Group ple s parent companies access equity capital markets through three exchanges — London,
Amsterdam and New York — in three separate currency zones, three distinct comparator groups are used — a
Sterling Comparator Group, a Euro Comparator Group and a US Dollar Comparator Group The TSR
performance of Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares (based on the London listing) 1s measured against the Sterling
Comparator Group, the TSR performance of Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares (based on the Amsterdam hsting)
15 measured against the Euro Comparator Group, and the TSR performance of Reed Elsevier PLC ARDS and
Reed Elsevier NV ARDS (based on the New York listing) 1s measured against the US Dollar Comparator Group
The averaging period applied for TSR measurement purposes is six months prior to the start of the financial year
i which the award was made and the final six months of the last financial year of the performance penod

TSR performance of each secunty 15 measured separately against each comparator group and the proportion of the
TSR tranche that vests 1s the sum of the payouts achieved against the three comparator groups

3-year penod 3-year penod
2010-12 2010-14
TSR ranking within Vesting percentage Vesting percentage
the relevant TSR of each third of of each third of
comparater group the TSR tranche the TSR tranche
Below median 0% 0%
Median 30% 30%
Upper quartile 100% 100%

Vesting 1s on a straight-line basis for ranking between the median and the upper quartile
TSR comparators groups
The constituents of each comparator group were selected on the following basis

* Companies included in the relevant market index as at 31 December 2009 and nearest 1n size to Reed
Elsevier Group plc in terms of market capitalisation

¢ The relevant market indices are (1) FTSE 100 for the Sterlmg Comparator Group, (2) Euronext100 and
the DAX 30 for the Euro Comparator Group, and (3) the S&P 500 for the US Dollar Comparator Group

e  The following companies were excluded for this purpose

- compames with mainly domestic revenues (as they do not reflect the global nature of Reed Elsevier
Group plc’s customer base).

- those engaged n extractive industries (as they are exposed to commodity cycles), and
- financial services companies (as they have a different nisk/reward profile)

*  Relevant listed global peers operating in businesses sumilar to those of Reed Elsevier Group pic not
otherwise included were added to the relevant comparator group

The Commuttee retains discretion as to how to deal with changes to the comparator groups as a result of
demergers, de-listings or other corperate events over the performance peniod and applies its policy in this regard
In an appropriate manner
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Return on invested capital (ROIC)

The vesting of one third of the REGP award 15 subject to the percentage return on invested capital of Reed
Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV (the ROIC tranche) as follows

3 years 2 years Vesting percentage
2010-12 2013-14 of ROIC tranche
ROIC 1n 2012, subject to ROIC 1in 2014

actual exceeding 2009
ROIC calculated on the

same basis
Below 10 2% Below 10 7% 0%
10 2% 10 7% 60%
11 2% or above 12 7% or above 100%

Vesting 1s on a straight-line basis for performance between the minimum and maximum levels
For the purposes of the plan, the followmng definitions apply

e Invested capital = anthmetic average of the opening and closing capital employed for the Reed Elsevier !
combined businesses for the financial year with all cumulative amortisation and impairment charges for
acquired intangible assets and goodwill added back In addition, any exceptional restructuning and
acquisition integration charges (net of tax) are capitalised for these purposes and changes in exchange
rates and movements in penston deficits are excluded

*  Return = adjusted operating profit for the Reed Elsevier combined businesses before amortisaticn and
impairment of acquired intangible assets and goodwill, exceptional restructuring and acquisition
integration charges [n addinon, 1t 1s grossed up to exclude the equity share of taxes in joint ventures and
further adjusted to exclude net pension financing credit movement, after applying the effective rate of tax
used for adjusted earmings calculations and using exchange rates to match those used in the calculation of
invested capital

In order to ensure that the performance score achieved s a fair reflection of underlying business performance, the
Committee retatns discretion to determine the treatment of major disposals and acquisitions that require board
approval Any sigmificant adjustments made to the final performance score will be disclosed to shareholders

Adjusted earnsngs per share (EPS)

The vesting of one third of the REGP award 1s subject to performance against growth 1n adjusted earmungs per
share of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV measured at constant currencies (Adjusted EPS) (the EPS
tranche) as follows

3 years 2 years Vesting percentage
2010-12 2013-14 of EPS tranche
Average Adjusted Average
EPS growth in years Adjusted EPS
2011 and 2012 growth over
(subject to average the two year
Adjusted EPS growth over period

the whole three year
period being positive}

Below 5% p a Below 7% pa 0%
5%pa 7%pa 60%
9% p a orabove 13% p a or above 100%

Vesting 1s on a straight-line basis for performance between the mimimum and maximum levels
For the purposes of the plan, the following definitions apply

¢ Earnings = adjusted reported earnings measured at constant currencies Adjustments include amortisation
and impairment of acquired intangible assets and goodwill, exceptional restructuring and acquisition
integration charges, gains/ losses on business disposals and tax rate anomalies (deferred tax) The
Commttee retains discretion to adjust for changes in the net pension financing credit

*  Number of shares = weighted average number of shares in 1ssue excluding shares held in treasury
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Performance share awards were granted under the REGP to Mr Engstrom and Mr Armour in May 2010 Atus
meeting on 25 Apnl 2013, the Committee will assess the extent to which the performance conditions have been
met for these share awards, which includes an overall assessment of underlying business performance and other
relevant factors Based on a review of the three performance measures used in the plan, preliminary calculations
indicate that 66 8% of the awards are expected to vest This s based on a TSR ranking of just above median in
respect of two of the comparator groups, ROIC achievement slightly below the 11 2% maximum after taking nto
account adjustments for such items as foreign exchange rates, pension deficits and acquisiion integration costs as
provided tn the plan, and EPS growth shghtly above the middle of the range specified in the plan

This would result in 429,710 PLC ordinary shares and 282,187 NV ordinary shares vesting in respect of Enk
Engstrom 30% of these shares will be released to Mr Engstrom following the Apni Commuttee meeting and 50%
of these shares will be deferred until 2015 In respect of Mr Armoutr, under the terms of the plan relating to
retirement, 100% of the shares vesting will be released to him following the April Committee meeting In
accordance with the preliminary vesting calculations, this will result in 263,601 PLC ordinary shares and 173,105
NV ordinary shares being released to Mr Armour Thereafter, Mr Armour will have no further entitlement for
payment under this plan Dividend equivalents will be payable in cash on any shares released which, based on the
preliminary calculations, would result in payments of £135.251 and €179 329 to Mr Engstrom and £165,937 and
€220,016 to Mr Armour

Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

No awards under the LTIP were made to executive directors in 2012 and no award cycles remain outstanding for
directors under this plan ‘

A long-term 1ncentive award was granted to senior leaders below the Board in 2012 Grants are made on a relling
three-year basis in the form of performance shares that vest subject to performance metries and vesting scales
consistent with the REGP The targets set for each metric are aligned to the five-year performance scale applicable
to the executive directors under the REGP

It 15 interided to commence making annual grants under a new long-term mncentive plan to executive directors
from 2013 onwards, under which the first awards would vest in Hi 2016

Executive Share option Scheme (ESOS)

The current ESOS, which was approved by shareholders in 2003, expires on 8 Apnl 2013 A replacement ESOS,
for which we are seeking shareholder approval at the AGM 1n Apnl 2013, 1s described in the notice of AGM and
1t 1s intended to make grants under this plan to around 1,000 employees giobally, including the executive
directors, in 2013 It 15 not intended to make any further grants under the existing ESOS, the key features of which
were described in last year™s remuneration report

During 2012, Enk Engstrom recetved a grant of 200% of base salary of market value options (two-thirds of the
permutted maximum) On joining, Duncan Palmer received a grant of 135% of salary The vesting of the options 1s
subject to a 6% p a compound growth in adjusted earnings per share hurdle, measured at constant currencies over
a three-year period commencing on | January of the year of grant (the same condition also applies to the 2011
ESOS grants which were made to Ernk Engstrom and Mark Armour) In view of his retirement at the end of 2012,
Mark Armour did not receive an ESOS grant 1n 2012

Early 1n 2012, as disclosed in last year's Report, the 2009-11 cycle of ESOS lapsed for Erk Engstrom and Mark
Armour

Bonus Investment Plan (BIP)

The BIP 15 a voluntary plan aimed at encouraging personal investment in, and ongoing holding of, Reed Elsevier
shares to promote greater alignment with shareholders and support the retention of key talent

Under the BIP, participants may invest their own funds to purchase Reed Elsevier securities or allocate secunties
already owned outnght for invesiment under the plan up to a specified maximum In return, the participant 1s
granted a matching award which vests over three years subject to performance (1 ¢ a maximum match of 1 for 1
can be eamed on the personal investment) [t 1s a condition of vesting that the underlying personal investment 1s
retained throughout the vesting period Dividend equivalents accrue on the matching shares during the vesting
peniad and are paid out in cash at the end to the extent that the matching award vests The table below summarises
the key features of the BIP
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Bonus Investment Plan (BIP)

Overview
Feature Detail
Frequency of award e Annual grants of matching awards
¢ Ten-year hhfe of the plan
¢ Implemented in 2010
Ehgibthity s  Approximately 150 senior executives including executive directors
¢  Participation 1s voluntary
Performance period ¢  Three finzncial years
Performance conditions +  Average adjusted EPS growth measured n constant currencies and ROIC (see
below)
¢ 50% of the award 15 subject to adjusted EPS growth and 50% subject to ROIC
Vesting scale ¢ Performance hurdle and straight-line vesting
Personal investment *  1lpto 100% of the target bonus opportunity net of tax
Other provisions ¢  On a change of control, awards vest on a pro-rated basts and subject to

performance based on an assessment of progress agamst targets at the ime the
change of control occurs, unless the Commuttee determines that awards should
not vest and wnstead be exchanged for equivalent awards over shares in the
acquiring company (1 € rollover applies)

+ Claw-back apphes
Awards under the plan are satisfied with shares purchased mn the market

The followng targets and vesting scale apply to awards granted under the BIP n 2012

ROIC (%) in the

Avcrage growth 1n Adjusted EPS third year of the
(%) over performance
Matched earned on personal mvestment the 3 year performance period peniod
0% below4%pa below 11%
50% 4% pa 11%
75% 65%pa 11 5%
100% 9% p a or above 12% or above

The targets for the 2010-12 and 2011-13 cycles of BIP are set out in last year s Report

Awards were granted under the BIP to Mr Engstrom and Mr Armour 1n May 2010 At its meeting on 25 Apnl
2013, in much the same way as for the REGP, the Commuttee will assess the extent to which the performance
conchtions have been met for these awards, which includes an overall assessment of underlying business
performance and other relevant factors

Based on a review of the two performance measures used in the plan, prehminary calculations indicate that 89 5%
of the awards are expected to vest This 15 based on ROIC achievement slightly below the 11 2% maximum after
taking into account adjustments for such items as foreign exchange rates, pension deficits and restructuning costs
as provided in the plan, and EPS growth just below the 70th percentile of the target range specified in the plan

This would result in the vesting of 62,819 NV ADR matching awards in respect of Mr Engstrom and a
corresponding cash dividend equivalent payment of $178,181 [n respect of Mr Armour, 58,223 PLC ordinary
shares and 38,048 NV ordinary shares would be released, with corresponding dividend equivalent payments of
£36 651 and €48,359 respecuvely

Shareholding requirements

The Commuttee believes that one of the aspects that creates closer alignment between senior management and
shareholders 1s to require executives to build up and maintain a sigmficant personal stake in Reed Elsevier Group
plc The shareholding requirements applicable to the executive directors are set out i the table below and, as
described on page 36, were pre-requsites to participate tn the REGP Shareholding requirements also apply to
selected senior executives below the Board

Meeting the relevant shareholding requirement 1s both a condition of the vesting of awards as well as a
pre-requistte to maintain eligibility to recerve future awards under the multi-year incenuves
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On 31 December 2012, the executive directors shareholdings were as follows (valued at the rud-market closing
prices of Reed Elsevier securinies)

Actual shareholding as at

Shareholding requirement 31 December 2012
(i % of 31 December 2012 {in % of 31 December 2012
annualised base salary) annualised base salary)
Enk Engstrom 300% 512%
Mark Armour 200% 442%
Duncan Palmer’ 200% 0%

* Duncan Palmer has until 31 December 2015 to build up 1o his required level of shareho!ding and must retain any net shares ecamed from
Reed Elsevier share plans until he meets ns requirernent

Other employee share plans

The CEO and Mr Palmer have waived their right 1o participate in any local all-employee share-based plans in any
country, including the HMRC approved all-employee UK savings-related share option scheme (SAYE)

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefit provisions are set in the context of the total remuneration for each executive director, taking
account of age and service and against the background of evolving legislation and practice in Reed Elsevier Group
plc 5 major countries ot cperation Base salary 15 the only pensionable element of remuneration

Enk Engstrom 1s provided with UK defined benefit pension arrangements under which he accrues a pension of
1/30th of salary for every vear of service (up to a maximum of two thirds of salary) The pension 1s provided
through a combination of

s the main UK Reed Elsevier Pension Scheme for salary restricted to the scheme eamings cap, (determined
annually on the same basis as the pre-Apnl 2006 Inland Revenue earmings cap) and HMRC annual
allowance, and

»  Reed Elsevier Group pic s unapproved penston arrangement tor the balance

Prior to 1| November 2007, Enk Engstrom was not a member of any company pension scheme and Reed Elsevier
Group plc made annual contributions of 19 5% of his salary to his personal pension plan

From 1 November 2007 contnbutions to hus designated retirement account ceased and he became a member of the
UK defined benefit pension arrangement

The pension arrangements for Enk Engstrom include life assurance cover while in employment, an enutlement to
a penston In the event of 1}l health or disability and a spouse s and/or dependants penston on death

The increase in the transfer value of the directors pensions after deduction of contributions, 1s shown 1n the table
below Transfer values have been calculated in accordance with the guidance note GN11 published by the UK
Institute of Actuaries and Faculty of Actuanies The transfer values at 31 December 2012 have been calculated
using the transfer value basis adopted by the Trustees of the Reed Elsevier Pension Scheme

The transfer value in respect of individual directors represents a hability in respect of directors” pension
entitlement, and 1s not an amount paid or payable to the director

Mark Armour retired on 31 December 2012, at which pownt he became entitled to a pension of £378,785 per
annum
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Transfer values of accrued pension benefits

Transfer

value at

31 December

2tz of

Increase InCrease m

Increase n Increase i accrued accrued

Transfer Transfer transfer n annual pension

value value value dunng Accrued accrued pension dunng the

of accrued of accrued the year annual annual during year {net of

Apge at pension pension (net of pension penston the year nflation and

31 December BPurector » 31 De b 31 Decemb d i) 1 b durmg {nct of director s
2012 contribunions 2001 2012 contnbutions} 2012 the year milation}  contributions)

Erik Engstrom 49 £9,158 £2,099,132 £2,730,651 £622,361 £IB0,958 £38,584 £31,75¢ £469,944
Mark Armour 58 £1,944 £6,758,053 £7,525,908 £765,911 5384,373' £30,355 £13,362 £259,332

*The reason for the difference between Mr Armour’s eccrued annual pension as at 31 12 12 as stated m the table above, and the annual penston
entitlement following retirement 1s that Mr Armour retired early so there was a reduction made to his accrued annual pension as at 31 12 12

Duncan Palmer 1s a member of the UK Reed Elsevier Group plc defined contribution pensien plan (the Reed
Elsevier Pension Plan — - REPP ) The company contribution 1s 19% of Mr Palmer s salary £50,000 1s paid as a
contribution to the REPP, being the maximum contribution which can be made under HMRC limuts, and the
balance 1s paid to him as a cash allowance, subject to deduction of income tax and national insurance The pension
arrangement for Mr Palmer includes hfe assurance cover while n employment

Service contracts

Executive directors are employed under service contracts that provide for a maximum of one year’s notice The
contracts neither specify a predetermined level of severance payment nor contain specific provisions in respect of
a change n control The Commuttee believes that, as a general rule, notice penods should be 12 months and that
the executive directors should, subject to any legal constraints within their base country, be required to mitigate
their [osses in the event of termination The Commuttee will, however, note local market conditions so as to ensure
that the terms offered are appropnate to attract and retain top executives operating in global businesses

The contractual terms of the executive directors (and for approximately 100 other senior executives) include
certain covenants as follows

* non-competition restrictions apply which prevent the executive from working n a capacity which
competes with any Reed Elsevier Group ple business which he/she was involved with during the
preceding 12 months, from recruiting Reed Elsevier Group plc employees and from soliciing Reed
Elsevier Group plc customers and suppliers for a pertod of 12 months after leaving employment,

¢ 1n the event of the executive resigning, he/she will immediately lose all rights to any outstanding awards
under the multi-year incentives including any vested but unexercised options, and

* 1n the event of a breach of the covenants, any gains made or payouts received, n the period starting six
months prior to and ending 12 months after leaving employment, on the vesting or exercise of awards
from the multi-year incentives may be repayable

Each executive director has a service contract with Reed Elsevier Group plc, as summarised n the table below

Current centract Date employment Expwry date (subject to notice
date commenced peniod)  Notice period Subject to
Erk Engstrom 14 March 2011 23 August 2004 14 June 2028 12 months  English law

Ceased to be a director and
Mark Armour 7 October 1996 1 February 1995  retired on 31 December 2012 12 months ~ Enghish law
Duncan Palmer 15 August 2012 24 August 2012 n/a 12 months English law

Duncan Palmer’s remuneration arrangements

Duncan Palmer s annual base salary on his recruitment was £600,000 and he has an annual target bonus
opporturuty of 100% of base salary He will be eligible to participate in B[P from 2013 onwards up to his target
bonus opportunity and to parttcipate in the new ESOS and LTIP, subject to shareholders approving those plans
He will recerve annual pension contnbutions equal 1o 19% of salary and benefits in accordance with the policies
applicable 1o executive directors
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[n addition, in September 2012, he was granted the following awards

* A market value option under ESOS to acquire shares with a face value on the date of grant of 135% of
base salary, which vests on the 3rd anniversary of grant subject to achieving at least 6% p a Compound
growth 1n adjusted EPS at constant currencies over the three year performance penod from | January
2012 to 31 December 2014

¢ Performance shares (PSP) with an aggregate face value of 180% of base salary, which are subject to the
same performance targets as will apply to any matching award that may be granted to the CEQ under the
REGP in 2013, with performance being assessed in the first half of 2015 The award 1s non-pensionable
and cames a nght to receive dividend equivalents (calculated on the same basis as under the REGP) The
leaver rules are consistent with those which apply under the REGP with the exception that "retirement
with the consent of the company" 15 not automatically treated as an approved leaver reason for the
performance share award

*  Restncted shares (RSP) with an aggregate face value of 250% of base salary, which vest 50% in 2014
and 50% in 2015 provided all unvested stock-based awards granted to him by his previous employer
lapse This one-off grant of restricted shares was made to compensate Mr Palmer for the forfeiture of
awards from s former employer They are subject to a time pro-rated claw-back if he resigns, or s
summarily terminated, before the date of the announcement of the 2014 annual results in 2015

The Commuttee considered the grant of performance shares and resiricted shares noted above to have been
essential to secure Duncan Palmer's services The Commuttee was satisfied that the awards are appropriate and
align his interests with those of shareholders Both awards fall within paragraph 9 4 2(2)r of the UK Listing Rules
and were granted over Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares, but half of each award will be settled on vesting with
Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares The awards cannot be amended to the advantage of Duncan Palmer without
shareholder approval and the documentation governing these awards will be available for inspection from the date
of the notice of the 2013 Annual General Meeting up to and mcluding the meeting 1tself In recognition of Mr
Palmer and his family having to relocate to the UK 1n order for him to take up his new position, he will receive a
one-off cash relocation allowance of £500,000 m May 2013 (subject to a ime pro-rated claw-back 1f he resigns or
15 summanly terminated prior to 31 December 2014) and relocation support under the standard Reed Elsevier
Group plc pohcy

Mark Armour’s retirement terms
Mark Armour's retirement terms were disclosed in last year s remuneration report (page 44)
Policy on external appointments

The Commuttee believes that the experience gained by allowing executive directors to serve as non-executtve
directors on the boards of other organisations 1s of benefit to Reed Elsevier Group plc Accordingly, executive
directors may, subject to the approval of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, serve as non-executive
directors on the boards of up to two non-assoctated companies (of which only one may be to the board of a major
company) and they may retain remuneration ansimg from such appointments

Mark Armour 15 a non-executive director of SABMuller plc and received remuneration of £106,250 dunng 2012
(£100,694 dunng 2011) He 1s also a non-executive director of the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) and
received remuneration of £12,500 since commencing his appomtment on 2 July 2012

Duncan Palmer 1s a non-executive director of Oshkosh Corporation and received fees of £15,487 since his
appointment as a director of Reed Elsevier Group plc up to the end of 2012

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Policy on non-executive directors’ fees

The policy on non-executive directors fees 1s a matter for the Board, subject to applicable taw and, does not fail
within the committee’s remut

Reed Elsevier Group plc seeks to recruit non-executive directors with the expenence to contribute to the boards of
a dual-lsted global business and with a balance of personal skills that will make a major contnbution to the
Boards and their comnuttee structures Non-executive directors, including the Chairman, are appointed to the
Boards of Reed Elsevier Group plc, Reed Elsevier PLC and the supervisory Board of Reed Elsevier NV
Non-executive directors fees reflect the directors membership of the three Boards
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The primary source for comparative market data 1s the practice of FTSE 50 compames, although reference 15 also
made to NYSE Euronext Amsterdam (AEX) index and US-hsted companies

Non-executive directors, including the Chairman, serve under letters of appointment and are not entitled to notice
of, or paymenis following, retirement froem the Boards

Fee levels

Non-executive directors receive an annual fee in respect of their memberships of the Boards of Reed Elsevier
PLC, Reed Elsevier NV and Reed Elsevier Group plc Non-executive directors are rembursed for expenses
meurred in attending meetings They do not recerve any performance-related bonuses, pension provision, share
options or other forms of benefit, except for the following the Chairman receives private medical benefit and non-
executive directors and the Chairman are provided with tax filing support to meet any tax filing obligations arising
from thetr directorships with Reed Elsevier Group plc in countries other than their home country

Fees may be reviewed annually, although 1n practice they have changed on a less frequent basis The last fee
review was during 2011 and the current fee arrangements took effect on | January 2012

The fees for 2013 are unchanged from 2012 and are set out below

Annual fee 2013

Chairman £550,000
Non-executive directors £65,000/€80,000
Semor Independent Director £20,000
Charrman of

- Audit Commuttee £25,000/€30,600
- Remuneration Committee £20,000

The Chairman of Reed Elsevier Group ple does not receive commuttee chairman fees

Total Shareholder Return graphs

As required by the Large and Medium-sized comparnies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008, the
graphs tn this section show the Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV total shareholder return performance,
assuming dividends were reinvested They ¢compare the Reed Elsevier PLC performance with that achieved by the
FTSE 100, and the Reed Elsevier NV performance with the performance achieved by the AEX index, over the
five-year period from 31 December 2007 to 31 December 2012

For the five-year period from 31 December 2007, the TSR for Reed Elsevier PLC was 22 6%, agamnst a FTSE 100
return of 11 7% For Reed Elsevier NV during the same peniod, TSR was 8 4% against an AEX index return of
minus 19% These indices are relevant since Reed Elsevier PLC 1s a member of the FTSE 100 index and Reed
Elsevier NV 15 a member of the AEX index

REEDELSEVIER PLCY FTSE 100~ S YEARS REED ELSEVIER MV v AEX ~ 5 YEARS
140% 140%
120% ] 120%

. N o N\ .

&0% 0% \/

40% 0%
2007 008 2009 2010 01t 2012 2007 2002 2009 2010 201 2
—— Retd Elsever FLL == FTSE 100 = Reed Elsener NV — AEX

I

For the purposes of the charts, the total shareholder return 15 calculated on the basis of the average share price in
the 30 trading days prior to the respective year end and on the assumption that dividends were reinvested
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REMUNERATION AND SHARE TABLES

The mformation set out in this section forms part of the audited disclosures in this Report For the purposes of the
disclosures in this section, the average exchange rates for the relevant year have been used

Directors’ emoluments and fees
Aggregate emoluments

The emoluments of the directors of Reed Elsevier Group ple (including any entitlement to fees or emoluments
from either Reed Elsevier PLC, Reed Elsevier NV or Elsevier Reed Finance BV} were as follows

2012 20§
£000 £ 000
Salaries and fees 2,919 2,548
Benefits 89 56
Annual performance-related bonuses 2,074 1,634
Pension contnibutions 44 42
Total 5,126 4,280
Individual fees of non-executive directors
2012 2011
£ £
Mark Elliott 85,000 70,000
Anthony Habgood 550,000 500,000
Adnan Hennzh (from 20 Apnl 2011) 65,000 38,475
Lisa Hook 65,000 55,000
Robert Polet 65,000 55,000
Sir David Rexd 85,000 75,000
Lord Sharman (unt:l 20 Apnl 201 1) - 18,333
Linda Sanford (frotn 4 December 2012) 5,416 -
Ben van der Veer 89,431 82,609
Total 1,009,847 894,417

* The above figures exclude an imputed notional benefit 1n respect of 1ax filing support provided to non-executive directors for tax fikngs n
countries other than their home country resulting from their directorship with Reed Elsevier Group plc  The incremental assessable benefit
charge per relevant tax return has been agreed by PWC to amount to £300

** Excludes private medical insurance benefit of £1,389 1n respect of 2012 (£1,329 in 2011)

*** The fees for Ben van der Veer are paid 1n euro and were €1 10,000 for 2012 (€95,000 for 2011)

For reporting purposes they were converted into pounds sterling at the average exchange rate for the year of reporting

Other required disclosures
No loans, advances or guarantees have been provided on behalf of any director

As disclosed 1n last year's Report, the 2009-11 cycle of awards made under ESOS and LTIP lapsed in early 2012
for Erik Engstrom and Mark Armour The executive directors made no pre-tax gans dunng 2012 on any mulu-
year incentives, except for Mark Armour, who made a gain of £1,185 on the exercise of vested options during the
year Details are shown on page 47

Individual emoluments of executive directors

Salary Benefits Bonus Total 2012 Total 2011

£ £ £ £ £

Ertk Engstrom 1,050,625 28,396 1,149,909 2,228,930 2,075,417
Mark Armour 644,495 23,984 693,799 1,362,278 1,263,563
Duncan Palmer” . 213846 32878 230,205 476,929 n/a
Total 1,908,966 85,258 2,073,913 4,068,137 3,338,980

“The benefits figure for Duncan Palmer includes the balance of tis company penston contribution which 1s paid 1o him as a cash allowance, as
detailed under the Retirement Benefits section on page 41, which, for 2012, was £22,810

Market value options awarded under ESOS and restnicted shares awarded 1n the year of reporting under the BIP
are set out by executive director on pages 46-48 Vesung s subect to performance conditions relating to growth
in adjusted EPS and ROIC as described in the front section of this report The maximum aumber of options that
can vest under the ESOS and the maximum number of restricted shares that can vest under the BIP 1s equivalent
to the awards granted The maximum number of shares which can vest under the September 2012 grants of
performance share awards and restricted share awards to Duncan Palmer s equivalent to the awards granted Enk
Engstrom was the highest pard director in 2012
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Directors’ shareholdings in Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV

The interests of those individuals who were directors of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV as at 31
December 2012 1n the issued share capital of the respective companies at the beginning and end of the year are

shown below

Reed Elsevier PLC
ordinary shares

Reed Elsevier NV
ordinary shares

1 January. 31 Decemnber | Janunr}_ 31 December

2012 2012 2012 2012

Mark Armour 248,742 250,242 136,889 136,889
Mark Elhott - - 7,600 7,600
Ernk Engstrom 107,040 107,040 447,356 509,556
Antony Habgeod 50,000 50,000 25,000 25,000
Adrnian Hennah 5,136 5,163 - -
Lisa Hook - - - 4,800
Duncan Palmer - - - -
Robert Polet 1,000 1,000 - -
Sir David Rerd - - - -
Linda Sanford - - - -
Ben van der Veer - - 5,000 5,000

“On date of appomtment if subsequent to | January 2012

There have been no changes in the interests of the current directors serving as at the date of this report in the
1ssued share capital of Reed Elsevier PLC or Reed Elsevier NV at the date of this report

Share-based awards in Reed Elsevier PL.C and Reed Elsevier NV

Details of vested options (shown in talics) and unvested options and restricted shares held by executive directors
in Reed Elsevier PLC (PLC) and Reed Elsevier NV (NV) as at 31 December 2012 are shown 1n the tables below
Any awards that have been described as lapsed 1n prior year reports have been excluded The shading 1n the tables
denotes awards granted during the year of reporting The vesung of outstanding unvested awards 1s subject to
performance conditions m accordance with the provisions of the respective plan rules, except for the RSP award
granted to Mr Palmer on joining Reed Elsevier Group plc The conditions of vesting of this award are set out on
page 42 of this report For disclosure purposes, any PLC and NV ARDS awarded under the BIP have been
converted into ordinary share equivalents At the date of this report there have been no changes in the options or
restricted shares held by executive directors in office at the date of this report The market price at the date of
award of grants made under the multi-year incentives are based on the middle market price of the respective

secunty

Enk Engstrom

Options No of No of No of Gross No of
options oplions options Market gains options

held on granted exercised  price per made on held on Unvested Opticns

Year of Option | Jan durtng  Opuion dunng  share a1 exercise 31 Dec opLons exercisable

granl Over 2012 2012 price 2012 exercise EE 2012 vesting on until

ESQOS 2004  PLC ord 63 460 £4 780 63 460 23 Aug 2014

NV ord 43 866 €10 30 43 866 23 Aug 2014

2005 PLC ord 154 517 £5 335 154 517 {7 Feb 2015

NV ord 105412 €131 105412 17 Feb 2015

2006  PLC ord 178 895 £5 305 178 895 13 Mar 2016

NV ord 120 198 €11 47 120 198 13 Mar 2016

2011 PLC ord £39,146 £5 350 139,146 5 May 2014 5 May 2021

NV ord 92,953 €8 969 92,953 5May 2014 5 May 2021

2012 PLCord - 198,836 £5155 198,836 2 May 2015 2 May 2022

NV ord - 139,742 €9030 139,742 2 May 2015 2 May 2022

LTIP 2004 PLCord 325163 £4 780 325 163 23 Aug 2014

NVord 224766 €10 30 224 766 23 Aug 2014
Total PLC ords 861,181 198,836 1,060,017
Total NV ords 587,195 139,742 726,937
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Shares No of Market No of
unvested No of Market No of price  Notonal unvested
shares shares price  shares per gross shares
helden  awarded per  vested share gamns at held on Date of
Yearof  Typeof 1 Jan dunng  sharear  durng at vesting 31 Dec  performance Date of
grant secunly 2012 2012 award 2012 vesting £/€ 2012 testing release
BIP 2010 NV ord 140,378 €8 310 140,378 HI1 2013 H1 2013
2011 NV ord 122,352 €8 969 122,352 HI1 2014 HI 2014
2012 NV od - 136,950  €9030 136,950 H1 2015 H1 2015
REGP 2010 PLC ord 643,086 £4 663 643,086 H1 2013  50% H! 2013
50% HI 2015
NV ond 422,310 €8 310 422 310 H1 2013 50% H12013
—_— W% H12013.
Total PLC ords 643,086 643,086
lotal NV ords 685,040 136,950 §21,990
Mark Armour
Options No of No of No of Gross No of
options  oplions options Market gams options
held on  granted excrcised  price per made on held on Unvested Options
Year of Optian I Jan  durng  Option duning share at exercise 31 Dec options exercisable
grant over 2012 2012 pnice 2012 ExErcise L€ 2012 VESLINE On until
ESOS 2002  PLCord 74 000 £6 000 - Expired
NV ord 51926 €13 94 - Exprred”
2005 PLCord 150 422 £5335 150 422 17 Feb 2015
NV ord 102 618 €11 31 102 618 17 Feb 2015
2006 PLC ord 158836 £5 305 1 500 £6 095 £1 185 157 336 13 Mar 2016
NV ord 106720 €11 47 106 720 13 Mar 2016
2001 PLCard 85 358 £5 390 56 905 9 May 2016°
NVard 57021 £8 969 38014 9 May 2016”
LTIP 2004  PLC ord 290 481 £4 4872 290 487 19 Feb 2044
NV ord 199 467 €10 57 199 467 19 Feb 2014
SAYE 2010  PLC ord 2173 £4 176 2173 30 Jun 2013
Total PLC ords 761,270 1,500 657,317
Total NV ords 517,752 445,819
“kxpired unexercised on 22 February 2012
“Pro-rated for service
Shares No of No of
unvested No of  Market No of  Market Notional  unvested
shares shares price shares price EFOSS shares
held on awarded per vested per gans at held on Date of
Yearof  Typeof t Jan dunng  share at during  share at vesting 31 Dec performance Date of
grant security 2012 2012 award 2012 westing £ 2012 lesting release
8Ip 2010 PLC ord 65,054 £4 665 65,054 HI 2013 H1 2013
NV ord 42,512 €8310 42,512 H1 2013 H1 2013
201t PLC ord 56,876 £5 390 37917 H1 2014 H12014"
NV ord 37687 €8 969 25124 H1 2014 H1 2014]
2012  PLCord - 90,987  £5155 30329 H1 2015 H1 2014
NV ord - 21,028 €9Q30 7009 H! 2015 H12014",
REGP 2010 PLCord 394,495 £4 665 394,495 H1 2013 H12013
_ NVord 259,062 €3 310 259,062 HI 2013 H1 2013
Total PLC ords 516425 90,987 527,795
Total NV ords 339,261 21,028 333,707

* Pro-rated fof service
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Options No of No of No of Gross No of
opuens  options options Market gams options
held on  granted exercised  price per made on held on Unvested Options
Year of Option 1fan  dunng Option dunng share at exercise 31 Dec oplions exercisable
grant over 2012 2012 price 2012 EXETCISE £1€ 2012 vesting on until
ESOS 2012 PLCord - 67,331 £6 015 67,331 7 Sep2015 7 Sep 2022 1
NV ord - 48018 €10560 e 48,018 7 Sep 2015 7 Sep 2022 |
Total PLC ords 67,331 67,331
Total NV ords 48,018 48,018
Shares No of No of
unvested No of No of Notional  unvested
shargs shares Market shares Market Bross shares
heldon awarded pnice per vested price per gamsat held on Date of
Yearof Typeof I Jan during  share at during share at vesting 31 Dec  performance Date of
granl_ secunity 2012 2012 award 2012 vesling £/€ 2012 testing release
PSP’ 2012 PLCord 179551  £6015 179,551 HI 2015 H1 2015
RSP’ 2012 PLCord 249376 £6 015 249,376 - 50% HI 20i4 {
— e .. . . - 30% HIL2015
Total PLC ords - 428,927 428,927

Total NV ords

*Half of Duncan Palmer’s 2052 PSP and RSP awards which vest, if any, will be settled with Reed Elsevier NV ordmary shares

The number of NV shares will be calculated using the closing price of a Reed Elsevier NV share and the euro/peund sterling exchange rate on

the date of grant

Other required disclosures in respect of share-based awards

The number of shares and options that vest in respect of all outstanding {unvested) awards under the multi-year
incentives depend on the extent to which performance conditions are met, except for the RSP grant to Duncan
Palmer which vests subject to an ongoing employment condition

In respect of the REGP grant to Erik Engstrom, the maximum number of shares that can vest 15 150% of the
number of shares shown in the tables above In respect of ESOS and BIP, the number of awards shown 1n the table
1s the maximum capable of vesting ESOS awards vest on the third anmversary and expire on the tenth

anmversary of the date of grant For the PSP and RSP awards granted to Duncan Palmer, the number of shares
shown in the share tables reflects the maximum number of shares which can vest

Options under the SAYE scheme, 1n which all ehgible UK employees are invited to participate, are granted at a
maximum discount of 20% to the market price at the ime of grant They are normally exercisable after the expiry
of three or five years from the date of grant No performance targets are attached to these option grants as the

SAYE 1s a UK all-employee scheme Mr Engstrom and Mr Palmer have waived any night to participate 1n any
local all-employee share based plans in any country including the HMRC approved all-employee UK savings-
related share option scheme (SAYE)

The middle market price of a Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary share at the date of award of grants in 2012 under the

BIP was £5 155 The muddle market price of a Reed Elsevier NV ordinary share at the date of award of grants 1n

201 2 under the BIP was €9 03 The middle market price of a Reed Elsevier PLLC ordinary share at the date of

award of grants made to Mr Palmer on 7 September 2012 was £6 015

The middle market price of a Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary share during the year was in the range of £4 694 to
£6 52 and at 31 December 2012 was £6 42 The muddle market price of a Reed Elsevier NV ordinary share during
the year was 1n the range of €8 17 10 €11 37 and at 31 December 2012 was €11 185
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Employee Benefit Trust

Any secunities required to satisfy entitlements under the REGP, LTIP and BIP are provided by the Employee
Benefit Trust (EBT) from market purchases As a potential beneficiary under the EBT in the same way as other
employees of Reed Elsevier Group plc, each executive director 1s deemed to be interested in all the shares held by
the EBT which, at 31 December 2012, amounted to 13,451,468 Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares (1 07% of
tssued share capital) and 6,990,101 Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares (0 91% of 1ssued share capital) These
numbers nclude ordinary share equivalents held in the form of Reed Elsevier PLC ADRS and Reed Elsevier NV

ADRS
Approved by the Board of Reed Eisevier Group plc on 27 February 2013

Signeq on behalf of the Remuneration Commuttee by Mark Ethott, Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the members of Reed Elsevier Group ple

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Reed Elsevier Group ple for the year ended

31 December 2012 (“the consolhdated financial statements™), which comprise the consclidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of cash flows, the consolidated
statement of financial position, the consolidated statement of changes i equity, the group accounting policies, and
the related notes 1 to 30 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 1s applicable
law and International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) as adopted by the European Union

Thus report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006  Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them 1n an auditor’s report and for no other purpose  To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opimons we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully 1n the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for preparation
of the Annual Report and the consohdated financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements 1n accordance
with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error This 1ncludes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the group’s
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition,
we read all the financial and non-financial information 1n the annual report to identify matenal inconsistencies
with the audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the consohdated financial statements

. give a true and faur view of the state of the group’s affairs as at 31 December 2012 and of its profit for the
year then ended, and
have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union, and |
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the
IAS Regulations

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the consolidated financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the Compantes Act 2006, which requires us to report to you if, 1n our
opinion, we have not recerved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Other matter

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Reed Elsevier Group plc for the year
ended, 31 December 2012

Awditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, Umted Kingdom

27 February 2013
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Selhing and distribution costs

Administration and cther expenses

Operating profit before joint ventures
Share of results of joint ventures

Operating profit

Finance income
Finance costs

Net finance costs

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Disposals and other non operating items

Profit before tax
Taxation

Net profit for the year
Attributable to
Equity shareholders

Non-controlling interests

Net profit for the year
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2012 2011

Note £m £m
1 6,061 5,934
(2,122) (2.104)

3,939 3,830
(1,015) (1,075)
(1,635) (1,626)

1,289 1,129

24 30

2 1,313 1,159
7 9 17
7 {(486) (551)
Crud) (534)
8 45 (22)
881 603
9 (100) (169)
781 434

776 427

5 7

781 434




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Net profit for the year

Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations
Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension schemes

Fair value movements on available for sale investments

Transfer to net profit on disposal of available for sale investments
Fair value movements on cash flow hedges

Transfer to net profit from cash flow hedge reserve (net of tax)
Tax recogmsed directly in equity

Other comprehensive expense for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Attributable to

Equity shareholders

Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the year
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Note

5

2012 2011
£m fm
781 434
107 18
(329) (113)
29 (6)
11 -
72 (19
10 26
88 42
(12) (52)
769 382
764 375
5 7
769 382




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Nate
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations n
Interest paid
Interest received
Net interest paid to Reed Elsevier NV
Net interest paid to Reed Elsevier PLC
Net interest paid to the Elsevier Reed Finance BV group
Tax paid (net)

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisitions 1
Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Expenditure on internally developed intangible assets

Purchase of investments

Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment

Gross proceeds from other disposals

Payments on other disposals

Dividends received from jownt ventures

Net cash used 1n investing actwvities

Cash flows from financing activities

Dividends paid to parent companies

Distributions to non-controlling interests

Increase 1n net borrowings from shareholders and fellow affiliates
{Decrease)increase 1n short term bank loans, overdrafts and commerciaf paper
Issuance of other loans

Repayment of other loans

Repayment of finance leases

Disposal/{acquisition) of non-controlling interests

Net cash used in financing activities
Increase/(decrease) 1n cash and cash equivalents 11

Movement in cash and cash equivalents

At start of year

Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Exchange translation differences

At end of year
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2012 2011
£m fm
1,806 1,674
170 (183)
8 10
(& (18)
(1) (1)
313) (340)
(200) (191)
1,122 951
(553) {474)
(70) (85)
(263) (265)
(6) (10)

7 7
235 101
(82) @n
20 33
(712) (714)
(300) {600)
(4) 9
360 403
(238) 125
157 -
(346) (150)
4 (22)

7 (48)
(368) (301)
42 (64)
560 623
q2 (64)
(20) 1
582 560




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2012

2012 2011
Note £m fm
Non-current assets
Goodwill 14 4,576 4,731
Intangible assets 15 3,416 3,374
investments 1n jont ventures 16 100 124
Other investments 16 229 193
Property, plant and equipment 17 263 287
Deferred tax assets 19 71 202
Derivative financial instruments 64 -
8,719 8,911
Current assets
Inventories and pre-publication costs 20 154 184
Trade and other receivables 21 1,363 1,471
Derivative financial instruments 23 42
Amounts owed by Reed Elsevier PLC 366 684
Amounts owed by the Elsevier Reed Finance BV group 87 12
Cash and cash equivalents 11 582 560
2,545 2,953
Assets held for sale 22 299 44
Total assets 11,563 11,908
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 23 2,509 2,593
Derwvative financial instruments 9 57
Borrowings 24 44 591
Amounts owed to Reed Elsevier NV 24 1,137 907
Amounts owed to Reed Elsevier PLC 24 1,318 1,318
Amounts owed to Reed Holding BV 24 7 1
Amounts owed to the Elsevier Reed Finance BV group p/] 1,594 1,476
Taxation 540 606
Provisions 26 30 37
7,188 7,586
Non-current habilities
Borrowings 24 2,142 2,088
Amounts owed to the Eisevier Reed Finance BV group 24 4,295 4,864
Deferred tax habilities 19 941 1,228
Net pension obligations 5 466 242
Provisions 26 139 88
7,983 8,510
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale 22 96 17
Total habihities 15,267 16,113
Net habilities (3,704) (4,205)
Capital and reserves
Share capital . -
Share premium 2,430 2,430
Translation reserve (688) (795)
Other reserves 28 (5,480) (5,865)
Consolidated shareholders' deficit (3,738) (4,230)
Non-cantrolling interests 34 25
Total deficit (3,704) (4,205)

The financial statements of Reed Elsevier Group ple, registered number 2746616, were approved by the board of
directors and authorised for 1ssue on 27 February 2013

D J Palmer

Chief Financial Officer ;ﬁ
\
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Consolidated Non-
Share Share  1ranstation Other  shareholders’  controlling Total
capital  premiwum resene resenes deficit interests defict
Note £m £fm £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2011 - 2430 (813) (5,599) (3,982) 27 {3,958}
Total comprehensive income for the
year - - 18 357 375 7 382
Dvidends pamd 13 - - - (600) (600) (9} (609)
Acquisiions - - - - - 5 5
Acquisition of non-controlling
nterests — - - (43} (43) 3 (48}
Increase in share based
remuneration reserve - - - 27 ' - 27
Settlement of share awards - — - (7} (7 - {7)
Balance at 31 December 2011 - 2,430 (795) (5,865) (4,230) 25 (4,205}
Consolidated Non-
Share Share Translation Other sharcholders’ controlling Total
capital  premuum reserve reserves defiat interests deficit
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at | January 2012 - 2,430 (795) (5.865) {4,230) 25 4,205)
Total comprehensive ncome for the
year - - 107 657 764 5 769
Dividends paid 13 - - - (300) {300) (4) (304)
Deferred losses on cash flow hedgpes
n acquired businesses - - - (2) 2) - (2)
Acquisitions - - - - - 9 9
Disposal of non-contrelling
nteresis - - - 6 6 1 7
Increase i share based
[CTMUNETILON TEserve - - - 3 k1 - 31
Setilement of share awards - - - )] M - N
Exchange differences on translation
of caprtal and reserves - ~ — - - 2) 2)
Balance at 31 December 2012 - 2,430 (688) (5,480) (3,738) 34 (3,704)
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The Reed Elsevier Group pic financial statements are prepared in accerdance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union and as 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB), and are prepared on a going concern basis

The Reed Elsevier Group plc accounting polictes under IFRS are set out below

In preparing the consohdated financial statements, subsidianes of Reed Elsevier Group ple are accounted for under
the acquisition method and investments 1n associates and joint ventures are accounted for under the equity method
All transactions and balances between the consolidated businesses are elirninated

On acqusition of a subsidiary, or interest in an associate or joint venture, fair values, reflecting conditions at the date
of acquisition, are attnibuted to the net assets, including 1dentifiable mtangible assets acquired This includes those
adjustments made to bring accounting policies into Line with those of the consolidated businesses The results of
subsidiaries sold or acquired are included in the consolidated financial statements up to or from the date that control
passes from or to the consolidated businesses

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of the consohdated businesses are identified separately from Reed Elsevier
Group plc shareholders’ equity Non-controlling interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the
onginal acquisition and the non-controtling share of changes m equuty since the date of acquisition

Foreign exchange translation
The consolidated financial statements are presented in pounds sterling

Transactions n foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction At each
statement of financial position date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rate prevailing on the statement of financial position date Exchange differences ansing are recorded
n the income statement other than where hedge accounting applies as set out below

Assets and hlabilities of foreign operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the staterent of financial
position date Income and expense items and cash flows ef foreign operations are transiated at the average exchange
rate for the pertod Significant individual items of income and expense and cash flows in foreign operations are
translated at the rate prevailing on the date of transaction Exchange differences anising are classified as equity and
transferred to the translation reserve When foreign operations are disposed of, the related cumulative translation
differences are recognised within the income statement in the period

Reed Elsevier Group plc uses denivative financial instruments, primanly forward contracts, to hedge 1ts exposure to
certamn foreign exchange risks Details of Reed Elsevier Group ple’s accounting policies in respect of derivative
financial instruments are set out below

Revenue

Revenue represents the invorced value of sales less anticipated returns on transactions completed by performance,
excluding customer sales taxes and sales between the consohdated bustnesses

Revenues are recognised for the various categones of turnover as follows subscriptions — on periodic despatch of
subscribed product or rateably over the period of the subscription where performance 1s not measurable by despatch,
circulation and transactional — on despatch or occurrence of the transaction, advertising — on publication or over the
perted of online display, and exhibitions — on occurrence of the exhibition

Where sales consist of two or more independent components whose value can be reliably measured, revenue 1s
recogrised on each component as 1t 1s completed by performance, based on attnibution of relative value
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Employee benefits

The expense of defined benefit pension schemes and other post-retirement employee benefits 1s determined using the
projected unit credit method and charged n the income statement as an operating expense, based on actuanal
assumptions reflecting market cond:tions at the beginming of the financial year Actuanal gains and losses are
recognised 1n full in the statement of comprehensive income 1n the period in which they occur

Past service costs are recognised immediately to the extent that benefits have vested, or, if not vested, on a straight
line basis over the penod until the benefits vest

Net pension obligations in respect of defined benefit schemes are included in the statement of financial position at the
present value of scheme habilittes, less the fair value of scheme assets Where schemes are in surplus, 1 e assets
exceed liabilities, the net pension assets are separately included in the statement of financial position Any net pension
asset 1s limuted to the extent that the asset ts recoverable through reductions 1n future contnbutions

The expense of defined contnbution pension schemes and other employee benefits 1s charged in the income
statement as incurred

Share based remuneration

The fair value of share based remuneration is determined at the date of grant and recognised as an expense in the
imcome statement on a straight line basts over the vesting period, taking account of the estimated number of shares
that are expected to vest Market based performance critena are taken mto account when determining the fair value at
the date of grant Non-market based performance criteria are taken into account when estimating the number of
shares expected to vest The fair value of share based remuneration 1s determined by use of a binomial or Monte
Carlo simulation model as appropriate All Reed Elsevier Group ple group's share based remuneration 1s equity
settled by the ultimate holding companies, Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV, and 1s accounted for as equity
settled 1n Reed Elsevier Group ple

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attnbutable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that takes a
substantial period of time to bring to use are caprtalised All other interest on borrowings 1s expensed as incurred
The cost of 1ssuing borrowings 1s generally expensed over the pertod of borrowing so as to produce a constant
penodic rate of charge

Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax payable on the current year taxable profits, adjustments in respect of
prior year taxable profits, and the movements on deferred tax that are recognised 1n the income statement

The tax payable on current year taxable profits 1s calculated using the apphcable tax rates that have been enacted, or
substantively enacted, by the date of the statement of financ:al posttion

Deferred tax 1s the tax ansing on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habilities 1n the financial
staternents and their corresponding tax bases used mn the computation of taxable profit, and 1s accounted for using the
balance sheet hiabthty method Deferred tax liabilities are generally recogmised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that, based on current forecasts, it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utihised Deferred tax 15 not recognised on
temporary differences arising in respect of goodwll that 1s not deductible for tax purposes

Deferred tax 1s calculated using tax rates that have been substantively enacted at the date of the statement of financial
posttion Full provision 1s made for deferred tax which would become payable on the distnibution of retained profits
from foreign subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures

Movements in deferred tax are charged or credited 1n the income statement, except when they relate to items
charged or credited directly to equity, 1n which case the deferred tax 1s also recognised 1n equity Deferred tax credits
in respect of share based remuneration are recogmised 1n equity to the extent that expected tax deductions exceed the
related expense
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Goodwill

On the acquisition of a subsidhary or business, the purchase consideration is allocated between the net tangible and
mtangible assets on a fair value basis, with any excess purchase consideration representing goodwill Goodwll
anising on acquisitions also includes amounts corresponding to deferred tax habilities recognised in respect of
acquired intangible assets

Goodwill 1s recogmised as an asset and reviewed for impawment at least annually Any impairment 1s recogmsed
immediately in the income statement and not subsequently reversed

On disposal of a subsidiary or business, the attrnibutable amount of goodwill 1s included in the deterrmnation of the
profit or loss on disposal

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination are stated in the statement of financial position at their
fair value as at the date of acquisition, less accumulated amortisation [nternally generated intangible assets are stated in
the statement of financial position at the directly attnbutable cost of creation of the asset, less accumulated amortisation

Intangible assets acquired as part of business combinations comprise market related assets (e g trademarks,
imprints, brands), customer related assets (e g subscription bases, customer hsts, customer relationships), editonal
content, software and systems {e g apphication infrastructure, product delivery platforms, in-process research and
development), contract based assets (e g publishing nights, exhibition nights, supply contracts), and other intangible
assets [nternally generated intangible assets typically comprise software and systems development where an
identifiable asset 1s created that 1s probable to generate future economic benefits

[ntangible assets, other than brands and 1mprints determuined to have indefinite lives, are amortised systematically
over their esimated useful lives The estimated useful lives of intangible assets with firute lives are as follows market
and customer related assets — 3 to 40 years, content, software and other acquired intangible assets — 3 to 20 vears, and
internally developed intangible assets — 3 to 10 years Brands and imprints determined to have indefinite lives are not
amortised and are subject to impairment review at least annually

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less accumulated
depreciation No depreciation 1s provided on freehold land Freehold buildings and long leases are depreciated
over therr estimated useful hives up to a maximum of 50 years Short leases are written off over the duration of the
lease Depreciation 1s provided on other assets on a straight line basts over their estimated useful hives as follows
leasehold 1mprovements — shorter of life of lease and 10 years, plant — 3 to 20 years, office furniture, fixtures and
fittings — 5 to 10 years, computer systems, communication networks and equipment — 3 to 7 years

Investments

Investments, other than investments n joint ventures and associates, are stated 1n the statement of financial position at
fair value Investments held as part of the venture capital portfolio are classified as held for trading, with changes n
fair value reported through the income statement All other investments are classified as available for sale with
changes in fair value recognised directly 1n equity until the investment 1s disposed of or 15 determined to be impaired,
at which time the cumulanve gain or loss previously recognised in equity 1s brought into the net profit or loss for the
period All items recogmsed i the income statement relating to investments, other than mvestments 1n joint ventures
and associates, are reported as non operating items

Available for sale investments and venture capital investments held for trading represent investments 1n listed and
unlisted securtties The fair value of listed secunties 1s determined based on quoted market prices, and of unhisted
securitics on management s estimate of fair vatue based on standard valuation techmgques, including market
compansons and discounts of future cash flows, having regard to maximising the use of observable inputs and
adjusting for sk [ndependent valuation experts are used as appropriate

Shares of the parent companies, Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV, that are purchased by the Reed Elsevier Group
plc Employee Benefit Trust are classified as investments available for sale and are held at market value with changes n fair
value recogmsed directly in equuty
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments 1n joint ventures and associates are accounted for under the equity method and stated in the statement of
financial position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisiion changes in Reed Elsevier Group plc s share of net assets,
less any tmpairment in value

Impairment

At each statement of financial position date, reviews are camed out of the carrying amounts of tangible and mtangible
assets and goodwill to determine whether there 1s any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount, which 1s the higher of value 1n use and fair value less costs to sell,
of the asset 1s estimated in order to deterrmne the extent, if any, of the impairment loss Where the asset does not
generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, value in use estimates are made based on the cash flows of
the cash generating umit to which the asset belongs Intangible assets with an mdefimte useful Iife are tested for
impatrment at least annually and whenever there 1s any indication that the asset may be impaired

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit 1 estumated to be less than its net carrying amount, the
net carrying amount of the asset or cash generating umit 1s reduced to its recoverable amount Impairment losses are
recognised immediately in the income statement 1in adnunistration and other expenses

Inventories and pre-pubhcation costs

Inventones and pre-publication costs are stated at the lower of cost, including appropnate attnbutable overhead, and
estimated net realisable value Pre-publication costs, representing costs incurred in the origination of content prnor to
publication, are expensed systematically reflecting the expected sales profile over the estimated economic lives of
the related products, generally up to five years

Leases

Assets held under leases which confer nghts and obhigations similar to those attaching to owned assets are classified as
assets held under finance leases and capitalised within property, plant and equipment or software and the cerresponding
labihty to pay rentals 1s shown net of interest in the statement of financial position as obligations under finance

leases The capitalised value of the assets 1s depreciated on a straight line basis over the shorter of the periods of the
leases or the useful lives of the assets concerned The interest element of the lease payments 1s allocated so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of charge

Operating lease rentals are charged to the income statement on a strarght line basis over the penod of the leases Rental
income from operating leases 1s recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits and other short term tughly liquid investments and are
held in the statement of financial position at fair value

Assets held for sale

Assets of businesses that are available for immediate sale 1n their current condition and for which a sales process 15
considered highly prebable to complete are classified as assets held for sale, and are carned at the lower of carrying
value and fair value less costs to sell Non-current assets are not amortised or depreciated following their
classification as held for sale Liabilines of businesses held for sale are also separately classified on the statement of
financial position

Financial instruments

Financial instruments compnise investments (other than investments i joint ventures or assaciates), trade recetvables,
cash and cash equivalents, payables and accruals, provisions, borrowings and derivative financial instruments

[nvestments (other than investments in joint ventures and associates) are ciassified as erther held for trading or
available for sale, as descnibed above (These investments are classified as either Level | or 2 in the IFRS7 fair value
hierarchy }
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Trade receivables are carried in the statement of financial position at invoiced value less allowance for estimated
irecoverable amounts Jrrecoverable amounts are estimated based on the ageing of trade receivables, expenience and
circumstance

Borrowings (other than fixed rate borrowings in designated hedging relationships and for which the carrying value 1s
adjusted to reflect changes in the fair value of the hedged risk), payables, accruals and provisions are recorded initially at
fawr value and subsequently at amortised cost

Denvative financial instruments are used to hedge interest rate and foreign exchange nsks Changes 1n the fair value of
denvative financial instruments that are designated and effective as hedges of future cash flows are recognised {net of
tax) directly in equity 1n the hedge reserve [f a hedged firm commutment or forecasted transaction results in the
recognition of a non financial asset or hability, then, at the ime that the asset or habihty 1s recognised, the associated
gains or losses on the derivative that had previously been recognised 1n equity are included in the imtial measurement
of the asset or hability For hedges that do not result in the recogmtion of an asset or a liability, amounts deferred m
equity are recognised 1n the income statement in the same period in which the hedged item affects net profit or
loss Any ineffective portion of hedges 1s recogmised immedately in the income statement

Derivative financial instruments that are not designated as hedging instruments are classified as held for trading and
recorded 1n the statement of financial position at fair value, with changes 1n fair value recognised 1n the income
statement

Where an effective hedge 1s in place against changes 1n the fair value of fixed rate borrowings, the hedged borrowings
are adjusted for changes in fair value attributable to the risk being hedged wath a corresponding income or expense
included in the income statement wrthin finance costs The offsetting gamns or losses from remeasuning the fair value
of the related denvatives are also recognised 1n the income statement within finance costs When the related
derivative expires, 15 sold or terminated, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting, the cumulative change in
fair value of the hedged borrowing 1s amortised 1n the income statement over the pertod to maturnity of the borrowing
using the effective interest method

The fair values of interest rate swaps, wnterest rate options, forward rate agreements and forward foreign exchange
contracts represent the replacement costs calculated using observable market rates of interest and exchange The fair
value of long term borrowings 1s calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at observable market rates
(These instruments are accordingly classified as Level 2 1n the IFRS7 fair value hierarchy )

Cash flow hedge accounting 1s discontinued when a hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, terminated or
exercised, or no longer qualtfies for hedge accounting At that time, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging
instrument recognised in equity 15 either retained 1n equity until the firm commtment or forecasted transaction
occurs, or, where a hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, 1s immediately credited or expensed in the
income statement

Provisions

Provisions are recogmsed when a present obligation exists as a result of a past event, the obligation 1s reasonably
estimable and 1t 1s probable that settlement will be required Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation at the statement of financial position date
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Critical judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The most significant accounting policies 1n deterrmining the financial condition and results of the Reed Elsevier Group
plc group, and those requinng the most subjective or complex judgement, relate to the valuation of goodwill and
intangible assets, share based remuneration, pensions, litigation, taxation, and property provisioning

Goodwill and acquired intangible assets

On acquisition of a subsidiary or business, the purchase consideration 15 allocated between the net tangible and
mtangible assets other than goodwill on a fair value basis, with any excess purchase consideration representing
goodwill The valuation of acquired intangible assets represents the estimated economuc value n use, using standard
valuation methodologies, including as appropnate, discounted cash flow, relief from royalty and comparable market
transactions Acquired intangible assets are capitalised and amortised systematically over their estimated useful lives,
subject to impairment review

Appropriate amortisation periods are selected based on assessments of the longevity of the brands and impnints, the
strength and stability of customer relationships, the market positions of the acquired assets and the technological and
competitive nsks that they face Certain intangible assets in relation to acquired science and medical publishing
businesses have been determined to have indefimte lives The longevity of these assets 1s evidenced by their long
established and well regarded brands and imprints, and their charactenistically stable market positions

The carrying amounts of goodwill and indefinite lived mtangible assets 1n each business are reviewed for impairment
at least annually The carrying amounts of all other mtangible assets are reviewed where there are indications of
possible impairment An impairment review involves a comparison of the carrying value of the asset with estimated
values 1n use based on latest management cash flow projections Key areas of judgement in estimating the values 1n
use of businesses are the growth in cash flows over a five-year forecast period, the long term growth rate assumed
thereafter and the discount rate apphed to the forecast cash flows

The discount rates used are based on the Reed Elsevier Group plc weighted average cost of capital, adjusted to reflect
a nsk premium specific to each business The pre-tax discount rates applied are 11 4% for Scientific, Techrnical &
Medical, 11 8% for Risk Solutions, 11 5-12 9% for Business Information, 11 6% for Legal and 11 2-12 9% for
Exhibitions The norminal long term growth rates, which are based on historic growth rates and the growth prospects
for businesses are 3% There were no charges for impairment of acquired intangible assets and goodwill 1n 2012
(2011 mil)

A sensitivity analysis has been performed based on changes in key assumptions considered to be reasonably possible
by management an increase in the discount rate of 0 5%, a decrease 1n the compound annuat growth rate for adjusted
operating cash flow i the five-year forecast period of 2 0%, and a decrease in perpetwity growth rates of 0 5% The
sensitivity analysis shows that no rmpairment charges would result under any of the sensitivity scenarios Further
mformation 1s provided n note 14 to the consolidated financial statements

Share based remuneration

Share based remuneration 1s determined based on the fair value of an award at the date of grant, and 1s spread over
the vesting pertod on a straight line basis, taking into account the number of shares that are expected to vest The fair
value of awards 1s determined at the date of grant by use of a binomal or Monte Carlo simulation model as
appropriate, which requires judgements to be made regarding share price volatility, dividend yield, risk free rates of
return and expected option lives The number of awards that are expected to vest requires judgements to be made
regarding forfeiture rates and the extent to which performance conditions will be met The assumptions are
deterrmined in conjunction with independent actuaries based on historical data and trends

The assumptions of share price volatility of 30%, of expected share option life of four years, and of expected lapse
rate of 2-5% are based on relevant historical data Other judgements made on grant are based on market data
Assumptions as to future performance against non market related vesting conditions are based on management
estimates The charge for share based and related remuneration was £26m 1n 2012 (2011 £27m) Further information
1s provided 1n note 6 to the consolidated financial statements
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Penstons

Accountmyg for defined benefit penston schemes involves judgement about uncertatn events, including the hife
expectancy of the members, salary and penston increases, mflation, the return on scheme assets and the rate at which
the future penston payments are discounted Esumates for these factors are used in determining the pension cost and
habilities reported 1n the financial statements These best estimates of future developments are made 1n conjunction
with independent actuanies Each scheme 1s subject to a periodic review by independent actuaries

The principal assumptions as at 31 December 2012, expressed as a weighted average of the various defined benefit
pension schemes, were a discount rate of 4 4% (2011 5 2%, 2010 5 6%), an expected rate of salary increases of
32% (2011 3 5%, 2010 4 1%) and nflation of 2 7% (2011 2 9%, 2010 3 2%) The expected return on scheme
assets set at the beginning of the year was 6 2% for 2012 and 6 8% for 2011 Future pension mcreases are assumed at
2 8% (2011 29%, 2010 3 2%) and average hife expectancy of 88-89 years (2011 88-89 years) for scheme members
currently aged 45 and 60 years The net defined benefit pension expense was £18m (2011 £23m) The service cost
was £43m (2011 £57m) after pension curtailment credits of £20m (2011 £9m) from changes to pension plan design
and staff reductions The net pension financing credit 1s based on market data at the beginning of the year and was
£25m (2011 £34m) reflecting the increase in scheme lhiabilities at the beginning of the year compared with a year
before and lower expected asset returns  Further information and sensitivity analysis 1s provided 1n note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements

Litganion

Reed Elsevier Group plc 1s involved in vanous legal proceedings, which arise in the normal course of 1ts business,
relating to conmmercial disputes, employment, data securtty and product hability Provisions for hiabilities are
recognised when 1t 1s probable that a settlement 1s required Although the outcome of legal proceedings 1s uncertain,
the ultimate resolution of such matters 15 not expected to have a matenal impact on results

Taxation

Reed Elsevier Group ple 1s subject to tax 1n numerous jurisdictions, giving nse to complex tax 1ssues that require
management to exercise judgement in making tax determinations While Reed Elsevier Group plc 1s confident that
tax returns are appropniately prepared and filed, amounts are provided n respect of uncertain tax positions that reflect
the risk with respect to tax matters under active discussion with tax authonties, or whch are otherwise considered to
involve uncertainty Amounts are provided using the best estimate of tax expected to be paid based on a qualitative
assessment of all relevant factors However, it 1s possible that at some future date habilities may be adjusted as a
result of audits by taxing authorities Discussions with tax anthorities relating to cross border transactions and other
matters are ongoing Although the outcome of open items cannot be predicted, no sigmificant impact on the financial
position of Reed Elsevier Group plc 1s expected

In addition, estimation of income taxes includes assessments of recoverability of deferred tax assets Deferred tax
assets are only recogrised to the extent that they are considered recoverable based on existing tax laws and forecasts
of future taxable profits against which the underlying tax deductions can be utilised The recoverability of these
assets 1s reassessed at the end of each reporting period, and changes in recognition of deferred tax assets will affect
the tax liability 1n the peniod of that reassessment

Property provistons

Reed Elsevier Group plc has exposures to sub lease shortfalls in respect of certain property leases for periods up to
2024 Prowvisions are recogmsed for net hatnhittes expected to anse on these exposures Estimation of the provisions
requires Jjudgement in respect of future head lease costs, sub lease income and the length of vacancy periods The
charge for property provisions was £62m (2011 £16m) relating to surplus property ansing on the restructuring, sale
and closure of businesses and includes expected losses on sub leases entered into during 2012 and an estimate of
vacancy pertods and future market conditions Further information 1s provided in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements

Other significant accounting policies

The accounting policies in respect of revenue recogmtion, pre-publications costs and development spend are also
signuficant in determining the financial condition and results of the Reed Elsevier Group ple group, although the
apphication of these pelicies 1s more straightforward

Revenue recogmition policies, while an area of management focus, are generally strmghtforward 1n application as the
tuming of product or service delivery and customer acceptance for the various revenue types can be readily
determined Allowances for product returns are deducted from revenues based on historical return rates Where sales
consist of two or more components that operate independently, revenue 1s recognised as each component 15
completed by performance, based on atinbution of relative value
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Pre-publication costs incurred in the creation of content prior to production and publication are typically deferred and
expensed over their estimated useful lives based on sales profiles Such costs typically compnise direct intemnal labour
costs and externally commuissioned editorial and other fees Estimated useful lives generally do not exceed five years
Annual reviews are carried out to assess the recoverability of carrying amounts

Development spend embraces investment in new product and other imtiatives, ranging from the building of new
online delivery platforms, to launch costs of new services, to bulding new infrastructure apphcations Launch costs
and other operating expenses of new products and services are expensed as incurred The costs of building product
applicattons and infrastructure are capitalised as intangible assets and amortised over their esumated useful hives
Impairment reviews are carried out at least annually

Standards and amendments effective for the year
The interpretations and amendments to [FRS effective for 2012 have not had a significant impact on Reed Elsevier
Group plc s accountng policies or reporting

Standards, amendments and interpretations not yet effective
New accounting standards and amendments and their expected impact on the future accounting policies and reporting of
Reed Elsevier Group ple are set out below

IAS19 — Employee Benefits (revised) (effective for the 2013 financial year) The revised standard inter aha changes
the methodology to be used n the calculation of the net pension financing credit or charge in relation to defined
benefit pension schemes Under the revised standard, pension asset retumns included within the net pension financing
credut or charge are to be calculated by reference to the discount rate of a high quality corporate bond (being also the
discount rate applied in the calcuiation of pension obligations) and no longer based on the expected returns on
scheme assets Typically the effect will be to reduce the asset returns recognised in the income statement  As required
under the revised standard, comparatives will be restated accordingly The revised standard also prohibits the use of
certain accounung alternatives, previously permitted, that enabled the smoothing of volatility in the income statement
and balance sheet 1n relation to pensions, but this will not affect Reed Elsevier Group plc s pension accounting as
such altematives were not apphed There 15 no change to the measurement of pension scheme assets and obfigations
under the revised standard for Reed Elsevier Group plc

Adoption of IAS19 (revised) will have no impact on Reed Elsevier Group ple s consohdated balance sheet or cash
flows The net pension financing credit or charge will, with effect from 1 January 2013, be presented within net
finance costs in Reed Elsevier Group ple s consolidated incoime statement, rather than within operating profit as
currently reported Given that the revised standard may 1ntroduce greater volatnthty to the income statement,
following adoption on 1 January 2013 the net pension financing credit or charge will be excluded from the adjusted
earmings figures used by Reed Elsevier Group ple as additronal performance measures

Had [AS19 (revised) and related presentation been in effect for the 2012 financial year, operating profit for twelve
months to 31 December 2012 would have been £25m lower (2011 £34m) and net finance costs would have been
higher by £11m (2011 £9m) On an adjusted basis, profit before tax would have been £25m lower (2011 £34m)
The balance sheet and cash flows would have been unchanged

{FRS9 — Financial Instruments (effective for the 2015 financial year) The standard replaces the existing
classification and measurement requirements in LAS39 for financial assets by requiring entities to classify them as
being measured either at amortised cost or fair value depending on the business model and contractual cash flow
characteristics of the asset For financial habihities, [FRS9 requires an entity choosing to measure a Irability at fair
value to present the portion of the change in 1ts fair value due to changes in the entity *s own credit nisk 1n the other
comprehensive income rather than the income statement Adoption of the standard 1s not expected to have a
sigruficant impact on the measurement, presentation or disclosure of financial assets and habihities in the
consolidated financial statements

IFRS10 — Consolidated Financial Statements (effective for the 2013 financial year) The standard introduces a single
consohdation model for all entities based on control, irrespective of the nature of the investee IFRS10 replaces
1AS27 — Separate Financial Statements Adoption of the standard 15 not expected to have a significant impact on the
measurement, presentation or disclosure of the consolidation of entities in the consolidated financial statements

IFRS11 - joint Arrangements (effective for the 2013 financial year) This standard classifies joint arrangements as
either jount ventures or a joint operation and removes the option to proportionately consolidate joint ventures [FRS11
replaces IAS28 — Investments in Assoctates and Joint Ventures Adoption of the standard 1s not expected to
significantly impact the measurement, presentation or disclosure of the joint ventures 1n the consolidated financial
statements
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1FRS12 — Disclosure of Interests in Other Entines {effective for the 2013 financial year) The standard combines the
disclosure requirements for subsidharies, joint arrangements, associates and unconsolidated structured entities into
one standard Adoption of the standard may result in additional disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
but 1s not expected to have a significant impact on Reed Elsevier Group ple s reporuing

IFRS13 — Fair Value Measurement (effective for the 2013 financial year) The standard consolidates the guidance
and disclosure requirements of fair value measurement contamned throughout IFRS and also requires new disclosures
related to valuation techmques and inputs into fair value measurements Adoption of the standard 15 not expected to
have a significant impact on the measurement, presentation or disclosure of financial assets and liabibities in the
consohdated financial statements

[AS1 - Presentation of [tems of Other Comprehensive Income — Amendments to 1ASH {effective for the 2013
financial year) The standard amends the grouping of 1tems presented in the statement of comprehensive income nto
ttems that may be reclassified (or recycled) to the profit or loss 1n a future period and 1tems that will never be
reclassified Adoption of the standard will lead to some re-presentation of the items n the statement of
comprehensive income in the consolidated financial statements

Additionally, a number of interpretations have been issued which are not expected to have any significant impact on
Reed Elsevier Group plc’s accounung pohicies and reporting

64
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

Segment analysis

Reed Elsevier Group plc s reported segments are based on the internal reporting structure and financial information
provided to the Chief Executive Officer and Board

Reed Elsevier Group plc 1s a world leading provider of professional information solutions orgamised as five business
segments Scientific, Techmical & Medical, providing information and tools to help its customers improve scientific and
healthcare outcomes, Risk Solutions, providing tools that combine proprietary, public and third-party information with
advanced technology and analytics, Business Information, providing data services, information and marketing soluttons
to business professionals, Legal, providing legal, tax, regulatory news & business information to legal, corporate,
government, accounting and academic markets, and Exhibitions, organising exhibiuons and conferences

Adpusted operating profit 1s the key segmental profit measure used by Reed Elsevier Group plc 1n assessing
performance It 1s stated before amorusation of acquired intangible assets, the share of profit on disposals 1n joint
ventures, acquisition related costs, and ts grossed up to exclude the equity share of taxes 1n joint ventures Adjusted
operating profit is reconciled to operating profit in note 10

Analysis by business segment Revenue Operaung profit Adjusted operating profit
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £fm £m Em £m £m
Scienttfic, Technical & Medical 2,008 1,990 658 646 721 709
Risk Solutions 926 908 281 181 391 362
Business Information 663 695 76 68 119 110
Legal 1,610 1,634 146 144 234 229
Exhibitions 854 707 165 127 204 162
Sub-total 6,061 5,934 1,326 1,166 1,669 1,572
Corporate costs - - (38) 4D (38) 38)
Unallocated net pension financing credit - - 25 34 25 34
Total 6,061 5,934 1,313 1,159 1,656 1,568

Revenue 15 analysed before the £91m (2011 £128m) share of joint ventures’ revenue, of which £2m (2011 £2m) relates
to Business Information, £22m (2011 £23m) relates to Legal, principally to Guuffré, and £67m (2011 £103m) relates to
Exhibitions

Share of post-tax results of jomt ventures of £24m (2011 £30m) included 1n operating profit comprises mil (2011 £1m)
relating to Business Information, £2m (2011 £4m) relaung to Legal, £22m (2011 £25m) relating to Exhibitions The
unallocated net penston financing credit of £25m (2011 £34m) compnises the expected retum on pension scheme assets
of £221m (2011 £235m) less interest on pension scheme hiabilities of £196m (2011 £201m)
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Segment analysis (continued)

Analysis of revenue by geographical origin

North Amenca
United Kingdom
The Netherlands
Rest of Europe
Rest of worid

Total

Analysis of revenue by geographical market

North Amenca
United Kingdom
The Netherlands
Rest of Europe
Rest of world

Total

Analysis of revenue by type

Subscriptions
Circulation/transactions
Advertising

Exhibitions

Other

Total

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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2012 2011
fm £m
3,122 3,103
966 947
610 615
761 747
602 522
6,061 5,934
2012 201t
fm £m
3,143 3,209
441 483
165 188
L170 1,084
1,142 970
6,061 5,934
2012 20114
£m £m
2,953 2,787
1,574 1,616
349 436
846 700
339 395
6,061 5,934




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Segment analysis (continued)

Analysis by business segment Expenditure on Capital Amortisation of

acquired goodwill and expenditure acquired Depreciation and

intangible assets additions intangible assets other amortisation
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m £m fm £fm £m
Scientific, Techmcal & Medical 397 38 106 94 56 60 81 68
Risk Solutions 15 - 21 23 109 156 23 26
Business Information - 532 17 18 37 29 14 15
Legal 80 - 173 203 83 78 92 87
Exhibitions 178 33 25 22 32 24 16 10
Total 670 603 342 360 317 347 226 206

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and equipment and internally developed intangible assets
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets includes amounts 1n respect of joint ventures of £1m (2011 £4m) in
Exhibitions Other than the depreciation and amortisation above, non cash items mmclude £31m (2011 £27m)
relating to the recogmtion of share based remuneration, comprising £5m (2011 £5m) in Scientific, Technical &
Medical, ml (2011 £3m) in Risk Solutions, £3m (2011 £2m) i Business Information, £7m (2011 £6m) in Legal, £4m

(2011 £3m) m Exhibitions and £12m (2011 £8m) in Corporate

Analysis of non-current assets by geographical location 012 2011

£m £m
North America 6,511 6,981
United Kingdom 674 645
The Netherlands 121 124
Rest of Europe 904 668
Rest of world 374 291
Total 8,584 8,709

Non-current assets by geographic location exclude amounts relating to deferred tax and denvative financial instruments
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Operating profit
Operating profit 1s stated after charging/(crediting) the following

2012 2011

Note fm £m
Staff costs
Wages and salanes 1,532 1,521
Social security costs 185 171
Pensions 5 64 62
Share based and related remuneration 26 27
Total staff costs 1,807 1,781
Depreciation and amortisation
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 15 316 343
Share of joint ventures’ amortisation of acquired intangible assets 1 4
Amortisation of internally developed intangible assets 15 150 131
Depreciatron of property, plant and equipment 17 76 75
Total depreciation and amortisation 543 553
Other expenses and income
Pre-publication costs, inventory expenses and other cost of sales 2,167 2,104
Royalties payable to the Elsevier Reed Finance BV group 37 38
Operating lease rentals expense 112 116
Operating lease rentals income (10) (11

Depreciation and amortisation charges are included within adrmimistration and other expenses

Auditor’s remuneration

2012 2011
£m £m
Auditor’s remuneration
For audit services 45
For non audit services 1.6 11
Total auditer’s remunteration 6.1 56

Auditor s remuneration for audit services comprises £0 5m (2011 £0 5m) payable to the auditors of the parent company
and £4 0m (2011 £4 0m) payable to the auditors of the parent company and their associates for the audit of the financial
staternents of the operating and financing businesses, including the review and testing of internal controls over financial
reporting in accordance with the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act Auditor s remuneration for non audit services compnses £0 8m
(2011 £0 7m) for tax comphance services, £0 7m (2011 £0 2m) for other audit related assurance services and £0 Im
(2011 £0 2m) for due diligence and other transaction related services
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Personnel

Number of people employed

At 31 December Average during the year

2012 2011 2012 2011
Business segment
Scientific, Technical & Medical 6,800 6,700 6,800 6,700
Risk Solutions 4,100 4,000 4,000 4,300
Business Information 4,800 5,600 5,200 5,400
Legal 10,400 10,300 10,400 10,400
Exhibitions 3,200 2,800 3,000 2,700
Sub-total 29,300 29,400 29,400 29,500
Corporate/shared functions 900 Q00 200 900
Total 30,200 30,300 30,300 30,400
Geographical tocation
North America 15,700 16,000 15,900 16,300
United Kingdom 4,100 4,600 4,200 4,600
The Netherlands 1,600 1,600 1,600 1,600
Rest of Europe 3,500 3,600 3,600 3,700
Rest of world 5,300 4,500 5,000 4,200
Total 30,200 30,300 30,300 30,400

Pension schemes

A number of pension schemes are operated around the world Histoncally, the major schemes have been of the defined
benefit type with assets held in separate trustee administered funds The largest defined benefit schemes are in the UK,
the US and the Netherlands Under these plans, employees are entitled to retirement benefits dependent on the number of
years service provided

The principal assumptions for the purpose of valuation under IAS19 - Employee Benefits are determined for each scheme
in conjunction with the respective schemes® independent actuaries and are presented below as the weighted average
of the vanous defined benefit pension schemes The defined benefit pension expense for each year 15 based on the
assumptions and scheme valuations set at 31 December of the prior year

As at 31 December

2012 2011 2010
Discount rate 4.4% 52% 5 6%
Expected rate of return on scheme assets n/a 62% 6 8%
Expected rate of salary increases 32% 35% 41%
[nflation 27% 29% 32%
Future pension increases 28% 29% 32%

The discount rate 1s set by reference to AA corporate bond yields The expected rates of return on individual categones of
scheme assets are determined by reference to relevant market indices and market expectations of real rates of return The
overail expected rate of return on scheme assets 1s based on the weighted average of each asset category

Mortality assumptions used 1n assessing defined benefit obligations make allowance for future improvements in
longewvity and have been determined by refcrence to applicable mortality statistics and the actuaries” expectations for
each scheme

69




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Pension schemes (continued)

The average life expectancies assumed in the valuation of the defined benefit obligations are set out below

2012 2001

Male Female Male Female

Average life expectancy (at 31 December) (years) (years) {years) {years)
Member currently aged 60 88 88 88 87
Member currently aged 45 89 89 89 88

The pension expense recogmsed within the income statement comprises

2012 2011

£m fm

Service cost (including settlement and curtailment credits of £20m (2011 £9m)) 43 57
Interest on pension scheme liabilities 196 201
Expected return on scheme assets (221) (235)
Net defined benefit pension expense 18 23
Defined contrbution pension expense 46 39
Total pension expense 64 62
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Pension schemes (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

The amount recognised n the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit pension schemes at the start
and end of the year and the movements dunng the year were as follows

At start of year

Service cost

Interest on pension scheme
Liabilities

Expected return on scheme assets

Actuanal (loss)/gain

Contributions by employer

Contributions by employees

Benefits paid

Exchange translation differences

At end of year

2012 2011

Defined  Fmur value of Net Defined Fair value of Net

benefit scheme pension benefit scheme pension

oblgations assets obligations obhigahions assets abligations

£m £m £m fm £m £m
(3,876) 3,634 (242) (3,677 3,507 (170)
{43) - (43) 37 - 57
(196) - (196) (201) - (201)

- 221 221 - 235 235
(416) 87 (329) (78) (35) (113)

- 116 116 - 66 66

(1) 11 - (an 1 -

216 (216} - 141 (141) -
54 @7 7 7 {9) (2)
(4,272) 3,806 {466) (3,876) 3,634 (242)

The net pension obligations of £466m (2011 £242m) at 31 December 2012 comprise schemes in deficit with net pension
obligations of £466m (2011 £242m), and schetmes in surplus with net pension assets of ml (2011 ml)

As at 31 December 2012 the defined benefit obligations comprise £4,112m (2011 £3,721m) 1n relation to funded
schemes and £160m (2011 £155m) in relation to unfunded schemes The weighted average duration of defined
benefit scheme Labilities 1s 19 years (2011 19 years) Deferred tax assets of £153m (2011 £86m) are recognised in
respect of the pension scheme deficits
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Pension schemes (continued)

The fair value of scheme assets held as equities, bonds and other assets, and their expected rates of return as at
31 December, are shown below

012 2011
Fair value of Proportion  Expected rate Fair value of Proportion
scheme of total of return on scheme of total
assets scheme scheme assets scheme
£m assets assets £m assels
Equities 1,804 47% 8 7% 1,699 47%
Bonds 1,715 45% 37% 1,722 47%
Other 287 8% 4 3% 213 6%
Total 3,806 100% 6 2% 3,634 100%

The actual return on scheme assets for the year ended 31 December 2012 was a £308m gain (2011 £200m gain)

A summary of pension balances in respect of funded and unfunded schemes for the five years ended 31 December 2012

15 set out below

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

£m fm £m £m Em

Fair value of scheme assets 3,806 3,634 3,507 3,067 2,682
Defined benefit obligations {4,272) (3,876) (3,677 (3,302) (3,051}
Net pension obligations (466) (242) (170) (235) (369)

Gains and losses arising on the revaluation of pension scheme assets and lizbilinies that have been recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income are set out below

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m £m
Gains and losses ansing during the year
Experience (losses)/gains on scheme liabilities (32) 27N (43} 18 (9)
Experience gains/(losses) on scheme assets 87 (35) 198 301 (765)
Actuaral (losses)/gains anising on the present
value of scheme liabilities due to changes in
- discount rates (552) (238) (162} (249) 202
- inflation 74 182 (50) (124) 198
- other actuarial assumptions 94 5 (6) 60 27
(329) (113) 63) 6 (347)
Net cumulative (losses)/gains at start of year (265) (152) (89) (95) 252
Net cumulative losses at end of year (594) (265) {152) (89) (95)

Regular contributions to defined benetit pension schemes 1n respect of 2013 are expected to be approxumately £55m
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Penston schemes (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

Valuation of the Reed Elsevier Group plc group s pension scheme liabihiies involves judgements about uncertain
events, including the life expectancy of the members, salary and pension increases, inflation and the rate at which the
future pension payments are discounted Estimates are used for each of these factors, determined in conjunction with
independent actuanies Differences ansing from actual experience or future changes in assumptions may matertally
affect future pension charges In particular, changes in assumptions for discount rates, inflavon and life expectancies
would have the following approximate effects on the annual service cost and the defined benefit pension obhigations

£m
Increase/decrease of 0 25% 1n the discount rate
Decrease/increase 1n annual service cost 5
Decreasefincrease in defined benefit pension obligations 195
e —|
Increase/decrease of one year 1n assumed life expectancy
Increase/decrease in annual service cost 1
Increase/decrease in defined benefit pension obligations 104
Increase/decrease of 0 25% n the expected inflation rate
Increase/decrease in annual service cost 3

Increase/decrease in defined benefit pension obligations 113

Share based remuneration

The Reed Elsevier Group plc group provides a number of share based remuneration schemes to directors and
employees The prnincipal share based remunerauon schemes are the Executive Share Option Schemes (ESOS), the
Long Term [ncenttve Plan (LTIP), the Reed Elsevier Growth Plan (REGP), the Retentton Share Plan (RSP) and the
Bonus Investment Plan (BIP) Share options granted under ESOS and LTIP are exercisable after three years and up to
ten years from the date of grant at a price equivalent to the market value of the respective shares at the date of grant
Conditional shares granted under ESOS, LTIP, RSP and BIP are exercisable after three years for nil consideration 1f
conditions are met Conditional shares granted under REGP are exercisable for nil consideration 1f conditions are met
alter three and five years Other awards principally relate to all employee share based saving schemes 1n the UK and the
Netherlands

Share based remuneration awards are, other than upon retirement or 1in exceptional circumstances, subject to the
condition that the employee remains in employment at the time of exercise

Conditional shares granted under LTIP, REGP, RSP and BIP 1n 2010, 2011 and 2012 are subject to the achievement of
growth targets of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV adjusted earnings per share measured at constant exchange
rates as well as the achievement of a targeted percentage return on invested capital of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed
Elsevier NV LTIP grants in 2010, 2011 and 2012 and REGP grants are also vanable subject to the achievernent of a
total shareholder return performance target
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Share based remuneration (continued)

The weighted average fair value per award 1s based on full vesting on achievement of non market related performance
conditions and stochastic models for market related components The conditionat shares and option awards are
recognised in the income statement over the vesting penod, being between three and five years, on the basis of expected
performance agamst the non market related conditions, with the fair value related to market related components
unchanging Further detatls of performance conditions are given in the Directors Remuneration Report

In respectof In respect of
Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares Reed Elsevter NV ordinary shares
Weighted Weighted
average far average fair
Number of shares value peraward  Number of shares  value per award
000 £ ‘000 £
2012 grants
Share options
- ESOS 1,801 090 1,263 120
- Other 702 L.04 293 0.95
Total share options 2,503 094 1,556 E15
Conditional shares
- ESOS 797 4 60 560 6.41
-LTIP 1,807 445 1,144 6.13
- RSP 256 6 00 5 7.82
- B1P 1,542 520 696 7.41
Total conditionsl shares 4,402 483 2,405 6.57
201t grants
Share options
- ESOS 2,053 098 1,372 141
- Other 633 103 381 097
Total share options 2,686 099 1,753 132
Conditional shares
- ESOS 755 4 85 504 691
-LTiP 1,822 4356 1,217 665
- RSP 322 473 5 715
- BIP 1,339 543 607 800
Total conditional shares 4,238 490 2,333 706
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Share based remuneration (continued)

The main assumptions used to determine the fair values, which have been established with advice from and data
provided by independent actuaries, are set out below

In respect of in respect of
Reed Flsevier PLC Reed Elsevier NV
Assumptions for grants made during the year ordinary shares ordinary shares
2012 201t 012 201t
Weighted average share price at date of grant
- ESOS £5.19 £539 €907 €897
-LTIP £525 £531 €891 €8 389
- RSP £6 00 £5 26 £9 65 €927
- BIP £520 £543 €915 €921
- Other £5 49 £513 €9 63 €903
Expected share price volatility 30% 29% 30% 29%
Expected option life 4 years 4 years 4 years 4 years
Expected dividend yield 39% 3 6% 45% 41%
Risk free interest rate 0.8% 19% 0.9% 25%
Expected lapse rate 2-5% 2-5% 2-4% 2-4%

Expected share price volatility has been estimated based on relevant historic data in respect of the Reed Elsevier
PLC and Reed Elsevier NV ordinary share prices Expected share option hfe has been estimated based on histoncat
exercise patterns in respect of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV share options

The share based remuneration awards outstanding as at 31 December 2012, i respect of both Reed Elsevier PLC and
Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares, are set out below

In respect of In respect of

Reed Elsevier PLC Reed Elsevier NV

ordinary shares ordinary shares
Number of Weighted Number of Weighted
shares average sharcs average
under exercise under exercise
option price option price
Share Options 000 {pence) '000 (F)
Outstanding at 1 January 2011 33,711 544 24,833 1145
Granted 2,686 509 1,753 899
Exercised (1,626) 493 (201} 884
Forfeited {2,001) 479 (1,941} 1094
Expired {3,230) 640 (2,803 8§68
Qutstandming at 1 January 2012 29,540 534 21,641 10.99
Granted 2,503 497 1,556 9.19
Exercised (6,694) 497 (1,913) 9.36
Forfeited (1,022) 498 {581} 9.33
Expired (4,992) 592 (5,121) 12 34
Outstanding at 31 December 2012 19,335 529 15,582 10 63
Exercisable at 31 December 2011 20,061 552 16,876 11 56
Exercisable at 31 December 2012 12,573 553 12,329 1112
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Share based remuneration (continued)

In respect of In respect of

Reed Elsevier PLC Reed Elsevier NV

Conditional shares ordinary shares ordinary shares
Mumber of shares Number of shares

000 ‘000

Outstanding at 1 January 2011 12,037 7,293
Granted 4,238 2,332
Vested (580) (383)
Forferted (1,799) (975}
Outstanding at 1 January 2012 13,896 8,267
Granted 4,402 2.405
Vested {601) {391)
Forfeited (5,885) (3,57%)
Outstanding at 31 December 2012 11,812 6,706
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Share based remuneration {continued)

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of share options and vesting of conditional shares during 2012
was 593p (2011 554p) for Reed Elsevier PL.C ordinary shares and €10 43 (2011 €9 71) for Reed Elsevier NV ordinary
shares

2012 2011

Range of exercise prices for outstanding share options Weighted Weighted
average aveTage
Number of remaining Number of remaining
shares under penod until shares under period untl
option expiry option expiry
000 (years) ‘000 (years)

Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares (pence)
401-450 1,925 2.8 2,148 29
451-500 4,415 35 7,793 36
501-550 8,981 5.7 11,662 55
551-600 189 54 2,726 08
601-650 3,825 4.8 5,176 57
651-700 - - 35 03
Total 19,335 4.7 29,540 44

Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares (euro)

7 01-8 00 58 6.1 120 72
8§01-9 00 2,736 1.7 3,233 86
901-1000 3,142 6.9 3,686 53
10 01-11 00 2,697 1.6 3,921 23
11 01-12 00 3,982 2.6 4865 35
12 01-13 00 1,806 5.1 2,339 60
13 01-14 00 118 4.1 2,025 05
14 01-15 00 1,043 4.1 1,426 51
15 01-16 00 - - 26 03
Total 15,582 4.6 21,641 45

Share options are expected, upon exercise, to be met principally by the 1ssue of new ordinary shares but may also be met
from shares held by the Reed Elsevier Group plc Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) (see note 16) Conditional shares will
be met from shares held by the EBT
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Net finance costs

012 2011
fm £m

Interest on short term bank leans, overdrafts and commercial paper (12) (15)
Interest on other loans (146) (165)
Interest payable to Reed Elsevier NV ] (18)
Interest payable to Reed Elsevier PLC (1 (0
Interest payable to the Elsevier Reed Finance BV group 313 (341)
Interest on obhgations under finance leases (1) (1)
Total borrowing costs (480) (541)
Losses on loans and derivatives not designated as hedges (@) (10)
Finance costs (486) (551)
Interest on bank deposits 6 10
Gains on loans and derivattves not designated as hedges 1 5
Dividends received from Reed Elsevier NV 2 2
Finance income 9 17
Net finance costs (477) (534)
Finance costs include £4m {2011 £5m) transferred from the hedge reserve
Disposals and other non operating items

1012 2011

£m £m

Revaluation of held for trading investments 19 6
Property provisions on disposed businesses (60) (16)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of businesses and assets held for sale 86 (12)
Net gain/(loss) on disposals and other non cperating items 45 (22)

Property provistons relate to estimated sub-lease shortfalls and guarantees given in respect of certain property leases for
various periods up to 2024 The charge in 2012 of £62m (2011 £16m) predominantly relates to property exposures on
disposed businesses
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Taxation
2012 2011
fm £m
Current tax
United Kingdom 80 62
The Nethertands 67 86
Rest of world (5) 98
Total current tax charge 142 246
Deferred tax (42) (77
Tax expense 100 169

The net tax expense charged on profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted

average of tax rates applicable to accounting profits and losses of the consolidated entities, as follows

2012 2011

fm £m

Profit before tax 881 603
Tax at average applicable rates 238 160
Tax on share of results of joint ventures ¥)) )
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 33 26
Non-deductible costs of share based remuneration 3) 3
(Non-taxable)/non-deductible disposal related gains and losses 69 7
Tax losses of the period not recognised 6 4
Recognition and utilisation of tax losses that arose n prior years ®) (22)
Exceptional pnor year credit (96) -
Other adjustments in respect of prior periods 3 1
Deferred tax effect of changes 1n tax rates 1 (1)
Tax expense 100 169

The weighted average applicable tax rate for the year was 27% (2011 26%) This increase 1s caused by a change n the
relative profitability of the consehdated entities in the countries in which they operate, partially offset by the impact of

the reduction 1n the tax rate of the United Kingdom (see below)

During 2012, Reed Elsevier Group ple resolved a number of significant prior year tax matters and reassessed 1ts
exposure to other tax matters across the jurisdictions in which Reed Elsevier Group plc operates As a result of this
reassessment, current tax habilities were reduced by £96m to reflect the lower cash tax expected to be payable
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Taxation (continued

The following tax has been recogmised directly 1n equity during the year

2012 2011

fm £m

Tax on actuanal movements on defined benefit pension schemes 102 36
Tax on fair value movements on cash flow hedges 19 5
Tax credut on share based remuneration 5 1
Net tax credit recognised directly in equity 88 42

A number of changes to the UK corporation tax system, including reductions of the main rate of corporation tax from
26% to 24% with effect from 1 Apnl 2012, and from 24% to 23% with effect from | Apnl 2013, were substantively
enacted on 3 July 2012 Reed Elsevier Group plc has therefore remeasured 1ts UK deferred tax assets and habilities at
the end of the reporting pertod at 23%, which has resulted in recognition of a deferred tax debit of £1m in the income
statement The UK government has also announced an intention to reduce the rate of corporation tax to 21% by | Apnil
2014, but as this change had not been substantively enacted at the date of the statement of financial position, the effect
on deferred tax has not been recognised in these financial statements It 1s not currently anticipated that the proposed
reduction 1n rate would have a sigmificant impact on deferred tax balances

Adjusted operating profit

The Reed Elsevier Group ple group uses adjusted operating profit as an additional performance measure Adjusted
operating profit 1s stated before amortisation of acquired intangible assets, acquisition related costs, and 1s also grossed
up to exclude the equity share of taxes and disposals in joint ventures  Acquisition related costs relate 1o acquisiion
integration, professional and other transaction related fees, and adjustments to deferred and contingent consideration

1012 2011
£m £m

Operating profit 1,313 1,159
Adjustments

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 317 347

Acqusition related costs 21 52

Share of profit on disposals in joint ventures - (n

Reclassification of tax 1n joint ventures 5 1
Adjusted operating profit 1,656 1,568
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

Statement of cash flows

Reconciliation of operating profit before joint ventures to cash

generated from operations
Operating profit before joint ventures

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets
Amortisation of internally developed intangible assets
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Share based remuneration

Total non cash items

Decrease in inventories and pre-publication costs
Decrease/(increase) in receivables

Decrease in payables

Increase in working capital

Cash generated from operations

Cash flow on acquisitions

Purchase of businesses
Investment 1n joint ventures
Deferred payments relating to prior year acquisitions

Total
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2012 2011
im £m
1,289 1,i29
316 343
150 131
76 75
31 27
573 576
21 30
8 (38}
(85) (23)
(56) B
1,806 1,674
2012 20M1
£m £m
{513) (448)
(10) (1)
30) (25)
{553) (474)
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Statement of cash flows (continued)

Reconciliation of net borrowings Net
borrowings
Related from
denvative  shareholders
Cash and cash financial and fellow
equivalents Borrowings instruments affiliates 2012 201t
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At start of year 560 (2,679 30 {7,870) (9,959) (9,527)
Increase/(decrease} in cash and cash
equivalents 42 - - - 42 (ed)
Net movement n short term bank
loans, overdrafis and commercial
paper - 238 - - 238 (125)
Issuance of other loans - (157) - - (157) -
Repayment of other loans - 346 - - 346 150
Repayment of finance leases - 4 - - 4 22
Net movement 1n borrowings from
shareholders and fellow affiliates - - - (360) (360) (403)
Change in net borrowings resulting
from cash flows 42 431 - (360) 113 (420)
Receivables/{(borrowings) in acquired
businesses - - - 6 6 (18)
Inception of finance leases - 13) - - {(13) ®
Fair value and other adjustments to
bomrowings and related denvanves - C)) 6 - 2 6
Exchange translaton differences (20) 79 - 296 355 8
At end of year 582 (2,186) 36 (7,928) (9,496) (9,959

Net borrowings comprise cash and cash equivalents, loan capital, finance leases, promissory notes, bank and other loans,
and those denvative financial instruments that are used to hedge the farr value of fixed rate borrowings
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Acquisitions

During the year a number of acquisitions were made for a total consideration of £578m (2011 £485m), after taking
account of net cash acquired of £20m (2011 £24m) The net assets of the businesses acquired are incorporated at their
fair value to the group Provisional fair values of the consideration given and of the assets and hiabilities acquired are
summansed below

Fair value Fair value
2012 2011
£m £m
Goodwll 196 299
Intangible assets 474 305
Property, plant and equpment 1 1
Current assets 21 23
Current liabiliues (73) (46)
Borrowings 6 (18)
Current tax - (1)
Deferred tax CY)] (78) '
|
Net assets acquired 578 485
\
Consideration {after taking account of £20m (2011 £24m) net cash acquired) 578 485
Less consideration deferred to future years 23) 27
Less acquisitton date fair value of equity interest 42) {10)
Net cash flow 513 448

Goodwill, being the excess of the constderation over the net tangibie and intangible assets acquired, represents benefits
which do not qualify for recogmition as intangible assets, including the abtlity of a business to generate higher returns
than mdividual assets, skilled workforces, acquisition synergies that are specific to Reed Elsevier Group plc, and high
barriers to market entry In addition, goodwll arises on the recogmition of deferred tax habilities in respect of intangible
assets for which amortisation does not qualify for tax deductions

The fair values of the assets and liabilities acquired are provisional pending the completion of the valuation exercises
Final fair values will be incorporated n the 2013 consohidated financial statements  There were no sigmficant
adjustments to the provisional fair values of prior year acquisitions established in 2011

The businesses acquired in 2012 contributed £82m to revenue, increased adjusted operating profit by £26m, decreased
reported net profit by £2m, and contnbuted £18m to net cash mflow from operating activities for the part year under
Reed Elsevier Group plc ownership and before taking account of acquisition financing costs Had the businesses been
acquired at the beginning of the year, on a pro forma basis the Reed Elsevier Group plc group revenues, adjusted
operating profit and reported net profit for the year would have been £6,125m, £1,681m and £797m respectively before
taking account of acquisition financing costs
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Equuty dividends

£ per share £m

2012 2011 012 2011
Dividends declared in the year
Dividends declared by Reed Elsevier Group plc
Intenim to "E" ordinary shareholders - - - -
Interim to "R" ordinary shareholders 1631765 32,635 30 300 600
Total 300 600

The dividends to be paid by the company are regulated by the equalisatron arrangements between Reed Elsevier
PLC and Reed Elsevier NV, the company’s sharcholders The arrangements have the eftect of requining dividends to be
paid by the company according to the respecuve requirements of the shareholders to enable them to pay dividends on
their ordinary shares on an equahised basis Accordingly, the proportion 1n which dividends are paid on either class of
share will vary from one dividend payment to another

Goodwill
2012 2011
£m fm
At start of year 4,731 4,444
Acquusitions 196 299
Disposals/reclassified as held for sale (154) (26)
Exchange translation differences (197) 14
At end of year 4,576 4,731

The carrying amount of goodwill 1s afier cumulative amortisation of £1,180m (2011 £1,332m) which was charged prior
to the adoption of [FRS and £20m (2011 £49m) of subsequent smpairment charges

Impairment review

Impairment testing of goodwill and indefimite lived intangible assets 1s performed at least annually based on cash
generating umiis (CGUs) A CGU 1s the smallest identifiable group of assets that generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other groups of assets Goodwill impairment testing 1s performed on the basis of 22
CGUs CGUs which are not individuatly significant have been aggregated for presentation purposes Typically, when an
acquisition 1s made the acquired business s fully integrated into the relevant business unit and CGU, and the goodw:ll
artsing 15 allocated to the CGUs, or groups of CGUs, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition
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Goodwill (continued)

The carrying value of goodwill recorded in the major groups of CGUs 1s set out below

Goodwill 1012 2011

£m £m
Scientific, Technical & Medical 1,057 991
Risk Solutions 1,559 1,733
Business Information US 50 52
Business Informatton UK 335 352
Business Information NL 23 23
Business Information International - 32
Business Information 408 459
Legal US 1,038 1,070
Legal Intemational 112 113
Lega! 1,150 1,183
Exhibitions Continental Europe 273 289
Exhibitions other 129 76
Exhibitions 402 365
Total 4,576 4,731

Reed Elsevier Group plc s goodwill impairment testing methodology, assumptions and sensitivity analysis are disclosed
within critical judgements and key sources of estimation uncertamnty on pages 61 to 64
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Intangible assets

Total Enternally
Market and Content, acquired developed
customer software wntangible intangible
related and other assets assets Total
£m £fm im £m £m
Cost
At | January 2011 - 2,631 3,170 5,801 1,200 7,001
Acquisitions 196 108 304 - 304
Additions - - - 270 270
Disposals/reclassified as held for sale (38) (189) (227) (51) (278}
Exchange translation <hfferences 13 {9) 4 ) 3
At | January 2012 2,802 3,080 5,882 1,418 7,300
Acquisitions 201 273 474 1 475
Additions - - - 261 261
Disposals/reclassified as held for sale (56) o7 (153) (114) 267)
Exchange translation differences (131) (98) (229) (52) (281)
At 31 December 2012 2,816 3,158 5,974 1,514 7,488
Accumulated amortisgtion
At 1 January 2011 610 2,331 2,941 733 3,674
Charge for the year 160 183 343 131 474
Disposals/reclassified as held for sale (30) (149) (179} (36) (215)
Exchange translation differences 4 (7 (3) (4) (7)
At 1 January 2012 744 2,358 3,102 824 3,926
Charge for the year 173 143 316 150 466
Disposals/reclassified as held for sale (an (89) (100) () (179
Exchange translation differences (36) (78) (114) 27 (141)
At 31 December 2012 870 2,334 3,204 868 4,072
Net book amount
At 31 December 2011 2,058 722 2,780 594 3,374
At 31 December 2012 1,946 824 2,770 646 3dié

Also included i market and customer related intangible assets are £1,037m (2011 £1,209m) of customer relationship

asscts ansing on the acquisition of ChoicePoint in 2008 with a remaining useful hife of approximately 16 years
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Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets acquired as part of business combinations comprise market related assets (e g trademarks, imprints,
brands), customer related assets (e g subscription bases, customer lLists, customer relationships), and content, software
and other intangible assets (e g editonal content, software and product delivery systems, other publishing rights,
exhibition nghts and supply contracts) Included in content, sofiware and other acquired intangible assets are assets
with a net book value of £431m (2011 £531m) that arose on acquisittons completed prior to the adoption of IFRS that
have not been allocated to specific categories of intangible assets Internally developed intangible assets typically
comprise software and systems development where an 1dentifiable asset 1s created that 1s probable to generate future
economic benefits

Included in market and customer related intangible assets are £354m (2011 £370m) of brands and imprints relating to
Scientific, Technical & Medical determined to have indefimite lives based on an assessment of their histerical longevity
and stable market posttions Indefinite lived intangibles are tested for impairment at least annually using the same value
1N use assumptions as set out in critical judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty on pages 61 to 64

Investments
2012 2011
£fm £m
Investments 1n joint ventures 100 124
Available for sale investments 3 8
Shares in Reed Elsevier NV and Reed Elsevier PLC 150 129
Venture capital investments held for trading 76 56
Total 329 317

At 31 December 2012, the Reed Elsevier Group plc Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) held 13,451,468 (2011 14,051,025)
Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares and 6,990,101 (2011 7,380,906) Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares The EBT
purchases Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV shares which, at the trustee's discretion, can be used n respect of
the exercise of share options and to meet commitments under conditional share awards

The value of shares in Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV and of £27m (2011 £17m) of venture capital
investments held for trading has been determuned by reference to quoted market prices  The value of other venture
capital investments and available for sale investments has been determined by reference to other observable market
mputs
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16.  Investments (continued)

An analysis of changes in the carrying value of investments in joint ventures 1s set out below

At start of vear

Share of results of joint ventures
Dividends received from joint ventures
Disposals and transfers

Additions

Exchange translation differences

At end of year

2012 2011
£m fm
124 136
24 30
(20) (33)
EX)) (6)
10 1
)] 4
100 124

The principal joint ventures at 31 December 2012 are exhibition joint ventures within Exhibrions and Guffre

(an [tahian legal publisher in which Reed Elsevier Group plc has a 40% shareholding) within Legal
Summarised aggregate information 1n respect of joint ventures and Reed Elsevier Group plc's share 1s set out below

Reed Elsevier Group ple’s

Total joint ventures share

2012 2011 2012 2011

£m £m £m £m

Revenue 187 254 91 128
Net profit for the year 45 62 24 30
Total assets 227 255 104 122
Total liabilities (126) {137 59 (66)
Net assets 101 118 45 56
Goodwill 55 68
Total 100 124
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Property, plant and equipment

2012 2011
Fixtures Fixtures
Land and and Land and and
buildings equipment Total buldings equipment Total
£m £m £m £m £m Em
Cost
At start of year 238 579 817 246 575 821
Acquisitions - 1 1 - 1 1
Capital expenditure 10 70 B0 8 82 90
Disposals/reclassified as held for sale (03))] 97 (118) (16) (78) 94)
Exchange translation differences ¢ (19) (28) - n )]
At end of year 218 534 752 238 579 817
Accumulated depreciation
At start of year 118 412 530 115 416 531
Disposals/reclassified as held for sale 5 (94) 9% {6) 69N (75)
Charge for the year 8 68 76 9 66 75
Exchange translation differences (5] (13) (18) - () (1)
At end of year 116 373 489 118 412 530
Net book amount 102 161 263 120 167 287

No depreciation 1s provided on freehold land of £39m (2011 £46m) The net book amount of property, plant and
equipment at 31 December 2012 includes £11m (2011 £4m) in respect of assets held under finance leases relating to
fixtures and equipment

Financial instruments

Details of the objectives, policies and strategies pursued by the Reed Elsevier Group plc group 1n relation to
financial instruments and capital management are set out in the directors’ report The main financial risks faced by the
Reed Elsevier Group plc group are hquidity nsk, market risk - comprising interest rate nsk and foreign exchange risk -
and credit nsk Financial instruments are used to finance the group’s businesses and to hedge interest rate and foreign
exchange risks lhe group s businesses do not enter into speculative denvative transactions Detalls of financial
instruments subject to liquidity, market and credit risks are descnbed below

Liquidity risk

The Reed Elsevier Group plc group maintains a range of borrowing facihties and debt programmes to fund its
requirements, at short notice and at compeutive rates The rematning contractual matunties for borrowings and derivative
financial instruments are shown n the table below The table shows undiscounted principal and interest cash flows and
includes contractual gross cash flows to be exchanged as part of cross currency nterest rate swaps and forward foreign
exchange contracls where there 1s a legal right of set-off
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Financial instruments (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Contractual cash flows

More
Carrying Withm 1-2 2} 34 4-5 than §
amount 1 year years years years years years Total
At 31 December 2012 fm £m fm £m £m £m £m £m
Borrowings
Fixed rate borrowings owing to
Third partics (2,149) (147) (418) (121) (518) (395) (1,460) (3,059)
Elsevier Reed Finance BV group (5,480) (1,652) (905) 873) (1,174) (955) (594) (6,153)
Floating rate borrowings owing to
Third parties 37 37 - - - - - 37
Elsevier Reed Finance BV group (409) (183) (5) (234) - - - (422)
Reed Elsevier NV (1L,137 (1,137 - - - - - (LI37)
Reed Elsevier PLC (1,318) (1,318) - - - - - (1,318)
Reed Holding BV M M - - - - - €]
Derivative financial liabilsties
Forward foreign exchange contracts ¢ (53N (433) (194) - - - (1,164)
Derivative financial assets
Interest rate derivatives 36 8 8 8 7 6 - a7
Forward foreign exchange contracts 51 554 450 202 - - 1,206
Total (10,459) (4,456) (1,303) (1,212) (L,685) (1,344) (2,054) (12,054)
Contractual cash flows
More
Carrving Withm 1-2 2.3 34 4-5 than §
amount 1 year years years years years years Total
At 31 December 2011 fm £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Borrowings
Fixed rate borrowings owing to
Third partics (2,380) {449) (152) (485) (123) (522) (1,671) {3,402)
Elsevier Reed Finance BV group (5,784) (1,581) (1,540) (861) (663) (1,137) (834) (6,616}
Floating rate borrowings owing to
Third parties (299) (299) - - - - - (299)
Elsevier Reed Finance BV group (556) (201) (16) (16} {258) (12) (138) (641}
Reed Elsevier NV (907 (907) - - - - - (907
Reed Elsevier PLLC (1,318) (1,318) - - - - - {1,318)
Reed Holding BV (1) (1) - - - - - (1
Derivative financial habilities
Interest rate derivatives ) (2) - - - - - (2)
Forward foreign exchange contracts (56) (521) 371 (247 - - - {L13%
Dernivative financial assets
Interest rate denvatives 30 6 7 6 6 4 3 32
Forward foreign exchange contracts 12 495 351 236 - - 1,082
Total (11,260) (4,778) (1,721} (1,367) (1,038) (1.667) (2.640) (13,211)
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Financial instruments {(continued)

The carrying amount of derivative financial liabilities compnses £7m (2011 £51m) in relation to cash flow hedges
and £2m (2011 £6m) not destgnated as hedging instruments The carrying amount of derivative financial assets
compnises £36m (2011 £30m) in relation to fair value hedges, £46m (2011 £10m) 1n relatton to cash flow hedges and
£5m (2011 £2m) not designated as hedging mstruments

At 31 December 2012, the Reed Elsevier Group plc group had access, along with other affiliated companies, 1o a
$2,000m commutted bank facility matuning in June 2015, which was undrawn

After taking account of the maturity of committed bank facilities that back short term borrowings at 31 December
2012, and after utilising available cash resources, no third party borrowings mature within two years (2011 ml), no third
party borrowings mature in the third year (2011 18%), 25% in the fourth and fifth years (2011 19%), 49% m the sixth
to tenth years (2011 44%), and 22% beyond the tenth year (2011 19%)

The Reed Elsevier Group ple group also has borrowings from 1ts affihate Elsevier Finance SA totalling £5,889m
(2011 £6,340m) of which 27% mature 1n the next year (2011 239%), 12% 1n the second year (2011 21%), 17% in the
third year (2011 11%), 34% in the fourth and fifth years (2011 30%), and 10% in the sixth to tenth years

(2011 15%) Reed Elsevier Group plc has net borrowings due within one year of £2,039m (2011 £1,530m) from the
parent companies, Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV, and other affiliated undertakings

Market Risk

The Reed Elsevier Group plc group’s primary market risks are to interest rate fluctuations and exchange rate movements
Denivatives are used to hedge or reduce the risks of interest rate and exchange rate movements and are not entered into
unless such risks exist Derivatives used by the group for hedging a particular nisk are not specialised and are
generally available from numerous sources The impact of market risks on net post employment benefit obligations and
taxation 15 excluded from the following market nsk sensitivity analysis

Interest rate risk
The Reed LClsevier Group ple group s interest rate exposure management pohcy 1s aimed at reducing the exposure of its
businesses to changes in interest rates

At 31 December 2012, 78% of gross borrowings were etther fixed rate or had been fixed through the use of interest rate
swaps, forward rate agreements and options, or were non-interest beanng A 100 basis point reduction n interest rates
would result in an estimated decrease in net finance costs of £13m (2011 £13m), based on the composition of
financial instruments including cash, cash equivalents, balances with fellow joint ventures and Reed Elsevier Group
plc s sharcholders bank loans and commercial paper borrowtngs at 31 December 2012 A 100 basis point nise
nterest rates would result in an estimated increase 1n net finance costs of £13m (2011 £13m)

The impact on net equity of a theoretical change in interest rates as at 31 December 2012 would be restricted to the change
in carrying value of floating rate to fixed rate interest rate derivatives in a designated cash flow hedge relationship and
undesignated interest rate derivatives, of which there are none in Reed Elsevier Group ple as at 31 December 2012
There would therefore be no change 1n net equity from a theoretical change in mterest rates The impact of a change in
Interest rates on the carrying value of fixed rate borrowings in a designated fair value hedge relationship would be offset
by the change in carrying value of the related interest rate derivative Fixed rate borrowings not 1n a designated
hedging relationship are carmed at amortised cost
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Financial instruments (continued)

Foreign exchange rate risk

Translation exposures arise on the earnings and net assets of business operations 1n countries with currencies other
than sterhing, most particularly n respect of the US businesses These exposures are hedged, to a significant extent, by a
policy of denominating borrowings 1n currencies where significant translation exposures exist, most notably US dollars
(see note 24)

A theoretical weakening of all currencies by 10% against sterhing at 31 December 2012 would decrease the carrying
value of net assets, excluding net borrowings, by £496m (2011 £528m) This would be more than offset by a decrease
n net borrowings of £822m (2011 £876m) A strengthening of all currencies by 10% against sterhing at 31
December 2012 would increase the carrying value of net assets, excluding net borrowings, by £496m (2011 £528m) and
mcrease net borrowings by £822m (2011 £876m)

A retranslation ot the group s net profit for the year assuming a 10% weakening of all foreign currencies against sterling
but excluding transactional exposures would reduce net profit by £52m {2011 £26m) A 10% strengtheming of all
foreign currencies against sterling on this basis would increase net profit for the year by £52m (2011 £26m)

Credit risk

The Reed Elsevier Group ple group seeks to hmit interest rate and foreign exchange nisks descnbed above by the use of
financial instruments and as a result has a credit risk from the potential non performance by the counterparties to these
financial instruments, which are unsecured The amount of this credit risk 1s normally restncted to the amounts of any
hedge gain and not the pnincipal amount being hedged The group also has a credit exposure to counterparties for the full
principal amount of cash and cash equivalents Credit risks are controlied by momitoring the credit quality of these
counterparties, pnncipally licensed commercial banks and investment banks with strong long term credit ratings, and the
amounts outstanding with each of them

The Reed Elsevier Group plc group has treasury policies in place which do not allow concentrations of nsk with individual
counterparties and do not allow stgnificant treasury exposures with counterparties which are rated lower than A-/A3 by
Standard & Poor s, Moeody s and Fitch

The Reed Elsevier Group plc group also has credit nsk with respect to trade receivables due from 1ts customers that include
national and state governments, academic institutions and large and small enterprises including law firms, book stores and
wholesalers The concentration of credit risk from trade receivables 1s limited due to the large and broad customer base
Trade receivable exposures are managed locally in the business units 1n which they anse Where appropnate, business
uruts seek to minimise this exposure by taking payment in advance and through management of credit terms Allowance 1s
made for bad and doubttul debts based on management s assessment of the nish, taking into account the ageing profile,
experience and circumstance The maximum exposure to credit risk 1s represented by the carrying amount of each financial
asset, including denvative financial instruments, recorded 1n the statement of financial position

Included within trade recervables are the following amounts which are past due but for which no allowance has been made
Past due up to one month £147m (2011 £205m), past due two to three months £57m (2011 £53m), past due four to si1x
months £14m (201t £20m), and past due greater than six months £1m (2011 £5m) Examples of trade receivabies which
are past due but for which no allowance has been made include those receivables where there 1s no concern over the
creditworthiness of the customer and where the history of dealings with the customer indicate the amount will be settled

Hedge accounting
The hedging relationships that are designated under [AS39 — Financial Instruments are described below

Fair value hedges
The Reed Elsevier Group ple group has entered into interest rate swaps to hedge the exposure to changes in the fair value
of fixed rate borrowings due to nterest rate movements which could affect the income statement
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Finrancial snstruments (continued)

Interest rate derivatives with a principal amount of £300m (201 £300m} were in place at 31 December 2012 swapping

a fixed rate term debt 1ssue denominated in sterling to (loating rate sterling debt for the whole of its term

The gains and losses on the borrowings and denvatives designated as fair value hedges, which are included in the
income statement, for the two years ended 31 December 2012, were as follows

. Fair value Fair value
Gains/(losses) on borrowings and I January movement 1 Januany moverment 31 December
related derivatives 2011 gain/(loss) 2012 gain/(loss) 2012
£m £m £fm fm £m
GBP debt {7 23) G0 (6) (36)
Related :nterest rate swaps 7 23 30 6 36

Net gain - - - - -

All fair value hedges were highly effective throughout the two years ended 31 December 2012

Gross borrowings as at 31 December 2012 included £33m (2011 £37m) in relation to fair value adjustments to
borrowings previously designated in a fair value hedge relationship which were de-designated 1n 2008 The related
denvatives were closed out on de-designation with a cash inflow of £51m  £3m (2011 £6m) of these fair value
adjustments were amortised n the year as a reduction to finance costs

Cash flow hedges
The Reed Elsevier Group plc group enters into two types of cash flow hedge

1) Interest rate derivatives which fix the mterest expense on a portion of forecast floating rate debt (including
commercial paper, short term bank loans and floating rate term debt)

2) Foreign exchange denivatives which fix the exchange rate on a portion of future foreign currency subscription
revenues forecast by the Screntific, Technical & Medical businesses for up to 50 months

Movements 1n the hedge reserve (pre-tax) in 201! and 2012, including gains and losses on cash flow hedging
mstruments, were as follows

Foreign Total hedge

Interest rate exchange reserve

hedges hedges pre-tax

£m £m £m

Hedge reserve at 1 January 2011 losses deferred (1D (57) (68)
Losses arising in 2011 - {19) (19
Amounts recognised in income statement 5 32 37
Hedge reserve at 1 January 2012 losses deferred (6) (44) 50)
Deferred losses 1n acquired businesses - (2) (2)
Gams ansing in 2012 - 72 72
Amounts recogmsed in income statement 4 10 14
Exchange translation differences - 1 1
Hedge reserve at 31 December 2012: (losses)/gains deferred (2) 37 35

All cash flow hedges were highly effective throughout the two years ended 31 December 2012

A deferred 1ax charge of £9m (2011 £14m credit) in respect of the above gams and losses at 31 December 2012 was
also deferred in the hedge reserve

Of the amounts recognised 1n the income statement i the year, losses of £10m (2011 £32m) were recogmsed 1n
revenue and losses of £4m (2011 £5m) were recognised mn finance costs A tax credit of £4m (2011 £11m) was
recognised in relation to these items
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Financial instruments (continued)

The deferred gains and losses on cash flow hedges at 31 December 2012 are currently expected to be recognised 1n the
income statement 1 future years as follows

Foreign Total hedge

Intcrest rate exchange reserve

hedges hedges pre-tax

£m £fm £m

2013 2) 7 5
2014 - 16 16
2015 - 11 1l
2016 - 3 3
2017 - - -
(Losses)/gains deferred in hedge reserve at end of year 2) 37 kL]

The cash flows for these hedges are expected to oceur in line with the recognition of the gains and losses in the tncome
statement, other than in respect of certain forward foreign exchange hedges on subscriptions, where cash flows may be
expected te occur in advance of the subscription year

94




19

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax habihities

Total

w12 2081
fm fm
71 202

(941) (1,228)
(870) (1,026)

Movements in deferred tax liabihties and assets (before taking into consideration the offsetung of balances within the
same junsdiction) are summarised as follows

Deferred tax hiahilities

Deferred tax assets

Excess of tax Excess of
allowances  Acquired Other ameortisation Tax losses Other
over intangible Pensions temporary over tax carried  Pensions  temporary
amoriisation assets assets differences  allowances forward habiliies differences Tatal
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Deferred tax (hability)/asset at
1 January 201} (223) (944) (15) (3) 5 13 78 43 (1,044)
{Charge)/credit to profit (6) 131 (10) (%4) 3 32 (3) 24 77
Credit to equity - - 25 - - - 1 6 42
Transfers - - - - - - - (7 (17
Acquisihons - (84) - - - 2 - 5 N
Disposals/ reclassified as held
for sale - - - 1 - - - (48] -
Exchange translation difterences (2) 2) - 2) - 1 - 2) N
Deferred tax (hability)/asset at
1 January 2012 (231) (8399 - (98) 8 48 86 60 (1,026)
{Charge)/credit to profit (6) B3 - (8) (2) 2 (32) 25 42
{Charge)/credit to equuty - - - 3) - - 102 M 92
Transfers - - - - - - - - -
Acguisitions 1 4n - - 3 (2) - ) “@n
Ensposals/ reclassefied as held
for sale 18 - 7 - (U} - [1)] 25
Exchange translation differences 1t 35 - 2 - (3) (3 2 44
Deferred tax (linhility)/asset at
31 December 2012 (223) (802) - (100) 3 22 153 77 {(870)

Other deferred tax liabtlities includes temporary differences in respect of plant, property and equipment, and capitahised

development spend Other deferred tax assets includes temporary differences in respect of share-based remuneration,

provisions, and financial instruments

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses and other deductible temporary differences have only been recogmised to the

extent that it 1s more likely than not that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the asset to be recovered
Accordingly, no deferred tax asset has been recognised 1n respect of unused trading losses of approximately £129m
{2011 £133m} carried forward at year end The deferred tax asset not recognised in respect of these losses 13

approximately £34m (2011 £36m) Of the unrecogmised losses, £47m (2011 £45m) will expire if not utithsed within 10

years, and £82m (2011 £88m) will expire after more than 10 years

Deferred tax assets of approximately £9m (2011 £11m) have not been recognised in respect of tax losses and other
temporary differences carmed forward of £41m (2011 £44m) which can only be used to offset future capital gans
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Inventories and pre-publication costs

012 2011

fm fm

Raw matenals 3 6

Pre-publication costs 99 113

Finished goods 52 65

Total 154 184
Trade and other receivables

2012 2011

fm £m

Trade receivables 1,245 1,353

Allowance for doubtful debts 1 63)

1,194 1,290

Prepayments and accrued income 169 181

Total 1,363 1,471

Trade receivables are predominantly non-interest bearing and their carrying amounts approximate to thewr fair value

Trade receivables are stated net of allowances for bad and doubtful debts The movements in the provision duning the

year were as follows

012 20t
£m £m

At start of year 63 73
Charge for the year 13 15
Trade recervables written off (18) (23)
Disposals (6) )
Exchange translation difference 4} (M
At end of year 51 63
Assets and habilities held for sale
The major classes of assets and liabihties of operations classified as held for sale are as foliows

2012 2011

£m fm

Goodwill 137 19
Intangible assets 83 7
Property, plant and equipment 3 -
Deferred tax assets 4 1
Inventories 1 1
Trade and other receivables 71 16
Total assets held for sale 299 44
Trade and other payables 69 17
Deferred tax lrabilities 27 -
Total habihties associated with assets held for sale 926 17
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Trade and other payables

Payables and accruals
Deferred income

Total

Borrowings

Financial llabihities measured at
amortised cost
Amounts owed to the Elsevier
Reed Finance BV Group
Amounts owed to shareholders
and other affiliates
Short term bank loans, overdrafts
and commercial paper
Other loans ncluding finance
leases

Other loans in fair value hedging
relationships

Other loans previously in fair value
hedging relationships

Total

012 2011
fm fm
1,115 1,201
1,394 1,392
2,509 2,593
2012 2011
Falling due Falling due Faliing due  Falling due in
within more than withmn more than
1 year I year Total [ year 1 year Total
£m £m £m fm £m £m
1,594 4,295 5,889 1,476 4,864 6,340
2,462 - 2,462 2,226 - 2,226
37 - 37 299 - 299
7 1,468 1,475 292 1,402 1,694
- 336 336 - 330 330
- 338 kk}.1 - 356 356
4,100 6,437 10,537 4,293 6,952 11,245

In 2012, £184m principal amount of term debt maturing in 2014 and 2019 was exchanged for £191m pnncipal amount
of term debt maturing in 2022 and cash payments of £46m The exchange 15 treated as a debt modification for
accounting purposes The premium arising of £53m 15 offset against the carrying amount of the newly issued term debt

maturing 1n 2022 and will be amortised over its hife

The total fair value of financial habilities measured at amortised cost 1s £10,401m (2011 £11,111m) The total fair
value of other loans in fair value hedging relatienships 1s £376m (2011 £356m) The total fair value of other loans
previously in fair value hedging relationships 1s £424m (2011 £425m)
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Borrowings (continued)

Analysis by year of repayment

As at 31 December 2012
Within 1 year

Within 1 to 2 years
Within 2 to 3 years
Within 3 to 4 years
Within 4 to 5 years
After 5 years

Total

As at 31 December 2011
Within 1 year

Within 1 to 2 years
Within 2 to 3 years
Within 3 to 4 years
Within 4 to 5 years
After 5 years

Total

Short term bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper were backed up at 31 December 2012 by a $2,000m (£1,231m)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Short term bank Amounts oned to

loans, overdrafts Other loans Elsevier Reed Amounts owed to
and commercial including Finance sharcholders and

paper finance leases BY Group other affiliates Total

£m £m £m £m £m

37 7 1,594 2,462 4,100

- 290 716 - 1,006

- 3 1,01 - 1,014

- 400 1,078 - 1,478

- 336 205 - 1,241

- 1,113 585 - 1,698

- 2,142 4,295 - 6,437

37 2,149 5,889 2,462 10,537

299 292 1,476 2,226 4,293

- 3 1,329 - 1,332

- 350 697 - 1,047

- 1 839 - 840

- 400 1,065 - 1,465

- 1,334 934 - 2,268

- 2,088 4,864 - 6,952

299 2,380 6,340 2,226 11,245

commutted bank factlity maturing in June 2015, which was undrawn

Analysis by currency

As at 31 December 2012
US dollars

£ sterling

Euro

Other currencies

Total

As at 31 December 2011
LS dollars
£ sterling
, Euro
Other currencies

Total

Short term hank Amounts owed to

loans, overdrafis Other loans Elsevier Reed  Amounts owed to
and commercial including Finance  sharcholders and

paper finance leases BY Group other affihates Total

£m £m £m £m £m

25 1,413 5339 - 6,777

- 736 - 1,318 2,054

9 . 453 1,144 1,606

3 - 97 - 100

37 2,149 5,889 2,462 10,537

279 1,650 5,712 - 7,041

- 730 37 1,318 2,085

- - 494 908 1,402

20 - 97 - 117

299 2,380 6,340 2,226 11,245
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Lease arrangements
Finance leases

Al 31 December 2012 future finance lease obhigations fall due as follows

012 2011

fm £m

Within one year ? 2

In the second to fifth years inclusive 9 6

16 8

Less future finance charges - -

Total 16 8
Present value of future finance lease obhgations payable

Within one year 7 2

In the second to fifth years inclusive 9 6

Total 16 8

The fair value of the lease obligations approximates to their carrying amount

Operating leases

The Reed Elsevier Group plc group leases vanous properties, principally offices and warehouses, which have varying

terms and renewal nghts that are typical to the territory 1 which they are located

At 31 December 2012 outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases fall due as follows

2012 2011

im £m

Within one year 17 129
In the second to fifth years inclusive 309 305
After five years 184 206
Total 610 640

Of the above outstanding commitments, £577m (2011 £604m) relate to land and buildings

The Reed Elsevier Group pic group has a number of properties that are sub leased The future lease receivables

contracted with sub-tenants fall due as follows

2012 2011

£m fm

Within one year 16 21
In the second to fifth years inclusive 33 38
After five years 17 19
Total 66 78
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

Provisions
2012 2011

Property Restructuring Total Property Restructunng Totai
£m £m £fm £m fm £m
At start of year 109 16 125 105 53 158
Transfers 22 22 - - -
Charged 62 - 62 16 - 16
Utilised 24) (1) (35) (12) 37 (49)
Exchange translation differences (5) - (5) . - -
At end of year 164 5 169 109 16 125

Property provistons relate to estmated sub lease shortfalls and guarantees given in respect of certain property leases for
various periods up to 2024 The charge in 2012 of £62m (2011 £16m) predominantly relates to property exposures on

disposed businesses

At 31 December 2012 provisions are included withun current and non-current habihties as follows

Current liabihties
Non-current habihities

Total

Contingent habilities and capital commitments

There are contingent habilities amounting to £11m (2011 £15m) in respect of property lease guarantees

2012 2011
£m fm
30 37

139 88

169 125

The Company has accepted, 1n accordance with clause 403 Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, responsibilities for the
habthties, including trade creditors and external borrowings, totalling £89m (2011 £87m) of subsichary undertakings

registered in the Netherlands
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Other reserves

Other
Hedge reserve reserves Total Total
2012 2012 2012 2011
£m fm £m £fm
At start of year (36) (5,829) {5,865) {5,599)
Profit atinibutable to parent companies shareholders - 776 776 427
Dividends paid - (300) (300) (600)
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension schemes - 329) (329) (113)
Fair value movements on available for sale investments - 29 29 (6)
Transfer to net profit on disposal of available for sale
investments - 11 11 -

Deferred losses on cash flow hedges in acquired businesses 2) - {2) -
Fair value movements on cash flow hedges 72 - 72 (19)
Tax recognised directly in equuty (19 107 88 42
Increase in share based remunerauon reserve - 31 31 27
Settlement of share awards - @) (7N )
Transfer from hedge reserve to net profit (net of tax) 10 - 10 26
Disposal/(acquisttion} of non-controlling interests - 6 6 (43)
Exchange translauon differences 1 (1) - -
At end of year 26 (5,506) (5,480) {5,865)

Other reserves principally comprise retamned earmings, the share based remuneration reserve and available for sale
investment reserve

Related party transactions
The company 1s jointly owned and controlled by Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV

There were no matenal transactions during the year between the Reed Elsevier Group plc group and its fellow joint
ventures, other than those disclosed tn these accounts

The group s fellow joint ventures are Llsevier Reed Finance BV and its substdiaries Llsevier Reed Finance BV 18
incorporated i the Netherlands and jointly owned and controlled by Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV The
Elsevier Reed Finance BV group provides a range of treasury services and funding to the Reed Elsevier Group plc group

Foreign exchange contracts entered inte during 2012 by Reed Elsevier Group ple and 1ts subsidiaries with its fellow joint
ventures amounted to £2,254m (2011 £1,621m)

Transactions between the Reed Elsevier Group ple group’s businesses have been eliminated within the consohidated
financial statements Transactions with joint ventures were made on normal market terms of trading and comprise sales
of goods and services of £1m (2011 £1m}
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Related party transactions (continued)

As at 31 December 2012, amounts owed by joint ventures were £1m (2011 £3m) and amounts due from joint ventures
were £1m (2011 m!} Key management personnel are also related parties and compnise the executive directors of Reed
Elsevier Group plc Transactions with key management personnel are set out below

2012 2011

fm Em

Salanes and other short term employee benefits 4 3
Post employment benefits - -
Share based remuneration” 5 4
Total 9 7

"The share based remuneration charge comprises the multi-year incentive scheme charges 1n accordance with IFRS2 —
Share based payment, relating to executive directors as follows Ertk Engstrom £2 7m (2011 £2 5m), Mark Armour
£2 1m (2011 £1 5m), and Duncan Palmer £0 3m (2011 mil) These IFRS2 charges do not reflect the actual value
recerved on vesting

Dctails of the directors’ remuneration are set out in the Directors Remuneration Report on pages 30 to 49

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for 1ssue by the board of directors of Reed Elsevier Group plc on
27 February 2013
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PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2012

Fixed assets
Investments
Shares in subsidiary undertakings
Cost
Provided

Net book amount

Other investments
Joint ventures (cost and net book value)

Current assets

Trade and other receivables

Amounts owed by Reed Elsevier PLC
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings
Tax

Total assets
Creditors falling due within one year

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings
Trade and other payables

Net current assets/(habilities)
Net assets

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital

Share premium account

Profit and loss reserves

Shareholders' funds

"See Parent Company Accounting Policies

Approved by the board of Reed Elsevier Group ple, 27 February 2013

D J Palmer
Chief Financia! Officer

TR
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02 2011
£m £m
Restated ™
3,100 3,094
0] (4)
3,096 3,090
150 158
2 2
3,248 3,250
13 13
4 3
272 -
70 -
359 16
3,607 3,266
(325) (432)
(325) (432)
34 (416)
3,282 2,834
2,430 2,430
852 404
3282 2,834




PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Profit for the financial year

Total gains and losses relating to the year

Prior year adjustment

Total gains and losses recognised since last financial statements

"See Parent Company Accounting Policies

2012 2011
fm fm
Restated
448 52
448 52
11
459




PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2012

PARENT COMPANY RECONCILIATION OF SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

For the year ended 31 December 2012
Share Profit and loss

Share capatal premium reserse Total

£m £m fm £m

Restated Restated

At 31 December 2011 (as previously stated) - 2,430 393 2,823
Pror year adjustment - - 11 11
At | January 2012 as restated - 2,430 404 2,834
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders - - 748 748
Orchinary dividends paid - - (300) (300)
At 31 December 2012 - 2,430 852 3,282

PARENT COMPANY ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The parent company financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention 1in accordance with UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice {UK GAAP) Unless otherwise indicated, all amounts 1n the financial
statements are 1 mulhons of pounds

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the company has not presented 1ts own profit and loss account
The Reed Elsevier Group plc accounting policies under UK GAAP are set out below and have been apphed consistently
in the current and prior year, excepted as described below

Change of aecounting policy

The directors have reconsidered the accounting policies of the company with respect to the Reed Elsevier Group ple
Employee Benefit Trust (" EBT ) and consider it appropnate to recogrise the EBT s assets and habilities, which are
under the de facte control of Reed Elsevier Group plc, n the parent company balance sheet

Comparative figures have been restated to reflect the revised policy Amounts receivable from the EBT of £282m have
been eliminated and replaced with other investments of £158m (representing the shares held by the EBT), trade
receivables of £13m and capital contributions to Reed Elsevier Group plc subsidiary undertakings of £122m
Sharcholders funds have increased by £11m as a result ot this change

Investments

Fixed asset investments are stated at cost, less provision, 1f appropriate, for any impairment in value Other investments
relate to ordinary shares of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV held by the EBT

Principal joint ventures and subsidiaries are set out in the supplementary information page

Foreign exchange translation

Transactions entered 1nto 1n foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates applicable at the time of the transaction
Taxation

Deferred taxation 1s provided n full for ming differences using the liability method Deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that they are considered recoverable in the short term Deferred taxation balances are not
discounted
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
To the members of Reed Elsevier Group plc

We have audited the parent company financial statements of Reed Elsevier Group plc for the year ended

31 December 2012 (“the company financial statements™} which comprise the parent company balance sheet, the parent
company reconcihation of shareholders’ funds and the parent company accounting policies The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation 15 applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 15 made solely to the company's members, as a body, 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them n an anditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permmitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opimions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors” Responsibilities Statement the directors are respensible for preparation of the
Annual Report and the parent company financial statements and for beimng satisfied that they give a true and fair view

Our responsibility 15 to audit and express an opinion on the parent company financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us te comply with
the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtamming evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements sufficient te give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error  This includes an assessment of whether the accounting pohcies are appropriate to the parent company’s
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of sigmficant
accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read
all the financial and non-financial information in the annual report to dentify material inconsistencies with the audited
financial statements If we become aware of any apparent material musstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
imphcations for our report

Opmon on finanecial statements

In our opimon the parent company financial statements

. give a true and fair view of the state of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2012 and of its profit
for the year then ended, and

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
and

) have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opwnion

. the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared 1s consistent with the parent company financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to
you 1f, n our opinion

. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been recerved from branches not visited by us, or
. we have not recerved all the information and explanations we require for our audit
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
To the members of Reed Elsevier Group ple

Other matter

We have reported separately on the consolidated financtal statements of Reed Elsevier Group plc for the year ended 31
December 2012

Dougl entor statutory audhtor)

For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, Umted Kingdom

27 February 2013
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Principal subsidiary undertakings at 31 December 2012

Holding and Corporate Companies
Reed Elsevier (UK) Limuted (1)

Reed Elsevier (Holdings) Ltd (6)
Reed Elsevier (Investments) plc
Reed Elsevier Holdings B V
Reed Elsevier Nederland B V
Reed Elsevier Overseas B V
Reed Elsevier US Holdings Inc
Reed Elsevier Inc

Reed Elsevier Capatal [nc

Reed Elsevier Properties Inc
Scientific, Technical & Medical

Eisevier Limited
Elsevier BV
Elsevier Inc

Academic Press
Elsevier Health Sciences

(2}
(1)

Gold Standard Inc

Elsevier Masson SAS

Elsevier Espana SL

Elsevier Information Systems GmbH
Risk Solutions

LexisNexis Risk Assets Inc
LexisNexis Risk Solutions FL Inc
LexisNexis Risk Data Management [nc
Business Informanon

Reed Business [nformation Limued
Reed Business B V

Reed Business [nformation US

Reed Construction Data LLC
BuyerZone com LLC

Accuity Holdings Inc

Ascend Worldwide Group Hoidings Ltd

Legal

LexisNexis

)

LexisNexis ¥

Matthew Bender and Company, [nc
Martindale-Hubbell ¢

LexisNexis SA

LexisNexis Australia ™
Exhibitions

Reed Extubitions Limited

Reed Exhibitions @

Reed Expositions France SAS

Reed Midem SAS

Reed Exhibitions Japan KK

Reed Exhibitions Alcantra Machado Ltda

(The Netherlands)
(The Netherlands)
(The Netherlands)
(USA)
(USA)
(USA)
(USA)

(The Netherlands)
{USA)

(Usa)

{USA)

{USA}

{France}

{Span)
{Germany)

(USA)
(USA)
(USA)

(The Netherlands)
(USA)
(USA)
(USA)
(USA)

(USA}
(USA}
{UsA)
{France}
{Austraha)

(USA)
(France)
{France)
(Japan)
(Brazil)

All are wholly owned subsidiary undertakings registered and operating in England and Wales unless otherwise stated

Q)
)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)

Holding company, but also trades through one or more operating divisions

Division of Elsevier [nc

Division of Reed Elsevier (UK) Limited

Division of Reed Elsevier Inc

Division of Reed International Books Australia Pty Ltd
Direct subsidiary undertaking of Reed Elsevier Group plc

Principal joint ventures at 31 December 2012

Operating in
Dott A Guuffre Edutore Spa 40%

Principal place of business
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ltaly, Via Busto Arsizio, Milan




